= e

— =\ Q0 ~J
= .

[

12.
13.

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA
Wednesday, August 17,2022 at 9:00 a.m.
Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon
See Zoom Meeting Info on Page 2
AMENDED

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m.
City/Citizen Comments: Individuals may address the Board on issues not on the agenda
Open Agenda: The Board may introduce subjects not already on the agenda
Consent Calendar
a. Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables
b. Minutes: August 3
c. Sheriff’s Office Out-of-State Travel Request
d. First Amendment to Independent Contractor Agreement with Wolfe Consulting,
LLC
e. Granting of Signing Authority for Morrow County — Property Purchase
Emergency Operations Center Update
Business Items
a. Declaring Terry Tallman Day in Morrow County
b. Critical Oregon Airport Relief (COAR) Grant Program Agreement, Lexington
Airport Taxiway D Reconstruction Phase 1 Design (Sandi Pointer, Public Works)
¢. Annual Application for Oregon Department of Veterans’ Affairs Funds (Linda
Skendzel, Veterans Services Officer)
d. Lead Person for Water Related Issues
e. Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan Update Presentation (Katie
Imes, Public Transit)
f. Budget Committee Appointment (Kevin Ince, Finance Director)
g. Permit Application #OTL Windwave Communications (, PW Director)
Department Reports — None Scheduled
Commissioner Liaison Reports
Correspondence

. Commissioner Report
. Executive Session: Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(g) — To consider preliminary

negotiations involving matters of trade or commerce in which the governing body is in
competition with governing bodies in other states or nations

Signing of documents

Adjournment

Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under
“Upcoming Events™). Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday.

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613.

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda Page 1 of 2



Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday. If something urgent comes up after this
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about
items listed on the agenda, please contact Chair Jim Doherty, 541-571-0584.

Zoom Meeting Information

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546 PASSWORD: 97836 Meeting ID: 541-676-2546

Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only:

1-346-248-7799, Meeting ID: 541 676 2546#
1-669-900-6833, Meeting ID: 541 676 2546#
1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546#
1-929-436-2866, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546#
1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546#
1-301-715-8592, Meeting ID: 541-676-2546#

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda Page 2 of 2



Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2022
Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room
Heppner, OR 97836

Present In-Person

Chair Jim Doherty

Commissioner Melissa Lindsay
Commissioner Don Russell

Karen Wolff, Staff

Roberta Lutcher, Executive Assistant

Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Roll Call: 9:00 a.m.

Terry Tallman Day

Chair Doherty called Cheryl Tallman, wife of former Judge Terry Tallman, forward. Chair Doherty read
the full text of Resolution NO. R-2022-15.

Commissioner Russell moved to accept Resolution NO. R-2022-15 IN THE MATTER OF DECLARING
AUGUST 17, 2022 AS TERRY TALLMAN DAY FOR ALL OF MORROW COUNTY. Commissioner Lindsay
seconded. Unanimous approval.

Commissioner Russell presented the certificate of the Resolution to Cheryl Tallman.
Ms. Tallman told the group that Terry enjoyed working with everyone.

Chair Doherty shared a fishing story. Commissioner Russell shared a story. Commissioner Lindsay shared
a story.

Ms. Tallman said that she brought melons to share, just as Terry did while he was Judge. These are
melons that Terry started from seed and oversaw the planting and growing throughout the year.

City and Citizen Comments:

Mike Hughes, Fire Chief Boardman Fire and Rescue District

Chief Hughes said that Chair Doherty suggested a couple of times that the Health District and the Fire
District get together to update the ASA (Ambulance Service Area) plan together. Chief Hughes would
like to take advantage of that offer. He asked that Deputy District Attorney Zach Williams be appointed
to oversee the committee. He suggested that there be two representatives from the Health District,
two representatives from the Fire District, no attorneys others than DDA Williams. He also suggested
leadership from the Sheriff's Office, Boardman PD;, and representatives from the City of Heppner,
Lexington, Irrigon and Boardman. This committee would put together an ASA plan that DDA Williams
can bring back to the Commission.

Chair Doherty said the Board has been supportive of coming forward with a unified front. He said we
would consider that option.

Morrow County Board of Commissioner Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2022 Page 1|5



No one online on Zoom with hands up to speak.

Lisa Pratt, Morrow County Resident, lives in the Boardman area

Ms. Pratt read a prepared statement regarding: questioning Chair Doherty’s interactions with Chief
Hughes at a previous meeting and Chair Doherty’s alleged bias against Boardman; the need for a
stronger ASA plan; and the need to increase (health care) services in the county.

Chair Doherty said he did visit with Chief Hughes after the meeting and suggested that if Chief Hughes
was going to come into a Commission meeting and suggest that Chair Doherty does not have the best
health care in mind for his home town and then expect to get on a future agenda. Chair Doherty said
that Chief Hughes then said “Are you telling me | will not be on a future agenda?”, to which Chair
Doherty did not respond.

Open Agenda:
None

Consent Calendar:

Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. Commissioner Russell
seconded. Unanimous approval.

Business Items:
Lexington Airport Taxiway D Reconstruction Grant
Sandra Pointer, Public Works Management Assistant by Zoom

Ms. Pointer explained that she previously brought the design project grant forward, and was approved.
This is a grant for the matching funds for the project.

Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the agreement with COAR (Critical Oregon Airport Relief)/ODA
(Oregon Department of Aviation) and Morrow County in the amount of $137,347.47 for the Design
phase of the Taxiway D & Apron Reconstruction and authorize Commissioner Russell sign on behalf of
Morrow County. Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous approval.

Upon learning the document was prepared with a signature line for the Chair to sign, she made the
following amendment: Commissioner Lindsay moved to amend the previous motion to have Chair
Doherty sign. Commissioner Russell said he approved of and seconded the friendly amendment.
Unanimous approval.

County Application for ODVA Funds
Linda Skendzel, Veterans Service Officer

Ms. Skendzel explained that this grant is needed to update some Personal Services expenses in the
budget. She has been working with Kevin Ince, Finance Director and he has approved this grant.

Morrow County Board of Commissioner Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2022 Page 2|5



Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve the Oregon Department of Veteran’s Affairs County Application
for ODVA Fuds FY2022: July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 in the amount of S81, 736 and authorize Chair
Doherty to sign on behalf of Morrow County. Commissioner Russell second. Unanimous approval.

Morrow County Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan Update (CTP)
Katie Imes, Transportation Manager

Ms. Imes introduced Krista Purser, Kittelson a& Associates, who prepared the update. Ms. Purser
presented a Powerpoint presentation of the update and reviewed bullet points. Ms. Purser explained
that this is a guiding, living document and should be updated as needed.

Ms. Imes explained that this update will come back to the Commissioners to be adopted. The
presentation today was condensed. Commissioner Lindsay asked for the final document to be sent to
the Commissioners for review well in advance, to allow time to thoroughly review.

Lead Person for Water Related Issues
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director

Chair Doherty said he is glad we are having this conversation. Commissioner Lindsay agreed. She has
been watching Harney County on their water issues.

Ms. Mabbott said she had prepared a document that could be used in preparing a potential position
description. Ms. Mabbott reviewed the Water Coordination document. She explained that GIS has been
engaged to assist in developing data in relation to the nitrate issues. She said people are ‘thirsty’ for
data. GIS will help with where domestic wells located, and located in relation to septic systems, fields
and other factors. This could generate the data that people/agencies need. The State’s role has been to
regulate water, not plan for future water. Harney County is looking at water holistically.

Commissioner Lindsay said watching what is happening nationally and in the Klamath Basin, we need to
start looking locally.

Chair Doherty said when we had the workshop, he pulled info from a Colorado county. They had a
whole department on this subject.

Commissioner Russell said well drillers have a log with data about soils, whether cased etc. He assumes
this data has not been mined. It would be good information to have. The long-term solution is not a
filter on a faucet. He suggested a water district would be something to consider. One well has high
nitrates and another does not. Why is that? That needs to be investigated with data.

Commissioner Lindsay agreed. Harney County has done something like this. Leadership, collaboration,
and stakeholders.

Commissioner Russell said since 1989, wells have to be tested when property is sold. Not sure if it is
public information, but it could be useful.

Morrow County Board of Commissioner Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2022 Page 3|5



Ms. Mabbott agreed. She mentioned we might want to look at some land use amendments related to
water.

Commissioner Lindsay asked if we are ready to do an RFP (Request For Proposals) for a contract? Do we
split it with Umatilla County? Do we just have our own? She thinks a one year or two year contract
would be good. Commissioner Russell does not think one year is long enough. He prefers two years,
whatever we do.

Ms. Mabbott said an RFQ (Request For Qualifications) would be a good start. Pull together a position
description as well to consider an in-house person

Chair Doherty said water security is important. We have a code book. We need a regulatory piece too.
If we find out that Joe Industry or Commissioner Doherty are doing something, we need to address that.

Commissioner Lindsay said a two year RFP or RFQ would be good. A contract has worked well on the
Broadband Initiative. Commissioner Russell agreed. Commissioner Russell said he is ok with a bi-county
agreement as long as it is a true bi-county situation, with equal work for each county. Commissioner
Lindsay agreed. Chair Doherty preferers to write our own future and keep it in-house. Look at both
options.

Ms. Mabbott with work up options for review.

Budget Committee Appointment
Kevin Ince, Finance Director

Mr. Ince explained that there was one response to the public advertisement for appointment to the
Budget Committee. Kim Cutsforth has been on the committee previously. Mr. Ince recommends
moving forward with the appointment.

Commissioner Russell moved to appoint Kim Cutsforth to the Budget Committee for a three year term,
effective July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025. Chair Doherty seconded. Unanimous approval.

Permit Application #OTL
Mike Haugen, Assistant Roadmaster

Mr. Haugen explained the permit application and answered questions from the Commissioners.

Chair Doherty moved to authorize the Assistant Roadmaster to approve Permit #OTL for Windwave
Communications. Commissioner Lindsay seconded. Commissioner Russell recused himself because he
has a financial interest in Windwave Communications. Chair Doherty yes. Commissioner Lindsay yes.
Commissioner Russell abstain.

Department Report
None

Morrow County Board of Commissioner Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2022 Page 4|5



Commissioner Liaison Reports
Chair Doherty none.

Commissioner Lindsay said Public Works may be coming forward with a discussion around funding for
maintenance of the 21 Road.

Commissioner Russell said he recently reviewed the Job Description for the Community Development

Director position. We are having trouble filling the position with the current Job Description. He would
like a Work Session to review.

In the Finance Department, Sabrina has been promoted to Financial Analyst. The Finance Director has
asked about allowing her to work remotely so she can complete work outside of regular hours. Chair
Doherty said it is up to Commissioner Russell. Commissioner Lindsay said we have policy regarding
remote work. As long as we follow policy, it is fine. We do not want to set a precedence for other
departments. All agreed it is up to Commissioner Russell. Commissioner Russell said he will approve it.

Correspondence
Commissioners reviewed. Much discussion regarding the EPA letter.

Commissioner Reports
Commissioner Russell
Nothing to report.

Commissioner Lindsay
Nothing to report.

Chair Doherty
Nothing to report.

Executive Session
Chair Doherty explained that the Executive Session is not needed today.

Chair Doherty responded to the request from the Boardman Fire Chief to form a committee. Chair
Doherty said he would consider the request, but that he does not respond well to threats, lies or

homophobic recalls and he is not going to begin now.

Adjourn 10:30 a.m.

Morrow County Board of Commissioner Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2022 Page5|5



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
' FOR MORROW COUNTY, OREGON

IN THE MATTER OF DECLARING

AUGUST 17, 2022 AS TERRY Resolution NO. R-2022-15
TALLMAN DAY FOR ALL OF ) o
MORROW COUNTY

WHEREAS, Morrow County recognizes that Terry Tallman gave many years of voluntary
service to Morrow County, including serving on the City of Boardman Planning
Commission, City of Boardman Mayor for five years, and County Judge of Morrow
County for 18 years; and '

WHEREAS, Morrow County further recognizes that Terry Tallman was the longest
serving Morrow County Judge in Morrow County history; and ’

WHEREAS, Morrow County further recognizes the giving nature of Terry Tallman,
through his tireless efforts to help those in need in Morrow County; and

WHEREAS, Morrow County further recognizes that Morrow County has become the
community it is today because of the voluntary work and dedication of Terry Tallman; and

BE I'T RESOLVED that August 17, 2022 shall be known by all Morrow County citizens
as Terry Tallman Day.

Dated this 17" day of August 2022

MORROW COUNTY
OF COMMISSIONERS

~Melissa Lindsay,_anmissioner

‘Don Russell, Commissioner




Good morning, my name is Lisa Pratt. | am a Morrow
County resident, and | live in the Boardman area.

On August 3™, 2022, Mike Hughes the Fire Chief for
Boardman Fire Rescue District attended the Board of
Commissioner meeting, where he spoke in the public
comment section of the meeting. Chief Hughes pointed
out that he feels that some of the commissioners are
being biased towards the Fire District and the community
of Boardman. After the meeting adjourned
Commissioner Doherty approached Chief Hughes in front
of multiple witnesses and stated that as long as he is a
commissioner, Chief Hughes will never be on the

agenda. So, my question to you commissioner Doherty,
how is this not being biased???

My second concern is on March 24t of this year, Morrow
County Health Department received a letter from the
Oregon Health Authority approving the ASA plan. In that
letter it stated that Oregon Health Authority encouraged

a stronger ASA plan. How is not utilizing all available



resources within our county, encouraging a

stronger ASA Plan?

My final concern: is as a growing county we should be
increasing our services, and making the strongest ASA
Plan using every available service and agency within our
county. The ASA plan should be rewritten with the inputl
from ALL EMS, Fire, Sheriff Office, Police, and cities
within our county. This plan should not just be a copy
and paste from 27 years ago. | feel some of the
commissioners are letting personal feelings and/or
relationships getting in the way of making the best
decision for the public safety for our county. As being a
Boardman resident, we will never get away from the 22-
mile ambulance drive to the hospital in Hermiston, so
why are we not trying to strengthen the prehospital care.
| can tell you for liability reasons | am glad | am trying to
increase services within our county then trying decrease
them. In this situation more is better than less......

Thank you for your time.



(For BOC Use)

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET ltem #
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 4, C.
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form) '

Presenter at BOC: Date submitted to reviewers:
Department: Sheriff's Office Requested Agenda Date: 08-17-2022
Short Title of Agenda Item:

(No acronyms please) RIMSCON 2022 (Dispatch System Training)

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[_] Order or Resolution Appointments
["] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[ Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

I I |1 I

[] Contract/Agreement Other
E] N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [H] Yes [ ] No
Reviewed By:
John A. Bowles 08-09-2022 Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
/\\J‘& Liaison Commissioner Required for all BOC meetings
J/ DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *[f appropriate
DATE

department of approval, then submit the request to the ROC for placement on the agenda.

*Allow | week for review (submit to all simultancously). When each office has notified the submitting

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 5 mw

€V 3-2L)-



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

This is the yearly training on the RIMS System that is the hub of the Sheriff's Office. This is the dispatch system
used to dispatch all county first responders. This training is held once a year and every year it has been held in
Reno. There is a lot of information covered in this training and our two dispatch supervisors go and receive the
training then come back, update and train our staff. Our staff has not attended this training since 2016. Going
forward I recommend the dispatch LT and Sgt attend this training at least every three years.

SEE ATTCHED Conference Agenda.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

Registration: 1950

Lodging: 1138

Travel: 498

Meals: ?

The costs are covered from the 911 Budget that is State Funded.

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S):

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3-25-22



8/9/22, 4:03 PM Confirmation - RIMSCON 2022 - 25th Annual Users Conference

Home Conference Passes
Conference Agendas
? Log Out

' Hotei and Travel v About Vv
Post Registration
Sun Ridge Systems, Inc.

2022 Annual Users Conference

Congratulations, you are now registered!

Your Confirmation Number is:
MYN4FJ6GL4F

You will receive an email with your registration details.

Print Invoice

| Add to Calendar |

Registration Summary

Review your registration information below

® Viewing in Pacific Time

Sarah Baker R

sbaker@co.morrow.or.us

Title Mobile

https://rimscon.sunridgesystems.com/event/2d33e576-5af8-41b3-a597-3e81961eeb02/confirmation?i=RzkFcaJxEUmzFUTscWUAIA8&locale=en-US

13



8/9/22, 4:03 PM Confirmation - RIMSCON 2022 - 25th Annual Users Conference

Sergeant 5419459240

Agency Role

Morrow County, OR Sheriff's Office Dispatch

Agenda
ltem Date Price
Admission Item
Tuesday Training Pass & $975.00
Annual RIMS User
Conference
Sessions
Tips and Tricks - Getting 10/11/22, 8:00 AM - $0.00
the Most out of RIMS 10/11/22, 8:45 AM PT
Surviving and Thriving in 10/11/22, 10:00 AM - $0.00
Chaos 10/11/22, 11:30 AM PT
System Admin (Non IT) - 10/11/22, 1:00 PM - $0.00
Keeping RIMS Up-to-Date  10/11/22, 1:45 PM PT
(Session 2)
Making the Most of CAD 10/11/22, 3:00 PM - $0.00
Incidents 10/11/22, 4:45 PM PT
Tuesday Evening Welcome  10/11/22, 6:00 PM - $0.00
Reception 10/11/22, 8:00 PM PT
Introduction and Opening  10/12/22, 8:30 AM - $0.00
Remarks 10/12/22, 9:00 AM PT
Wednesday Evening 10/12/22, 5:30 PM - $0.00
Dinner 10/12/22, 9:00 PM PT
Outside California 10/13/22, 1:15 PM - $0.00

Agencies Breakout Session  10/13/22, 2:15 PM PT

See you in...

(63 15 56 15

https://rimscon.sunridgesystems.com/event/2d33e576-5af8-41b3-a597-3e8f36 1eeb02/confirmation ?i=RzkFcaJxEUmzFUTscWUAIA&locale=en-US 2/3



8/9/22, 4:03 PM * Confirmation - RIMSCON 2022 - 25th Annual Users Conference

o, TSR g e SR
DAYS HOURS MINUTES SECONDS

| J

Privacy Policy

https://rimscon.sunridgesystems.com/event/2d33e576-5af8-41b3-a597-3e8f961eeb02/confirmation ?i=RzkFcaJxEUmzF UTscWUAIA&locale=en-US 3/3



(For BOC Use)

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET frem

Morrow County Board of Commissioners T J ,
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Kevin Ince Date submitted to reviewers: August 12, 2022
Department: Finance Dept Requested Agenda Date: August 17, 2022
Short Title of Agenda Item:

(No ilLI]‘I.‘JIT\I}]:-_I_}_’!]CLISL‘] Contract Amendment: Wolfe Consulting

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[ ] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[_] 1st Reading [ ]2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[_] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

I I Y I

[=] Contract/Agreement Other
D N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity: Wolfe Consulting LLC
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: 4/18/2022 Through: 10/21/2022
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [M] Yes [ | No
Reviewed By:
Kevin C. Ince 8/12/2022 Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Liaison Commissioner Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Kevin C. Ince 8/12/2022 Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE = \llyw 1 week for review (submit to all simultancously). When each office has notified the submitting
department of approval. ther submit the regnest to the BOC for nlacement on the acenda

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. Rev. 3.95.22

€V 3-20-,



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

Christa Wolfe, with Wolfe Consulting has requested an amendment to her existing professional services contract
with Morrow County to reflect the agreed upon changes in her scope of work.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

Amount is based on hours worked, as needed.

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)MOTION(S):

Motion to approve the contract amendment with Wolfe Consulting as presented.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3-25-22



FIRST AMENDMENT TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this 17th day of
August 2022 by and between the County of Morrow (“Client”) and Wolfe Consulting, LLC
(“Contractor”).

WHEREAS, Client and Contractor are parties to an Agreement dated April 4, 2022 (“Agreement”),
regarding the performance of financial support services related to budgeting, budget software,
accounting and reporting, and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend that Agreement to modify the original scope to include the
following specific activities.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do hereby agree as follows:
A. The Agreement is hereby amended to include the following in the ‘SERVICES’ section of ‘EXHIBIT

A—PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT SCOPE OF WORK:

FY 2021-22 Fiscal Year End Support — ad hoc assistance to the Finance
Director regarding year end closing process and preparation for the June 30,
2022 audit.

Open Gov Budget Support — assistance with configuration issues and chart
of accounts differences between Open Gov and Incode for the personnel
budget. Preparation assistance with the supplemental budget to adjust the
FY 2022-23 personnel budget.

B. Except as set forth in this First Amendment, the Agreement is unaffected and shall continue in
full force and effect in accordance with its terms. If there is a conflict between this First
Amendment and the Agreement or any earlier amendment, the terms of this First Amendment
will prevail.

CONTRA R

By: Title:_Partner Date: 8/12/22

Christa Bosserman Wolfe for Wolfe Consulting, LLC

Email Address: christa@wcportland.com

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Al

J|m Doherty, Chair

T - 2

Melissa Lindsay, Commission

Dated: August 17, 2022

Don Russell, Commissioner

Pagelof1



Independent Contractor Agreement

This Agreement is made between Morrow County ("Client") with a principal place of
business at 110 N Court St, Heppner, OR 97836 and Wolfe Consulting, LLC
("Contractor™).

1. Services to Be Performed
Contractor shall provide the following personal services: assistance with budgeting, new
budget software, accounting and reporting and other finance services as required, which is

further described in Exhibit A. Services will be provided remotely, unless specifically request by
the client.

2. Payment

In consideration for the services to be performed by Contractor, Client agrees to pay
Contractor at the following rate of $200.00 per hour. Consideration rates are on a
time and materials basis as specified in Exhibit A.

Contractor shall be paid within 15 days after Contractor submits an invoice to Client.
The invoice should include the following: an invoice number, the dates covered by the
invoice, and a summary of the work performed.

3. Expenses
Travel expense reimbursement is authorized for onsite services, providing those onsite
services are requested and authorized by Client in advance of travel.

4. Vehicles and Equipment

Client will not require Contractor to rent or purchase any equipment, product, or service
as a condition of entering into this Agreement.

Client will supply Contractor with a laptop and access to the appropriate files and folders to
perform the above stated services remotely.

5. Independent Contractor Status
Contractor is an independent contractor, and neither Contractor nor Contractor's
employees or contract personnel are, or shall be deemed, Client's employees. In its
capacity as an independent contractor, Contractor agrees and represents, and Client
agrees, as follows:
[Check all that apply]
[X] Contractor has the right to perform services for others during the term of this
Agreement,
[X] Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner, and method
by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed. Contractor shall
select, starting and quitting times, days of work, and order the work is performed.
[X ] Contractor has the right to hire assistants as subcontractors or to use employees to
provide the services required by this Agreement.
[X] Neither Contractor nor Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall be
required to wear any uniforms provided by Client.



[X] The services required by this Agreement shall be performed by Contractor,
Contractor's employees, or contract personnel, and Client shall not hire, supervise, or pay
any assistants to help Contractor.

[X] Neither Contractor nor Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall receive

any training from Client in the professional skills necessary to perform the services
required by this Agreement.

[X] Neither Contractor nor Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall be

required by Client to devote full time to the performance of the services required by this
Agreement.

6. Business Licenses, Permits, and Certificates

Contractor represents and warrants that Contractor and Contractor's employees and
contract personnel will comply with all federal, state, and local laws requiring drivers and
other licenses, business permits, and certificates required to carry out the services to be
performed under this Agreement.

7. State and Federal Taxes

Client will not:

= withhold FICA (Social Security and Medicare taxes) from Contractor's payments or
make FICA payments on Contractor's behalf

= make state or federal unemployment compensation contributions on Contractor's
behalf, or

= withhold state or federal income tax from Contractor's payments.

Contractor shall pay all taxes incurred while performing services under this Agreement-
including all applicable income taxes and, if Contractor is not a corporation, self-
employment (Social Security) taxes. Upon demand, Contractor shall provide Client with
proof that such payments have been made.

8. Fringe Benefits

Contractor understands that neither Contractor nor Contractor's employees or contract
personnel are eligible to participate in any employee pension, health, vacation pay, sick
pay, or other fringe benefit plan of Client.

9. Unemployment Compensation

Client shall make no state or federal unemployment compensation payments on behalf of
Contractor or Contractor's employees or contract personnel. Contractor will not be
entitled to these benefits in connection with work performed under this Agreement.

10. Workers' Compensation

Client shall not obtain workers' compensation insurance on behalf of Contractor
or Contractor's employees. If Contractor hires employees to perform any work
under this Agreement, Contractor will cover them with workers' compensation
insurance to the extent required by law and provide Client with a certificate of
workers' compensation insurance before the employees begin the work.

11. Insurance
Client shall not provide insurance coverage of any kind for Contractor or
Contractor's employees or contract personnel. Contractor shall obtain the

following insurance coverage and maintain it during the entire term of this
Agreement:



[Check all that apply.]

[ ] Automobile liability insurance for each vehicle used in the performance of this
Agreement - including owned, non-owned (for example, owned by Contractor's
employees), leased, or hired vehicies -- in the minimum amount of $50,000
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.

{X] Contractor shall provide liability insurance as required by State law. The
insurance shall also be of the type recognized as standard in this industry and shall
be no less than $100,000. Before commencing any work, Contractor shall provide
Client with proof of this insurance and with proof that Client has been made an
additional insured under the policies.

12. Indemnification

Contractor shall indemnify and hold Client harmless from loss or liability arising
errors or omissions from the Contractor performing services under this
Agreement.

13. Term of Agreement
This agreement will become effective when signed by both parties or on 4/18/2022
and will terminate on the earlier of:

*  October 21, 2022, unless extended by mutual written agreement of the parties, or

= the date Contractor completes the services required by this Agreement, or

¢ the date a party terminates the Agreement as provided below.

14. Terminating the Agreement
Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 30 days' written
notice to the other party of the intent to terminate.

15. Exelusive Agreement
This is the entire Agreement between Contractor and Client.

16. Modifying the Agreement
This Agreement may be modified only by a writing signed by both parties.

17. Resolving Disputes

If a dispute arises under this Agreement, the parties agree to first try to resolve the
dispute with the help of a mutually agreed-upon mediator in Morrow County, OR.
Any costs and fees other than attorney fees associated with the mediation shall be
shared equally by the parties. If it proves impossible to arrive at a mutually
satisfactory solution through mediation, the parties agree to submit the dispute to a
mutually agreed-upon arbitrator in Morrow County, OR. Judgment upon the award
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction to do so.
Costs of arbitration, including attorney fees, will be allocated by the arbitrator.

18. Confidentiality

Contractor acknowledges that it will be necessary for Client to disclose certain
confidential and proprietary information to Contractor in order for Contractor to
perform duties under this Agreement. Contractor acknowledges that disclosure to a
third party or misuse of this proprietary or confidential information would
irreparably harm Client.



Accordingly, Contractor will not disclose or use, either during or after the term of
this Agreement, any proprietary or confidential information of Client without
Client's prior written permission except to the extent necessary to perform services
on Client's behalf.

Proprietary or confidential information includes:

* the written, printed, graphic, or electronically recorded materials furnished by
Client for Contractor to use

* any written or tangible information stamped "confidential," "proprietary," or
with a similar legend, or any information that Client makes reasonable efforts to
maintain the secrecy of

* business or marketing plans or strategies, customer lists, operating procedures,
trade secrets, design formulas, know-how and processes, computer programs and
inventories, discoveries, and improvements of any kind, sales projections, and
pricing information

* information belonging to customers and suppliers of Client about whom
Contractor gained knowledge as a result of Contractor's services to Client, and

Upon termination of Contractor's services to Client, or at Client's request, Contractor
shall deliver to Client all materials in Contractor's possession relating to Client's
business with Contractor and services performed by Contractor for Client. Contractor
acknowledges that any breach or threatened breach of Clause 18 of this Agreement
will result in irreparable harm to Client for which damages would be an inadequate
remedy. Therefore, Client shall be entitled to equitable relief, including an injunction,
in the event of such breach or threatened breach of Clause 18 of this Agreement. Such

equitable relief shall be in addition to Client's rights and remedies otherwise available
at law.

19. Proprietary Information.

A. The product of all work performed under this Agreement ("Work Product"),
including without limitation all notes, reports, documentation, drawings, computer
programs, inventions, creations, works, devices, models, work-in-progress and
deliverables will be the sole property ofthe Client, and Contractor hereby assigns to the
Client all right, title and interest therein, including but not limited to all audiovisual,
literary, moral rights and other copyrights, patent rights, trade secret rights and other
proprietary rights therein. Contractor retains no right to use the Work Product and agree
not to challenge the validity of the Client's ownership in the Work Product.

20. No Partnership

This Agreement does not create a partnership relationship. Contractor does not have
authority to enter into contracts on Client's behalf.

21. Assignment and Delegation
Either Contractor or Client may assign rights and may delegate duties under this

Agreement.

22. Applicable Law



This Agreement will be governed by Oregon law, without giving effect to conflict of laws
principles.

23. Merger.

This contract and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the parties on
the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations,
oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Contract. No waiver, consent,
modification or change of terms of this Contract shall bind either party unless in writing
and signed by both parties and all necessary State approvals have been obtained. Such
waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific
instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure of Client to enforce any provision
of this Contract shall not constitute a waiver by Client of that or any other provision.

24. Notice.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, any communication between the
parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal
delivery, facsimile, or certified mail, or electronic email (with reply by other party
indicating receipt of electronic mail) to Contractor or Client at the address or number set
forth below of this Contract, or to such other addresses or numbers as either party may
hereafter indicate. Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed
to be given when receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine. To
be effective against County, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone
notice to County’s Contract Administrator. Any communication or notice by personal
delivery shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered. Any communication or
notice by electronic mail shall be deemed to be given when reply by other party is
received through electronic mail (automated delivery notification is insufficient for
delivery to be deemed as completed).

CONTRACTOR
By: : 4-4-2022
Title:_Partner Date:
7 7 —— ————
Christa Bosserman Wolfe for Wolfe Consulting, LLC
Email Address: Christa@wcportland.com Phone number: 903-631-9200

lo-

im Doherty, Wner
M\l\ /

Melissa Lindgﬁy, missioner

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ~ Dated: & —

Don Russell, Commissiorer

Attachments: [X] Exhibit A: Additional Description of Services to be Performed (check if applicable)



EXHIBIT A
PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
SCOPE OF WORK

PROPOSAL

Contractor shall provide on call finance support services to the County to support the budget process, the
new budget software, accounting and reporting, and other finance services as required.

Number of hours of service per week will be based on County’s need and Contractor’s availability.

SERVICES

The primary need expressed by the County Administrator is Interim Finance Director services, to ensure
the Finance Department maintains essential services (such as weekly check runs, budgetary compliance,
and required financial reporting) until a new permanent Finance Director can be onboarded. County is
estimating that the engagement may be up to 6 months in length.

Contractor shall provide the following services, as requested by the Client:

Interim Finance Support — This includes stepping into a vacancy in your organization and directing the
daily operations of the Department and the team. Includes all aspects of financial operations for the
Finance Department.

Audit Support —This includes schedule coordination, working with the independent audit firm, workpaper
preparation, review of staff or other consultant prepared workpapers, drafting schedules, drafting
financials, review of financials on behalf of the governmental entity, presenting and/or preparing
materials for audit committee or board meetings, and filing with GFOA.

Budget Support — This includes schedule coordination, meetings with management for development and
review, review of prior year and current year actuals, escalation factors for inflation, 3 year average of
prior year actuals, preparation of end of year projections, and preparation of new fiscal year budget.

Project Management — This includes financial or technology projects, consultant acts as Project Manager
on behalf of the governmental entity, provides leadership and oversight of the project, assists in the
identification of stakeholders and engages the stakeholders in the project, directs the work of staff
assigned to the project, works collaboratively with project partners/other contractors, holds weekly

project meetings — monitoring progress, deliverables, while providing solutions and timely updates to the
project sponsors.

General Consulting/Training ~ This includes all matters outside of the above described services, such as

general financial consulting services, training, and development. Includes financial best practices, process
improvements, and financial policies.

As value added to our clients, we also will provide a letter of recommendations on any potential
improvements or best practices regarding the Finance Department operations, internal controls, and
financial practices at the end of our engagement.

FEE SCHEDULE: TIME & MATERIALS BASIS

All services will be billed at $200.00 per hour. Work will be performed remotely unless requested by the
client and authorized in advance for onsite services. Travel for onsite is billable to the client for time,
plus expenses.



EXHIBIT A
PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor's compensation is subject to Consumer Price Index ("CPI") adjustments, to be applied
annually on January 1st. The amount of compensation may increase annually by the percentage change
in the West Region (West City Size B/ C 2.5 Million or less) Consumer Price Index of the US Dept. of Labor,
Bureau of Labor Statistics (https:// www.bls.gov/regions/west/data/xg-tables/ro9xg01.htm), based
upon the rate of change as stated from the last month reported to the same month of the preceding
year. In the event such Consumer Price Index {or a successor or substitute index) is not available, a
reliable governmental or other nonpartisan publication evaluating the information theretofore used in
determining the Consumer Price Index shall be used in lieu of such Consumer Price Index. Provided,
however, that in no event shall the compensation increase by greater than 5% per year.

EQUIPMENT & ACCESS

The County is to provide Wolfe Consulting, LLC with reliable access to the County network and systems as
needed in order to provide the services requested. Any County supplied equipment to access network
and systems would be returned to the County upon completion of services or termination of the contract.

PAYMENT

Payments are due and payable within 15 days. Invoices will be sent monthly.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

110 N Court St. * P.O. Box 788 Jim Doherty, Chair
Heppner, OR 97836 Melissa Lindsay, Commissioner
541-676-5613 Don Russell, Commissioner

WWW.CO.MmOIrrow.or.us

August 17, 2022

TO: Parties Involved in Property Transaction: 4N2509 AD, Tax Lots 300 & 400
FROM: Morrow County Board of Commissioners
RE: Granting of Signing Authority for Morrow'County- Property Purchase

During a regularly scheduled Morrow County Board of Commissioners meeting on August 17,
2022, the Morrow County Board of Commissioners approved the granting of authority for
Morrow County Chair Jim Doherty to sign documents related to the purchase of property by
Morrow County, described as the following property: 4N2509 AD, Tax Lots 300 & 400.

The Morrow County Board of Commissioners hereby delegate the authority to sign deeds,
easements, purchase agreements and other real property instruments related to the purchase or
acquisition of real property interests related to property described as: 4N2509 AD, Tax Lots 300

& 400. Morrow County Board of Commissioners agree to be bound by the agreements signed
related to the purchase of property described as: 4N2509 AD, Tax Lots 300 & 400.

Dated this 17th day of August, 2022

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MORROW COUNTY, OREGON

herty, Chalr

Mm

Melissa Lindsay, Comm sioner

Don Russell, Commissioner



"(For BOC Use) |
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET S

Morrow County Board of Commissioners é, 6 "
(Page 1 of 2) e

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Sandi POintCI‘ Date submitted to reviewers: 08/09/2022
Department: Public Works - Airport Requested Agenda Date: 08/17/2022

Sh‘-‘f“ Title O_f Agend_a [tem: Lexington Airport Taxiway D Reconstruction Design Phase CRITICAL OREGON AIRPORT
(No acronvims please) RELIEF GRANT PROGRAM AGREEMENT

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

L OO0

[m] Contract/Agreement Other
I:] N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity: Oregon Department of Aviation
Contractor/Entity Address: 3040 25th Street SESalem, OR 97302
Effective Dates — From: June 8, 2022 Through: June 8, 2023
Total Contract Amount: §13 735.04 Budget Line:r5.250-5-40-4311
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [M] Yes [] No
Reviewed By:
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Administrator Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE

depavtment of approval. then submit the veguest to the BOC for placement on the aoend:.

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.

Rev: 3-25-22

*Allow | week for review (submit to all simultaneously). When cach office has notified the submitting



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

Due to the Airport Improvement Program (AIP) the disbursement of funds is funneled through the Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP) which Morrow Co. Lexington Airport is recipient/qualifies for these funds for small
municipal airports. In the current Layout Plan it is to complete the Taxiway D & Apron Reconstruction Design
Phase. Century West is our current Aviation Engineer. They help to facilitate all our projects and that are up to
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) standards. This document currently is to accept their work on the Design
Phase of the Taxiway D & Apron Reconstruction (Design). This is to reconstruct the surface, underdrains, install
reflector and pavement markings. Design includes bidding process along with contracting procedures. The
funding breakdown is as follows.

FAA (90%) - $137,347.47.

Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) Critical Oregon Airport Relief (COAR) Grant (9%)  $13,735.04
County (1%) - $1,526.12, NOTE: This is in and has been budgeted.

Included you will find the CIP date sheet that is giving a short scope of the project.

Included you will find the overall layout to familiarize yourself with the project.
Included the Agreement with Century West Authorizing them to do the Design for the project.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

ODA COAR Grant (9%)  $13,735.04 Revenue 205-250-3-30-3620

Expenditure will be 205-250-5-40-4311

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S):

Motion to accept the agreement with COAR/ ODA and Morrow Co in the amount of $137,347.47
for the Design phase of the Taxiway D & Apron Reconstruction.

Note: Wants elected official to sign.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3-25-22



CIP DATA SHEET

AIRPORT

Lexington Airport

[foeb [ os9

‘EROJECT DESCRIPTION

T et ]

JUSTIFICATION:

| This project will significantly reduce the amount of potential FOD generation
by reconstructing deteriorating pavement. Furthermore, the project will increase the life of airport pavement
previously supported under AlP.

COST ESTIMATE:
ADMINISTRATION:| $5,500 1. Construction  [$ 4|3
ENGINEERING:|$ 161,027 2 S 5[5
INSPECTION:|$ 3 $ TOTAL:{$ 166.527
__Federal( %) $ 149,874 State!s Local (%) S 16,653
SPONSOR VERIFICATION: |Date (see instruction sheet or attached comments for more information)
For each and every 2015 -Date of approved ALP with project shown
project as applicable TBD -Date of environmental determination (ROD, FONSI, CatEx)
N/A -Date of land acquisition or signed purchase agreement
2019 -Date of pavement maintenance program
TBD -Date of Benefit Cost Analysis (BCA) as required

X
{
SPONSOR'S SIGNATURE: (\ Ny (7&0

DATE: 03/30/ 202!

PRINTED NAME: Eric Imes TITLE: Public Works Director
PHONE NUMBER: 541-989-9500 EMAIL:  eimes@cC0.Mmorrow.or.us
FAA USE ONLY
PREAPP NUMBER GRANTNUMBER | NPIAS CODE WORK CODE FAAPRIORITY. | FEDERALS




Swist

AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION FOR
ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES

By this Agreement, effective upon signing of all parties, Morrow County (Client) authorizes
Century West Engineering Corporation (Engineer) to carry out and complete the Scope of Services
in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in the Master Agreement dated May 22, 2019,
the ENGINEERING CONSULTING TERMS AND CONDITIONS, and the following additional attachments: FAA
Required Contract Provisions.

Project: Taxiway D Reconstruction (Design)
Project No.: 12414.007.01
Scope of Services: See attached.

Opinion of Probable Cost:

$161,027 Lump Sum not to exceed specified

amount without prior authorization
Morrow/CoZ{y
By: il
&

by Client.
Title:

Century West Engineering Corporation
By: T p—— <

Title:_PPESIIENT
Date: Juvme @ 2023 Date: a,/ z 2022




a) Listing of all product components and subcomponents that are not comprised of 100
percent U.S. domestic content (Excludes products listed on the FAA Nationwide Buy
American Waivers Issued listing and products excluded by Federal Acquisition
Regulation Subpart 25.108; products of unknown origin must be considered as non-
domestic products in their entirety).

b) Cost of non-domestic components and subcomponents, excluding labor costs associated
with final assembly at place of manufacture.

¢) Percentage of non-domestic component and subcomponent cost as compared to total
“item” component and subcomponent costs, excluding labor costs associated with final
assembly at place of manufacture.

Type 4 Waiver — Total cost of project using U.S. domestic source product exceeds the total project cost
using non-domestic product by 25 percent. The required documentation for a Type 4 of waiver is:

a) Detailed cost information for total project using U.S. domestic product
b) Detailed cost information for total project using non-domestic product

False Statements: Per 49 USC § 47126, this certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of
the Federal Aviation Admmlstratlon and the makmg ofa false fictitious or fraudulent cerjifi cation may

June Q,M&

Date

Wlorrow C,omi-w

Company Name

Guidelines for Contract Provisions for Obligated Sponsors and Airport Improvement Program Projects
Issued on June 19, 2018 Page 11




Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-9S9-00017

GRANT AGREEMENT
CRITICAL OREGON AIRPORT RELIEF GRANT PROGRAM AGREEMENT

Lexington Airport
Project Name: Lexington Airport - Taxiway D Reconstruction: Phase 1 - Design

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and through
its Department of Aviation, (“ODA”), and Morrow County, a public entity acting by and through its elected
officials, (“Recipient”), (ODA and Recipient, collectively the “Parties”).

BACKGROUND

A. The State of Oregon has established the Aviation System Action Program (the “Program”) pursuant to
2015 Ore. Laws Ch. 700 (H.B. 2075).

B. Among the purposes of the Program are:

i. Assisting airports in Oregon with match requirements for Federal Aviation Administration Airport
Improvement Grants;

ii. Making grants for emergency preparedness and infrastructure projects in accordance with the
Oregon Resilience Plan or the Oregon Aviation Plan; and

iii. Making grants for services critical or essential to aviation; aviation-related business development;
and airport development for local economic development.

C. Recipient applied for a grant through the Program to undertake the project described in Exhibit A,
attached and incorporated by this reference (the “Project”). The Project will benefit the Morrow County (the
“Airport”).

D. ODA approved a grant in the maximum amount of $13,735.04 and is willing to provide the grant to
Recipient for the Project on the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

TERMS OF AGREEMENT

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the date that it is fully executed and approved
as required by applicable law (the “Effective Date”). Unless otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds
under this Agreement shall be available for Project Costs incurred on or after the Effective Date through the
date that is two years after the Effective Date (the “Availability Termination Date”). No Grant Funds are
available for any expenditure before the Effective Date or after the Availability Termination Date .

2. Agreement Documents. This Agreement consists of this document and the following documents:

a. Exhibit A: Project Description, Milestones, Schedule and Budget

b. Exhibit B: Application and documents provided by Recipient to ODA
prior to the execution of this Agreement

1



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:.COAR-2022-9S9-00017

c. Exhibit C: Subcontractor Insurance Requirements

Exhibits A, B, and C are incorporated by reference into this Agreement and are attached hereto . In the event
of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, the language in the
document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of each of the documents comprising
this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence to lowest precedence: This Agreement without
Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds; Match; Reimbursement Rate.

a. Project Cost: The total Project Cost eligible for COAR funding is estimated at $152,608.63. If the
Recipient separately receives AIP grant funds for the Project from the FAA, Project Costs shall include
only that portion that is eligible for COAR funding.

b. Grant Funds; Match: Match provided through an FAA AIP Grant shall only include the portion of costs
that are eligible for COAR funding. The Recipient’s eligible AIP Grant for purposes of this project is
$137,347.47 or . In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, ODA shall provide grant
funds to Recipient in an amount not to exceed $13,735.04 or 9.00% of the Remaining Project Cost,
whichever is less (the “Grant Funds”). Recipient shall be responsible to provide matching funds, in the
amount of $1,526.12 or 1.00%, whichever is less (“Match”), for their portion of all other Eligible Costs as
calculated in Exhibit A, Table 2 (Funding Breakdown).

¢. Reimbursement Rate: ODA shall reimburse Recipient for 9% of the amount of Eligible Costs,
provided that in no event shall the total amount reimbursed exceed the sum of $13,735.04 ODA will

withhold five percent (5%) from each disbursement as Retainage (the “Retainage”), which is payable as
provided in Section 9.c.

4. Project Implementation and Completion. Recipient shall impilement and complete the project in
accordance with the plans and specifications and all documents or plans included in Exhibit A, incorporated
herein, as they may be revised or modified with the approval of ODA. In accordance with the provisions of
Section 6, Recipient shall notify ODA in writing of all changes in the project activities prior to performing any
changes and shall not perform any changes without written prior approval from ODA.

5. Grant Funds.

a. Use of Grant Funds; Grant Award; No Exclusive Right. The Grant Funds shall be used solely for
the Project described in Exhibit A and shall not be used for any other purpose. No Grant Funds will be
disbursed for any changes to the Project unless ODA approves such changes pursuant to the Project
Change Procedures in Section 6 or pursuant to the Amendment provisions of Section 15.d.

i. Recipient agrees to substantially initiate the Project within six (6) months of the Effective Date.

ii. Inaccepting the Grant Funds, the Recipient, its contractors, lessees, and their successors and
assigns covenant not to sell, transfer, or convey any exclusive right to use the Airport, its
improvements or its services at any time during the 20 year-period following the Effective Date.



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-9S59-00017

b. Eligible Project Costs. The Grant Funds may only be used for Recipient’s actual Project Costs to
the extent those costs are (a) reasonable, necessary and directly used for the Project; (b) permitted by
generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ,
as reasonably interpreted by ODA, to be capitalized to an asset that is part of the Project; and (c) eligible
or permitted uses of the Grant Funds under State of Oregon law and this Agreement. Any payment of
principal due under any interim financing agreement associated with or executed for the Project will be
deemed an Eligible Project Cost only if ODA (i) specifically determines the costs are reasonable,
necessary and directly used for the Project as provided by this subsection; and (ii) provides the Agency’s
prior written consent before any claim of reimbursement is submitted.

c. Ineligible Project Costs. The Grant Funds may not be used for any operating or working capital
expenditures that Recipient charges to the Project; or for any maintenance costs of the Project; or for any
payments made to related parties (as described in Section 13.b. or as prohibited under Section 13.c.) or
for any loans or grants to be made to third parties, except as provided in Section 5.b.

d. Request for Reimbursements. ODA will disburse Grant Funds to the Recipient on an expense
reimbursement or cost-incurred basis. To obtain reimbursement for Eligible Project Costs, Recipient
shall submit to ODA’'s Program Coordinators no more frequently than monthly a Request for
Reimbursement (Form 109-007), the form of which is incorporated by reference, together with (i) the
Milestone Progress Report for that month as required by Section 8.a. and (ii) invoices and other
supporting documentation that ODA may request in its reasonable discretion. In no case will ODA
reimburse a Request for Reimbursement that is not accompanied with the Milestone Progress Report
required by Section 8.a.

6. Project Change Procedures. Project change orders are only for changes to the schedule. Recipient

shall submit a Request for Change Order (Form 109-009), the form of which is hereby incorporated by
reference, to ODA’'s Program Coordinators:

a. If Recipient anticipates Project milestones will be delayed by more than ninety (90) days from the
milestones shown in Exhibit A, Recipient shall submit a Request for Change Order (Form 109-009) to
ODA's Project Coordinators as soon as Recipient becomes aware of any possible delay . The Request
for Change Order must be submitted prior to the milestone completion date shown in Exhibit A.

b. Recipient shall not proceed with any changes to Project scope or delivery schedule prior to the
execution of an amendment to this Agreement executed in response to ODA's approval of a Request for
Change. A Request for Change Order may be rejected at the discretion of ODA. ODA may choose to
request review by the State Aviation Board. Changes will not include additional costs or reimbursement
requests in excess of the maximum grant award stated in Section 3.

7. Inspection. ODA may inspect the Project on a periodic basis and at Project completion. ODA may
conduct any or all of its Project inspections by an onsite walkthrough inspection or, in lieu of a walkthrough

inspection, by reviewing date-stamped photographs or video or by using other means satisfactory to ODA in
its sole discretion.

8. Reporting.



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-9S9-00017

a. Milestone Progress Reports. On or before the 15th of every month until the Project completion date
or the Availability Termination Date, whichever is earlier, Recipient shall submit to ODA's Program
Coordinators a completed Milestone Progress Report (Form 109-008), the form of which is incorporated
by reference, that reports the Project’s progress for the preceding month.

b. Final Report. Within ninety (90) days from the Project completion date, Recipient shall submit a

written report (the “Final Report”) to ODA's Program Coordinators that includes the following information
at the minimum:

i.  The number of jobs created or retained both during construction and after Project completion as a
direct result of the Project;

ii. The number of jobs projected in the Recipient's Project application;
iii. Data on the methodology that measures the Project’s success as described in the grant application .

Recipient’s obligation to provide this report survives expiration of this Agreement. Recipient shall use Final
Report form, which Recipient must also sign.

9. Disbursement and Recovery of Grant.

a. Disbursement Generally. ODA shall reimburse Eligible Project Costs that Recipient incurs, subject
to Section 5, up to the maximum amount of Grant Funds provided in Section 3. Reimbursements shall be

made by ODA within forty-five (45) days of ODA's approval of a Request for Reimbursement from
Recipient.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. ODA's obligation to disburse Grant Funds to Recipient

is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the following conditions
precedent:

i.  ODA has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments, or other expenditure authority
sufficient to allow ODA, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to make the
disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including without limitation
completion of all prerequisites for reimbursement.

iii. Recipient has provided to ODA a Request for Reimbursement, together with a Milestone
Progress Report, in accordance with Section 5. Recipient must submit its final Request for
Reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than ninety (90) days after the
earlier of completion of the Project or the Availability Termination Date. Failure to submit the final
Request for Reimbursement within ninety (90) days after the completion of the Project or the
Availability Termination Date could result in non-payment.

iv. Recipient agrees to submit an IRS form W-9 form, and any other required documentation

requested by ODA in order to input Recipient into ODA's financial system for the disbursement of
Grant Funds.

c. Retainage. ODA will withhold five percent (5%) from each disbursement for the duration of the

Project schedule (the “Retainage”). ODA will release the cumulative Retainage to Recipient only after
ODA certifies the Project as complete.



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-959-00017

d. General Right to withhold Payments. ODA reserves the right to withhold payment of funds if there
are unresolved audit findings, or inadequate information concerning Recipient's Project activities. ODA
reserves the right to reallocate any portion of the Grant Funds that ODA estimates the Recipient will use .

e. Recovery of Grant Funds. Any Grant Funds disbursed to Recipient under this Agreement that are
expended in violation of one or more of the provisions of this Agreement (“Misexpended Funds”) or that
remain unexpended on the earlier of the Availability Termination Date or termination of this Agreement
must be returned to ODA. Recipient shall return all Misexpended Funds to ODA promptly after ODA’s
written demand and no later than fifteen (15) days after ODA's written demand. Recipient shall return all
unexpended Grant Funds to ODA within fourteen (14) days after the earlier of the Availability Termination
Date or termination of this Agreement.

10. General Representations and Warranties of Recipient. Recipient represents and warrants to ODA
as follows:

a. Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the
State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds. Recipient has full power, authority and legal
right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its obligations hereunder, and the making and
performance by Recipient of this Agreement (1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of
Recipient and (2) do not and will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order
of any court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision of Recipient’s
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not result in the breach of, or
constitute a default or require any consent under any other agreement or instrument to which Recipient is
a party or by which Recipient or any of its properties may be bound or affected . No authorization,
consent, license, approval of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or
regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient of
this Agreement.

b. Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Recipient and
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in accordance with its terms
subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’
rights generally.

c. No Solicitation. Recipient’s officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or parties to
subagreements. No member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon
employee shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom .

d. No Debarment. Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or voluntarily
excluded from any federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or
voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any state or federal agency . Recipient agrees
to notify ODA immediately if it is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded from any federally assisted
transaction for any reason or if circumstances change that may affect this status, including without
limitation upon any relevant indictments or convictions of crimes.

e. Compliance with Oregon Taxes, Fees and Assessments. Recipient is, to the best of the

undersigned’s knowledge, and for the useful life of the Project will remain, current on all applicable state
and local taxes, fees and assessments.



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-959-00017

11. Special Warranty of Recipient To Maintain and Operate the Airport & Segregate Income.

12.

13.

a. Recipient warrants that it shall maintain and operate the Airport as an airport in a usable,

safe, and orderly manner at all times for a period of at least 20 years from the Effective Date. If

this condition is not met, Recipient shall immediately reimburse to ODA all Grant Funds in an amount
equal to the total amount of Grant Funds provided for the Project, divided by twenty (20), multiplied by the
difference between twenty (20) and the number of years that the Airport remained open after the Effective
Date. By way of example only, if $100,000 in Grant Funds are distributed and Recipient closes the
Airport after only seven years of the required 20-year operating period, then Recipient must reimburse
ODA $65,000 of Grant Funds ($100,000/20 years = $5,000; $5,000 x 13 years = $65,000).

b. Recipient also warrants and agrees that all income derived from the Airport shall be
deposited into a segregated account for a period of at least 20 years from the Effective Date,
and these funds shall be used only for the operation, maintenance or capital improvement of
the Airport.

Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.

a. Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper and

complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to this Agreement and the
Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted accounting principles, generally accepted
governmental auditing standards, and state minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations.
Recipient shall ensure that each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these
requirements. ODA, the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (the “Secretary”) and their duly
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and records of Recipient
that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of
making audits and examinations. In addition, ODA, the Secretary and their duly authorized
representatives may make and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books,
documents, papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of ODA, and the
Secretary to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all vehicles, real property, facilities and
equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the Project, and any transportation services rendered by
Recipient. Nothing herein is meant to be or will be interpreted to be a waiver of any protection against
disclosure of records or communication otherwise provided by law, including protection provided by
attorney-client privilege or the attorney work product doctrine.

b. Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers,
and records, that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds or the Project until the date that is six
(6) years following the Availability Termination Date.

c. Expenditure Records. Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds disbursed by
ODA under this Agreement. Recipient shall create and maintain all expenditure records in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and in sufficient detail to permit ODA to verify how the
Grant moneys were expended.

This Section 12 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Recipient Subagreements and Procurements.



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-959-00017

a. Subagreements generally. Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors or
subcontractors (collectively, “subagreements”) for performance of the Project.

All subagreements must be in writing, executed by Recipient and must incorporate and pass
through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other party or parties to the

subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve Recipient of its responsibilities under
this Agreement.

Recipient shall require all of its contractors performing work under this Agreement to name ODA
as a third party beneficiary of Recipient’s subagreement with the Contractor and to name ODA as
an additional obligee on contractors’ bonds.

Upon ODA's request, Recipient shall provide ODA with a copy of any signed subagreement, as
well as identify all owners of the sub-recipient, contractor, or subcontractor with whom Recipient
entered into the subagreement. Recipient must report to ODA any substantial breach of a term or
condition of a subagreement relating to this Agreement within ten (10) days of Recipient
discovering the breach.

b. Conflicts of Interest; Private Recipients. If Recipient is not a public body, as defined in ORS
174.109, Recipient shall not award, enter into, or otherwise participate in any subagreement if a conflict

of interest, real or apparent, would arise. Such a conflict arises when any of the following would be a party
to the subagreement:

An employee, officer, or agent of the Recipient (“Recipient Person”);

A Recipient Person’s spouse, domestic partner, parent, stepparent, child, sibling, stepsibling,
son-in-law or daughter-in-law;

The parent, stepparent, child, sibling, stepsibling, son-in-law or daughter-in-law of the spouse or
domestic partner of a Recipient Person;

Any individual for whom a Recipient Person has a legal support obligation; or

An organization in which any of the individuals identified in (i) through (iv) is a partner, member, or
employee or from which the individual otherwise receives a financial benefit.

c. Conflicts of Interest; Public Recipients. If Recipient is a public body, as defined in ORS 174.109,

Recipient's public officials shall comply with Oregon’s government ethics laws, ORS 244.010 et seq., as
those laws may be subsequently amended.

d. Subagreement indemnity; insurance.



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-959-00017

Recipient shall require its contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) that are not units of local
government as defined in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 190.003, if any, to indemnify,
defend, save and hold harmless the State of Oregon, the Oregon Aviation Board and it
members, the Oregon Department of Aviation and its officers, employees and agents from
and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including
attorneys’ fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (“Claims”),
to the extent such Claims are caused, or alleged to be caused by the negligent or willful
acts or omissions of Recipient’s contractor or any of the officers, agents, employees or
subcontractors of the contractor. It is the specific intention of the Parties that ODA shall,
in all instances, except to the extent Claims arise from the negligent or willful acts or
omissions of ODA, be indemnified for all Claims caused or alleged to be caused by the
contractor or subcontractor.

Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient’s contractor or subcontractor,
nor any attorney engaged by Recipient's contractor or subcontractor, shall defend any claim in the
name the State of Oregon or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal
representative of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written consent of the
Oregon Attorney General. The State of Oregon may, at any time at its election, assume its own
defense and settlement in the event that it determines that Recipient’s contractor is prohibited
from defending the State of Oregon, or that Recipient’s contractor is not adequately defending the
State of Oregon’s interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in
the best interests of the State of Oregon to do so. The State of Oregon reserves all rights to
pursue claims it may have against Recipient's contractor if the State of Oregon elects to assume
its own defense.

Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that are not units of
local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain insurance of the types and in
the amounts provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement.

e. Procurements for Public Recipients. If Recipient is a public body, as defined in ORS 174.109,
Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services for the Project under
procedures that comply with Oregon law, including all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public
Contracting Code and rules, ensuring that:

all applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their implementing
regulations are included in each competitive procurement;

all procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open competition; and

procurements exclude the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state or geographic
preference in the evaluation of bids or proposals (with exception of locally controlled licensing
requirements).

f. Procurements for Private Recipients. If Recipient is not a public body, as defined in ORS 174.109:



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-9S9-00017

i. For procurements over $25,000, Recipient must solicit quotes or bids from at least three sources.
If three quotes or bids are not reasonably available, fewer will suffice. In either case, Recipient
shall retain, and provide upon ODA's request, documentation of the bidding and selection
process for all procurements over $25,000, including Recipient's efforts to obtain the quotes or
bids.

ii. Recipient may not artificially divide or fragment a procurement so as to reduce the procurement
amount below the $25,000 threshold designated by this section.

14. Termination and ODA Rights Upon Termination.
a. Mutual Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of the Parties.

b. Termination by ODA. ODA may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written notice to
Recipient, or at such later date as may be established by ODA, under any of the following circumstances:

i. If Recipient fails to pay its share of the Project costs;

ii. If Recipient fails to provide services or funds called for by this Agreement within the time specified
herein;

iii. If Recipient fails to perform any of its other obligations under this Agreement, and that failure
continues for a period of 10 calendar days after the date ODA delivers Recipient written notice
specifying such failure. The ODA may agree in writing to an extension of time if it determines
Recipient instituted and has diligently pursued corrective action;

iv. If any false or misleading representation is made by or on behalf of Recipient in this Agreement or
in any document provided by Recipient related to this Agreement or the Project;

v. If ODA fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure
authority sufficient to allow ODA, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to
continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement;

vi. If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project work under this Agreement is prohibited or if ODA is prohibited from
paying for such Project work from the planned funding source; or

vii. If, in the sole opinion of ODA, the Project would not produce results that are commensurate with
the further expenditure of funds.

c. ODA’s Rights upon Termination. Upon termination under Section 14(a) or Section 14(b) above,
ODA may:

i. Terminate ODA's commitment and obligation to make any further disbursements of Grant Funds;
ii. Require Recipient to immediately repay ODA all disbursed Grant Funds; and

iii. For termination on any of the grounds set forth in Section 14(b)(i)-(iv), bar Recipient from applying
to ODA for future assistance.

ODA's remedies are cumulative and are in addition to any other rights or remedies available at law or
in equity.



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:.COAR-2022-9S9-00017

15. GENERAL PROVISIONS:

a. Contribution.

If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort as now or
hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (“Third Party Claim”) against ODA or Recipient with respect to
which the other Party may have liability, the notified Party must promptly notify the other Party in
writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all
legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the
defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own
choosing. Receipt by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful
opportunity for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third
Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party’s liability with
respect to the Third Party Claim.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which ODA is jointly liable with Recipient (or would be if
joined in the Third Party Claim), ODA shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including
attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred
and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of
ODA on the one hand and of the Recipient on the other hand in connection with the events which
resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant
equitable considerations. The relative fault of ODA on the one hand and of Recipient on the other
hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent,
knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances
resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. ODA's contribution amount in
any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law,
including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if ODA had sole liability in the
proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with ODA (or would be if
joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including
attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred
and paid or payable by ODA in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of
Recipient on the one hand and of ODA on the other hand in connection with the events which
resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of ODA on the other
hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent,
knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances
resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Recipient’s contribution
amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the
proceeding.

b. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. Recipient shall, to the full extent permitted by the Oregon
Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, indemnify and hold ODA harmless from all liability of

whatsoever nature, and for any costs, fees or expenses that ODA may incur from Recipient’s performance of
this Agreement.

10



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-9S9-00017

c. Dispute Resolution. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this
Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or arbitrator (for
non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation.

d. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written instrument signed by both
Parties and approved as required by applicable law.

e. Duplicate Payment. Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of duplicate, overlapping
or multiple payments for the same work performed under this Agreement from any agency of the State of
Oregon or the United States of America or any other party, organization or individual.

f. No Third Party Beneficiaries. ODA and Recipient are the only Parties to this Agreement and are the only
Parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be
construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a

third person is individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary of
the terms of this Agreement.

g. Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any communications between the
Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email
or mailing the same, postage prepaid, to Recipient Contact or ODA Contact at the address or number set
forth on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as either party may
hereafter indicate pursuant to this section. Any communication or notice personally delivered shall be
deemed to be given when actually delivered. Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be
deemed to be given when receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be
effective against ODA, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to ODA Contact.
Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the recipient of the email acknowledges
receipt of the email. Any communication or notice mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.

h. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any claim,
action, suit or proceeding (collectively, “Claim”) between ODA (or any other agency or department of the
State of Oregon) and Recipient that arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted
solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon. In no event shall this
section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense or immunity, whether
sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the eleventh amendment to the Constitution
of the United States or otherwise, from any Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. Each party hereby
consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon, waives any
objection to venue, and waives any claim that such forum is an inconvenient forum.

i. Compliance with Law. Recipient shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Project including, but not limited to, the
provisions of ORS 319.020 and OAR 738 Divisions 124 and 125 where applicable by this Agreement,
incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Agreement. In addition, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Recipient expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964;
(i) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws;
and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and
regulations.

1



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-959-00017

j- Costs and Expenses Related to Employment of Individuals; Insurance; Workers’ Compensation.
Recipient is responsible for all costs and expenses related to its employment of individuals to perform the
work under this Agreement, including but not limited to retirement contributions, workers' compensation,
unemployment taxes, and state and federal income tax withholding. In addition, Recipient's subcontractors, if
any, and all employers working under this Agreement are subject employers under the Oregon Workers'
Compensation Law and shall comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide the required Workers’
Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Employer’s liability
insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 must be included. Recipient shall ensure that each
of its subrecipient(s), contractor(s), and subcontractor(s) complies with these requirements.

k. Independent Contractor. Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent contractor and not as
an agent or employee of ODA. Recipient has no right or authority to incur or create any obligation for or
legally bind ODA in any way. ODA cannot and will not control the means or manner by which Recipient
performs the Project, except as specifically set forth in this Agreement. Recipient is responsible for
determining the appropriate means and manner of performing the Project. Recipient acknowledges and
agrees that Recipient is not an “officer’, “employee”, or “agent” of ODA, as those terms are used in ORS
30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the contrary.

l. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected,
and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not
contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.

m. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of
which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all

Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Agreement so executed shall
constitute an original.

n. Integration and Waiver. This Agreement, and attached exhibits constitute the entire Agreement between
the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral
or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No waiver, consent, modification or change of
terms of this Agreement shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by both Parties and all necessary
approvais have been obtained. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be effective only
in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure of ODA to enforce any provision of this
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by ODA of that or any other provision.

0. Questions; Program Coordinators. Questions regarding this Agreement may be
directed to:

Oregon Department of Aviation

Attn: Program Coordinators: Cathy Clark, or Andria Abrahamson, or each of their successors
3040 25th Street SE
Salem, OR 97302

Cathy Clark, Program Coordinator

cathy.rb.clark@aviation.state.or.us
503-378-2894

12



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-9S9-00017

Andria Abrahamson, Program Coordinator
andria.abrahamson@aviation.state.or.us
503-378-4881

Heather Peck, Program Manager

heather.peck@aviation.state.or.us
503-378-3168

In the absence of any of the above-named individuals during the term of this Agreement, ODA shall notify the
Recipient in writing of a substitute contact.

13



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-959-00017

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

14



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:.COAR-2022-9S59-00017

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that its signing representatives have
read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms and conditions.

The Director of the Department of Aviation or his designee is authorized to act on behalf of State in

approving and executing this Agreement.

The State Aviation Board approved the COAR funding request and delegated authority to the Director of the

Oregon Department of Aviation to enter into Agreement.

Morrow County by and through its elected officials

ignated representative)

Name Jim Doherty, Chair, Board of Commissioners

(printed)

Date August 17, 2022

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(If required in local process)

By

(Recipient's Legal Counsel)

Date

Recipient Contact:

Sandi Pointer, Management Assistant
365 W. Hwy 74

Lexington, Oregon, 97839

(541) 989-8166
spointer@co.morrow.or.us

15

STATE OF OREGON, by and through its Oregon
Department of Aviation

By
Director

Name
(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150000)

By
Department of Justice

Date

ODA Contacts:

Cathy Clark, Program Coordinator
3040 25th Street SE

Salem, OR 97302

503-378-2894
cathy.rb.clark@aviation.state.or.us

Andria Abrahamson, Program Coordinator
3040 25th Street SE

Salem, OR 97302

503-378-4881
andria.abrahamson@aviation.state.or.us



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-959-00017

EXHIBIT A
Project Description, Milestones, Schedule and Budget

Application Number: COAR-2022-959-00017
Project Name: Lexington Airport - Taxiway D Reconstruction: Phase 1 - Design

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Reconstruction of Taxiway D due to poor pavement condition.

B. PROJECT MILESTONES AND SCHEDULE

Milestones are used for evaluating performance on the Project as described in the Agreement . Milestones
cannot be changed without an amendment to the Agreement.

If Recipient anticipates that Project milestones will be delayed by more than ninety (90) days, Recipient
shall submit a Request for Change Order, as described in Section 6 of the Agreement, to the ODA Project
Coordinators as soon as Recipient becomes aware of any possible delay. The Request for Change order
must be submitted before the Milestone completion date shown in Table 1 below.

The anticipated start date of the Project is: 01/01/22

The anticipated completion date of the Project is: 09/30/24

Table 1: Milestones

Milestone Description Eslimpted Estimated
P Start Completion

Date Date

1. FAA Grant Award 01/01/22 07/08/22

2. 30% Submittal 07/08/22 08/19/22

3. 90% Submittal 08/19/22 12/02/22

4, 100% Submittal 12/02/22 02/03/23

5. Bid Advertisement 02/03/23 03/03/23

6. Bid Opening 03/03/23 04/03/23

16



| 7. | FAA Grant Closeout

Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-959-00017

| 04/03/23 | 09/30/24 |

Table 2: Funding Breakdown

1 Grant Award Amount $13,735.04

2 Recipient Match (minimum 10% of Total Project Cost and any $1,526.12
portion of the Project which is not covered by Grant Funds.)

3 TOTAL PROJECT COST $152,608.63

17



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No.:COAR-2022-9S9-00017

EXHIBIT C
Subcontractor Insurance Requirements

GENERAL.

Recipient shall require its first tier contractor(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS
190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND AMOUNTS and meeting the
requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR
CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before the contractors perform under contracts
between Recipient and the contractors (the "Subcontracts"), and ii) maintain the insurance in full force
throughout the duration of the Subcontracts. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies
or entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of
Oregon and that are acceptable to Recipient. Recipient shall not authorize contractors to begin work
under the Subcontracts until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall
incorporate appropriate provisions in the Subcontracts permitting it to enforce contractor compliance
with the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance.
Examples of "reasonable steps” include issuing stop work orders (or the equivalent) until the insurance
is in full force or terminating the Subcontracts as permitted by the Subcontracts, or pursuing legal action
to enforce the insurance requirements. In no event shall Recipient permit a contractor to work under a
Subcontract when the Recipient is aware that the contractor is not in compliance with the insurance
requirements. As used in this section, a “first tier” contractor is a contractor with which the Recipient

directly enters into a contract. It does not include a subcontractor with which the contractor enters into a
contract.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

1. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide workers’ compensation
coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).
Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 must be included.

2. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to ODA. This insurance
shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall be written on
an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined by ODA:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:
Not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence). Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $4,000,000.

3. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE: AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. Automobile Liability Insurance
covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for “Commercial General Liability” and

“Automobile Liability”). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following amounts as
determined by ODA:

18



Morrow County/Lexington Airport
Agreement No..COAR-2022-959-00017

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:
Not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include the State of Oregon, ODA, its officers, employees and agents as Additional
Insureds, but only with respect to the contractor’s activities to be performed under the Subcontract .
Coverage must be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

“TAIL” COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a “claims made” basis, such as
professional liability insurance, the contractor shall maintain either “tail” coverage or continuous “claims
made” liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous “claims made” coverage is on or
before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of twenty-four (24) months following the later
of : (i) the contractor’s completion and Sponsor’s acceptance of all Services required under the
Subcontract or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subcontract.
Notwithstanding the foregoing twenty-four (24) month requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain
“tail” coverage and if the maximum time period “tail” coverage reasonably available in the marketplace
is less than the twenty-four (24) month period described above, then the contractor may request and
ODA may grant approval of the maximum “tail “ coverage period reasonably available in the
marketplace. If ODA approval is granted, the contractor shall maintain “tail” coverage for the maximum
time period that “tail” coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. The contractor or its insurer must provide thirty (30)

days’ written notice to Recipient before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of
aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s). Any failure to comply with the
reporting provisions of this clause shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall be
grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of
insurance for all required insurance before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The
certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed
on the policy as Additional Insured (or Loss Payees) and ii) for insurance on a “claims made” basis, the
extended reporting period applicable to “tail” or continuous “claims made” coverage. Required
insurance coverages shall be obtained from insurance companies acceptable to ODA and the
contractor shall pay for all deductibles, self-insured retention or self-insurance.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW. Recipient agrees to periodic review of insurance

requirements by ODA under this Agreement and to provide updated requirements as mutually agreed
upon by ODA and Recipient.

ODA ACCEPTANCE. All insurance providers are subject to ODA acceptance. If requested by ODA,
Recipient shall provide complete copies of its Contractors’ insurance policies, endorsements,
self-insurance documents and related insurance documents to ODA's representatives responsible for
verification of the insurance coverages required under this Exhibit C.

The Recipient shall immediately notify ODA of any change in insurance coverage.

19



(For BOC Use)
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET S

Morrow County Board of Commissioners G
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Lil’lda Skel'leCI Date Submitted to reviewers: 8/1 0/2022
Department:  Veterans Services Requested Agenda Date: 8/17/2022
Short Title of Agenda Item:

(No acronyms please) Annual Application for Funding

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[ ] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 5 min
[ ] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

OO =00

[] Contract/Agreement Other
E] N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ | Yes [H] No
Reviewed By:
Linda Skendzel 8/10/2022 Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Liaison Commissioner Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE = \llow 1 week for review (submit to all simultanceously). When each office has notified the submitting
department of approval, then submit the reanest to the ROC for pl: lacement on the aoenda

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred) Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. 12520

Rev: 3-25-



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

Veterans Budget exceeds the budgeted amount for FY2021/2022 this wasn't taken into account at the end of year
Budget Resolution.

The budget exceeded the requested amount due to medical insurance added to Personnel Costs beginning January
2022.

Oregon Department of Veterans Affairs is not concerned with the budget exceeding the budgeted amount.

I discussed these issues with Kevin Ince, our new Finance Director.

The Annual Oregon Department of Veterans Affairs Funding Application and documentation is attached.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(SYMOTION(S):

Requesting Commissioner Lindsay to sign the Annual Application to receive funds from Oregon
Department of Veterans Affairs.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3-25-22



OREGON DEPARTMENT COUNTY APPLICATION FOR ODVA FUNDS
of VETERANS’ AFFAIRS FY2022: JULY 1, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

This Is a fillable form. Save the form to your computer, complete the form, print, sign, scan and send electronically.

A county must complete and submit this form along with the required documents listed below to the Oregon Department
of Veterans' Affairs no later than 8/31/2022 in order to receive state funds for the county’s Veteran Services Office.
Please submit the documents to: ODVA _CVSO-NSOFunding@odva.oregon.gov.

SUBMIT TO: ODVA_CVSO-NSOFunding@odva.oregon.gov TIME PERIOD
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023
CONTACT INFORMATION COUNTY
Oregon Department of Veterans’ Affairs Statewide Veteran Services Morrow
700 Summer St NE Salem, OR 97301-1285
For questions, please call: (503) 373-2090

Budgeted Revenue for July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

ITEM AMOUNT
County Funds $ 34,218
*Carry forward of unspent budgeted funds from previous fiscal year (if applicable* $ 0.00
ODVA Funds for 2022-23 $ 81,736
Other Funds (Identify source) Outreach Grant $ 4,000
TOTAL REVENUE | $ 119,954

Budgeted Expenditures for July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023
TOTAL BUDGETED EXPENDITURES | $ 119,954

(NOTE: Budgeted expenditures should match budgeted revenue)
Required Documents

A copy of the approved budget for county Veteran Services Office for the fiscal year 2023.

A copy of the actual revenue and expenditures for the prior fiscal year, if changed since submission with
fourth quarter report.

*A description of the planned use of the carry-forward funds from FY 2022, if applicable.*

If the county contracts for the provision of veteran services, attach a signed copy of the contract.

CERTIFICATION

By my signature below, I hereby certify the following: the county is applying for funds for the county Veteran Services
Office from the Oregon Department of Veterans’ Affairs; the county will use these funds only as provided in ORS
406.310 and ORS 406.450 — 406.460; the county will comply with the Oregon Administrative Rules in Chapter 274,
Division 030 that govern these funds; and the county will submit quarterly reports of activities and expenditures to the
Oregon Department of Veterans’ Affairs no later than the 30™" day of the month following the end of each quarter.

Printed Name of County Commissioner/Judge (or designee)

oo OO0

Tinm, Doher-
WC y Representative named above Date Signed
~ /to Avaust \ T, 2022
4-Attle of Sigher Email Address Telephofe Number )
Chair, Boaxd of Commissioness ydoheriv®eo.mprrow. or. us SU\ - Ue-5 (3
ODVA APPROVED FOR FUNDING Authorized Signaturé Date

0910 County Application for Receipt of ODVA Funds (07-20)




BEFORE THE BOARTD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR

MORROW COUNTY, OREGON
IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE BUDGET, ) RESOLUTION No. R-2022-10
MAKING APPROPRIATIONS, IMPOSING AND )
CATEGORIZING THE TAXES......ccoenrmneecmrmraneceenresssenracsssesseanes )

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Morrow County hereby adopts the
budget for fiscal year 2022-23 in the sum of $83,674,523.

This budget is now on file at the Morrow County Courthouse in Heppner, Oregon.

BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, and for
the purposes shown below are hereby appropriated as follows:

GENERAL FUND
Board of Commissioners S 709,643
Administrative Services 731,416
County Assessor/Tax Collector 920,695
County Treasurer 137,565
County Clerk 376,074
Veterans Officer 119,954
Board of Property Tax Appeals 3,036
Justice Court 343,083
District Attorney 439,246
Juvenile Department 410,074
Sheriff 4,681,053
Health Department 1,605,874
Planning 772,377
Community Development 156,757
Emergency Management 534,252
Surveyor 172,883
Museum 11,000
Public Works Administration 76,085
Public Works General Maintenance 781,714
Solid Waste Transfer Station North 64,250
Solid Waste Transfer Station South 163,206
Transfers to Other Funds 3,169,794
Computer 355,500
Weed Department 142,668
Nondepartmental Personnel Services 86,171
Nondepartmental Materials & Services 871,650
Nondepartmental Capital Outlay 365,000
Debt Service 1,200
Special Payments 1,924,437
Contingency 4,324,202
TOTAL FOR GENERAL FUND S 24,450,859

Resolution No. R-2022-10

1of8




HERITAGE TRAIL FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR HERITAGE TRAIL FUND

ROAD EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR ROAD EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND
ROAD FUND

Personnel Services
Materials and Services
Capital Outlay
Transfer to other funds
Contingency

TOTAL FOR ROAD FUND

FINLEY BUTTES TRUST FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR FINLEY BUTTES TRUST FUND

Transfer to Other Funds

TOTAL FOR MORROW COUNTY COMMISSION ON
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

AIRPORT FUND
Materials & Services
Capital Outlay
Contingency
TOTAL FOR AIRPORT FUND
LAW LIBRARY FUND

Materials & Services

FOTAL FOR LAW LIBRARY FUND

911 EMERGENCY FUND
Personnel Services
Materials & Services
Capital Outlay
Contingency

TOTAL FOR 911 EMERGENCY FUND

Resolution No. R-2022-10

51,726

51,726

1,771,000

1,771,000

2,326,775
3,947,525
80,000
580,000
1,052,806

7,987,106

100,000

MORROW COUNTY COMMISSIONS ON CHILDREN & FAMILIES

100,000

66,158

66,158

69,140
557,500
167,514

794,154

40,379

40,379

302,717

70,400
100,000
323,331

796,448

20f8




SURVEYOR PRESERVATION FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR SURVEYOR PRESERVATION FUND

FINLEY BUTTES LICENSE FUND
Transfer To Other Funds
Special Payments

TOTAL FOR FINLEY BUTTES LICENSE FEE FUND

COUNTY SCHOOL FUND
Special Payments
TOTAL FOR COUNTY SCHOOL FUND
IONE SCHOOL FUND
Special Payments
TOTAL FOR IONE SCHOOL FUND
FAIR FUND

Personnel Services
Materials & Services
Capital Outlay

Transfer To Other Funds
Contingency

TOTAL FOR FAIR FUND
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

Capital Outlay
FOTAL FOR COMPUTER EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND
Personnel Services
Materials & Services
Capital Outlay
Transfer to Other Funds
Contingency

TOTAL FOR SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND

PROGRAMMING RESERVE FUND
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR PROGRAMMING RESERVE

Resolution No. R-2022-10

288,984

288,984

1,636,000
710,665

2,346,665

201,350

201,350

20,265

20,265

25,842
188,050
15,000
7,000
168,418

404,310

107,350

107,350

298,674
612,060
77,500
563,922
60,520

1,612,676

187,100

187,100

30f8




ENFORCEMENT FUND
Materials & Service

TOTAL FOR ENFORCEMENT FUND

VIDEO LOTTERY FUND
Materials & Services
Special Payments

Transfer to Other Funds
Contingency

TOTAL FOR VIDEO LOTTERY FUND

VICTIM/WITNESS ASSISTANCE FUND
Personnel Services

Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR VICTIM/WITNESS ASSISTANCE FUND

WILLOW CREEK WIND FEES
Special Payments
Transfer to Other Funds

TOTAL FOR WILLOW CREEK WIND FEES

CAMI GRANT FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR CAMI GRANT FUND

WEED EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR WEED EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

STF VEHICLE RESERVE FUND
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR STF VEHICLE RESERVE FUND

FAIR ROOF RESERVE FUND
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR FAIR ROOF RESERVE FUND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

TOTAL FOR HEPPNER ADMIN. BUILDING FUND

Resolution No. R-2022-10

21,275

21,275
15,000
25,000

81,500
51,250

172,750

94,211
19,527

113,738

45,000
46,000

91,000

36,920

36,920

30,915

30,915

536,874

536,874

31,307

31,307

9,275,458
773,582

10,049,040

40f8




SAFETY COMMITTEE FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR SAFETY COMMITTEE

BLEACHER RESERVE FUND
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR BLEACHER RESERVE FUND

RODEO FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL RODEO FUND

JUSTICE COURT BAILS/FINES FUND

Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR JUSTICE COURT BAILS/FINES FUND

CLERKS RECORDS FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR CLERKS RECORDS FUND

DUII IMPACT FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR DUII IMPACT FUND

FAIR IMPROVEMENT FUND
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR FAIR IMPROVEMENT FUND
BUILDING PERMIT FUND
Materials & Services

Transfer to Other Funds

TOTAL FOR BUILDING PERMIT FUND

PARK FUND
Personnel Services
Materials & Services
Capital Outlay
Contingency
TOTAL FOR PARK FUND
EQUITY FUND

Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR EQUITY FUND

Resolution No. R-2022-10

23,100

23,100

26,231

26,231

12,500

12,500

540,000

540,000

22,850

22,850

30,290

30,290

36,485

36,485

2,000
50,000

52,000

285,976
361,031
100,000
190,493

937,500

21,000

21,000

50f8




BUILDING RESERVE FUND
Capital Outlay
Transfers to Other Funds

TOTAL FOR BUILDING RESERVE FUND

LIQUIOR CONTROL FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR LIQUOR CONTROL FUND

WATER PLANNING FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR WATER PLANNING FUND

FOREST SERVICE FUND
Materials & Services

TOTAL FOR FOREST SERVICE FUND

COURT SECURITY FUND
Materials & Services
Capital Outlay

TOTAL FOR COURT SECURITY FUND

ECHO WINDS FEES FUND

Transfer to Other Funds
Special Payments

TOTAL FOR ECHO WINDS FEES FUND

SHEPHERDS FLAT FEES FUND
Transfer to Other Funds
Special Payments

TOTAL FOR SHEPHERDS FLAT FEES FUND

5310 FTA GRANT FUND
Personnel Services
Materials and Services ECHO WINDS FEES FUND

Capital Outlay
Transfer to Other Funds
Contingency

TOTAL FOR STO OPERATING FUND

Resoifution No. R-2022-10

500,000
500,000

1,000,000

893

893

16,258

16,258

87,700

87,700

52,500
35,000

87,500

53,785
48,100

101,885

1,139,500
521,500

1,661,000

97,604
448,538
126,956

63,000
318,679

1,054,777

60f 8




P

COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS

Personnel Services
Materials & Services
Capital Outlay
Contingency

TOTAL FOR COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS FUND

PGE CARTY FUND
Transfer to Other Funds
Special Payments

TOTAL FOR PGE CARTY FUND

SHERIFF RESERVE FUND
Materials & Services
Contingency

TOTAL FOR SHERIFF RESERVE FUND

WHEATRIDGE WIND FUND
Special Payments
Transfer to Other Funds

TOTAL FOR WHEATRIDGE WIND FUND

ORCHARD WIND FUND
Special Payments
Transfers to Other Funds

OTAL RESILIENCY FUND

RESILIENCY FUND
Materials & Services
Transfers to Other Funds

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS, All Funds

Resolution No. R-2022-10

486,733
219,862
55,000
78,505

840,100

3,003,500
500,000

3,503,500

10,800
8,200

19,000

1,500,000
930,000

2,430,000

150,000
4,850

154,850

5,400,000
4,000,000

TOTAL RESILIENCY FUND S

9,400,000

74,369,768




NON-APPROPRIATED BUDGET

REQUIREMENTS

General Fund S 3,613,888
Road Fund 1,000,000
Finley Butte Road 2,148,382
Airport Fund 20,000
911 Emergency Fund 200,000
Fair Fund 40,830
Victim Witness Fund 15,344
STF Vehicle Reserve Fund 133,000
Building Permit Fund 1,454,440
Equity Fund 605,000
Building Reserve Fund 73,871
TOTAL UNAPPROPRIATED AND RESERVE AMOUNTS, All Funds S 9,304,755
TOTAL ADOPTED BUDGET $ 83,674,523

BE IT RESOLVED that the following ad valorem property taxes are hereby imposed at the
assessed value of all taxable property within the district for the tax year 2022-2023 at
the rate of $4.1347 per $1,000.

BE IT RESOLVED that the taxes imposed are hereby categorized for purposes of Article XI
section 11b as:

Permanent Rate Tax $4.1347/$1,000.

Excluded from Limitation

The above Resolution statements were approved and declared adopted on June 29, 2022.

Morrow County Board of Commissioners

Jim Doherty, Chair

Melissa Lindsay, Commissioner

Don Russell, Commissioner

Resolution No. R-2022-10 80f8



B8-10-2022 08:19 AM

MORROW COUNTY, OREGON PAGE: 12
REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
AS OF: JUNE 30TH, 2022
101-GENERAIL FUND
VETERANS
CURRENT CURRENT YEAR TO DATE BUDGET % OF
BUDGET PERIOD ACTUAL BATANCE BUDGET
REVENUES
GRANT REVENUE
101-106-3-30-3511 AID TO COUNTIES 81,736.00 0.00 61,302.18 20,433.82 75.00
101-106-3-30-3512 SB1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
101-106-3-30-3513 VETS EXTENDED OUTREACH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
101-106-3-30-3514 OUTREACH DISCRETIONARY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 81,736.00 0.00 61,302.18 20,433.82 75.00
MISCELLANEQUS REVENUE
101-106-3-60-4187 MISC REVENUE 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 100.00
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 100.00
REIMBURSEMENTS
101-106-3-80-7075 REIMBURSED ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL REVENUES 85,736.00 0.00 65,302.18 20,433.82 76.17
EXPENDITURES
PERSONNEL SERVICES
101-106-5-10-1001 VETERANS OFFICER 56,424.00 5,233.73 57,217.18 ( 793.18) 101.41
101-106-5-10-1002 OFFICE ASSISTANT 15,670.00 1,727.57 15,814.70 {( 144.70) 100.92
101-106-5-10-1301 FICA 4,470.00 530.25 5,091.71 ¢ 621.71) 113.91
101-106-5-10-1302 WORKERS COMP 81.00 1.97 27.84 53.16 34.37
101-106-5-10-1303 PACIFIC MUTUAL 13,993.00 1,297.97 14,347.44 ( 354.44) 102.53
101-106-5-10-1304 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
101-106-5-10-1305 AOC-MEDICAL 0.00 346.71 5,015.24 5,015.24) 0.00
101-106-5-10-1306 DENTAL 0.00 21.31 255.72 ( 255.72) 0.00
101-106-5-10-1309 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 773.00 97.03 831.67 ( 58.67) 107.59
101-106-5-10-1316 PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GR 62.00 5.20 62.40 | 0.40) 100.65
101-106-5-10-1317 UNITED HERITAGE LIFE 52.00 2.80 32.06 19.94 61.65
101-106-5-10-1320 VACATION ACCRUALS 1,480.00 0.00 0.00 1,480.00 0.00
101-106-5-10-1321 MANDATED MEDICARE 1,045.00 0.00 530.34 514.66 50.75
TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 94,050.00 9,264.54 99,226.30 ( 5,176.30) 105.50
MATERIALS & SERVICES
101-106-5-20-2110 OFFICE SUPPLIES 750.00 0.00 1,674.76 ( 924.76) 223.30
101-106-5-20-2111 STATIONERY OFFICE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
101-106-5-20-2282 OPERATING SUPPLIES-O&E 11,682.00 631.10 12,283.11 | 601.11) 105.15
101-106-5-20-2283 OPERATING SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
101-106-5-20-2284 SB1100 CARRYOVER FUNDS 4,092.00 0.00 3,847.17 244.83 94.02
101-106-5-20-3240 TELEPHONE-BUSINESS EXP 4,800.00 483.26 3,859.12 940.88 80.40
101-106-5-20-3247 OFFICE RENT-E&E 1,680.00 0.00 875.00 805.00 52.08
101-106-5-20-3311 LODGING & MEALS-E&E 1,300.00 0.00 0.00 1,300.00 0.00
101-106-5~20-3314 REGISTRATION DUES-E&E 300.00 0.00 550.00 ¢ 250.00) 183.33



8-10-2022 08:19 AM MORROW COUNTY, OREGON PAGE: 13
REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
AS OF: JUNE 30TH, 2022
101-GENERAL FUND

VETERANS
CURRENT CURRENT YEAR TO DATE BUDGET % OF
BUDGET PERIOD ACTUAL BALANCE BUDGET
101-106-5-20-3323 MILEAGE-E&E 800.00 0.00 33.86 766.14 4.23
101-106-5-20-3710 REPAIR & MAINT. AUTO 500.00 0.00 245.48 254.52 49.10
TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 25,904.00 1,114.36 23,368.50 2,535.50 90.21
CAPITAL OUTLAY
101-106-5-40-4404 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
101-106-5-40-4413 NEW VEHICLES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 119,954.00 10,378.90 122,594.80 ( 2,640.80) 102.20

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ( 34,218.00) ( 10,378.90) ( 57,292.62) 23,074.62 167.43



b.dh

Water Coordination

August 15, TM edits

The Region and Demographics

The Lower Umatilla Basin is located in western
Umatilla and Northern Morrow Counties. Of the
approximately 85,000 residents, there resides one
of the largest Latinx populations in Oregon. See
attached map.

Agricultural Economy and Water

The Region’s unique combination of climate, soil
type, access to water, and infrastructure makes it
one of the most productive agricultural areas in the
world. Water is a vital component of the formula
in order to provide long-term sustainable economic
growth and food security for Oregon and the United
States.

Declining groundwater tables and increasing
demand for groundwater by growing communities
threaten resilience and sustainability of regional
water supply for agricultural, industrial, residential
and environmental needs.

Groundwater Regulatory Areas

Water Supply

This bi-county region has four designated Critical
groundwater areas, designated by the State of
Oregon Water Resources Department (OWRD) in
the 1990’s. OWRD has responsibility and regulatory
authority to protect senior water right holders.

The State is not directly involved in developing
remedies to groundwater declines. Based on that,
the Northeast Oregon Water Association
(NOWA)was founded to develop projects to
recharge the declining aquifers.

Water Quality

Portions of the Lower Umatilla Basin have been
designated as Groundwater Management Area
(LUBGWMA) due to high nitrate levels. The Oregon
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) has
regulatory authority for groundwater within this
LUBGWMA since 1990.

While nitrate standards were adopted by the
Environmental Protection Agency and ODEQ to
protect public health, Oregon Health Authority
involvement is only recent.

Historical and Current Initiatives
1. LUBGWMA (since 1990).
2. LUBGWMA Subcommittee — studying

historical data (2021-present)

Public Health - Drinking Water Emergency

Regional Solutions activated

5. CDS appropriation — standardized testing
and data collection; research solutions for
clean, potable water.

6. Water at Depot — water rights, water
development, Umatilla County recharge
project.

5P b

Water Coordinator Position

Morrow and Umatilla Counties have discussed a
shared Water Coordinator Position to identify,
coordinate, and propose action to County
Commissions on water quality, water quantity, and
water-related public health matters in the Region.
The position would be overseen by the County
Planning and Public Health Department(s) and
report to both County Commissions.

OBVer. 1.0



OBIJECTIVES

1. Public Education — water quality.

2. Secure short-term and long-term
potable water supplies.

3. Develop standardized testing and data
to evaluate nitrate levels.

4. Identify research and data gaps.

5. Coordinate among counties, state and
federal agencies, stakeholders and
community.,

6. Facilitate the improvement of a
scientific understanding of the
hydrogeology of the basin to help
address high nitrate groundwater
concentrations. (EOU REV SRS option)

7. Help implement the LUBGWMA
Committee Second Action Plan.

8. Develop public policies and programs
to ameliorate or remove nitrate
contamination in drinking water.

9. Further the development of a water
reuse and aquifer rechange policy at
the state level.

10. Advocate for the region and help plan
for future water priorities.

11. Pursue place based planning
collaborative similar to Harney and
Union counties.

12.

OBVer. 1.0



(For BOC Use) |

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET | [tm#

Morrow County Board of Commissioners é‘ e, |
(Page 1 of 2) '

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Katie Imes and Kittelson and Associates Date submitted to reviewers: 8/4/2022
Department: Pyblic Transit - The Loop Requested Agenda Date: 8/17/2022

Short Title of Agenda Item:

(No acronyms please) Morrow County Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan Update (CTP)

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[_] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

L0 OO

[] Contract/Agreement Other
|E| N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes [l No
Reviewed By:
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Liaison Commissioner Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE = Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultancously). When cach office has notified the submitting
department of approval, then submit the regnest to the BOC for placement on the asenda.

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred). Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.

Rev: 3-25-22



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

Attached - Morrow County Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan Update. Kittelson and
Associates has presentation slides to highlight the CTP update.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

N/A

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)MOTION(S):
N/A

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3-25-22



August 2022




: Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Morrow County appreciates the input, energy, and commitment of local and regionall
stakeholders who participated in this plan update. The following organizations and individuals
made significant contributions toward this effort:

Morrow County Public Transit Advisory Committee (PTAC)

Aaron Palmquist — Chair, Irrigon/Low Income

Debbie Radie — Vice Chair, Port of Morrow Employers/Employees
Karen Pettigrew, Boardman/Low Income

Sheryll Bates, Heppner/Seniors

Debra Khaljani

Katie Imes, County Staff/Transportation Coordinator

Stephanie Case, County Staff/Local Planner

George Nairns

Morrow County Public Transit Project Management Team

Katie Imes, Transportation Coordinator
Stephanie Case, County Planner |l
Tamra Mabbott, County Planning Director

Morrow County The Loop Stakeholder Workshop Participants

Aaron Palmquist, City of Irrigon

Angie Jones, Grant County People Mover
Ann Morter, BMCC Training Center

Carla McClane, City of Boardman

Debbie Radie, Boardman Foods

Emily Roberts, Morrow County Health District
Heidi Turrell, Morrow County The Loop

Jon Asher, Wheeler County

Kate Neuberger, GOBHI

Kraig Cutsforth, City of Heppner

Kris Boler, GOBH!

Megan Davchevski, Umatilla County
Patience Searle, Oregon Employment Department
Rick Stokoe, City of Boardman

Roberta Carver-Carson, Kayak Public Transit
Sanjuanita Olivas, Columbia River Health
Steve Abernathy, Greyhound Lines

Susan Johnson, Kayak Public Transit

Page 2  Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INtrOAUCHON G mnmermssssssnssasssasrsarem s seseasseatsmsreasasssessmisst Keaessmssn st meA VTR S SRR NS R mntopuriggemrm ]
Demogrophlcs s e L T R S R R R e vsasree /.
Existing Services ond Resources S S S S R R A S e AR s e e 2.2
Summary of Relevant Plon527
STAKENOIAET INVOIVEMIENT ...ttt ettt e e st et et eeee et e e eeeeneeseeeeeessreneseanesens 34
Godals ANd ObJeCHVES mummsasmmmshssmmasmmammon s s s SRR d’
Needs and Strategies... T SO NN . O NN ./
Implementation and Monl’rorlng Plcn43
CONCIUSTON sssussmmmminuasssasssisaonsmmpasmesiciissssessissms s isme sttt sz 60

TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 1. People Below 100% POVertyumsasiismmasimte i ismsrmasetsmsmcacsmanssonsssss] 2
Figure 2. People Below 200% POVErY. st 3
Figure 3. PEOPIE With DISQIDIIHIES ....ccccvuriierriieeie ettt et tn e e e eeseaseeeneenens 14
Figure 4. Youth Population ............... T O T T T T T ey e I
Figure 5. Senior (Age 65 and Over) Populo’rlon S s I R e e s v ] O
Figure 6. People of O RACIAI MINOTTY c..vvceceeeeeeeeee ettt eeeseseeseessensaesesensnsssssssasassesensnssnenss | 7
Figure 7. Zero Vehicle Households .. R e O | .
Figure 8. Low English Proficiency (LEP) Households T R i | @
FIQUIE 9. VEBIEIANS.....eiiieeteecss e sssessastetesses s e sessasssesssssssesssessssssas s snensesesesessssssannsanssenesessnesessessssssss 20

ACRONYMS

ACS - American Community Survey

CTP -~ Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan/Coordinated Transportation Plan
CTUIR - Confederated Tribes of Umatilla Indian Reservation
DLCD - Department of Land Conservation and Development
FTA — Federal Transit Administration

[AMP - Interchange Area Master Plan

HRTG — Highly Rural Transportation Grant

[CU - Intensive Care Unit

LEP - Low English Proficiency

MCPT - Morrow County Public Transit

PMT - Project Management Team

PTAC - Public Transit Advisory Committee

ODOT - Oregon Department of Transportation

RVHT - Rural Veteran Healthcare Transportation Grant

STF - Special Transportation Fund

STIF - Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund

TSP - Transportation System Plan

WORC - Workforce On-Demand Ride Cooperative

Page 3 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



s e e e |

-— -

INTRODUCTION




Morrow County is undertaking an update to its Coordinated Human Services Public
Transportation Plan (the Coordinated Transportation Plan, or CTP) to address a combination of
regulatory and community goals.

The Federal Transit Administration's (FTA's) Section 5310 program and Oregon's Special
Transportation Fund (STF) both fund projects and services that enhance the mobility of seniors
and persons with disabilities. To be eligible for funding, projects and services are required to be
“included in a locally developed, coordinated public transit human services transportation
plan.” While §5310 funds are directed solely toward services open to the general public, STF
funds can also be used for client-only services and programs enhancing the mobility of low-
income individuals. As the recipient of Morrow County's STF funds, Morrow County Public Transit
(MCPT) implements projects and services funded by §5310.

The STF is being merged into Oregon’s Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF)
effective July 2023. Administrative rulemaking related to this merger will not be finalized until late
2022. However, if ODOT's initial recommendations are implemented, client-only projects and
services will need to be included in the CTP to be eligible to receive STIF funding. As the
designated STIF Qualified Entity, Morrow County has the ability to distribute federal and state
funds fo itself and to eligible subrecipients to support the mobility of seniors and persons with
disabilities. An update to Morrow County's CTP should capture existing STIF plan projects and
inform future STIF planning.

The intent of the CTP is to be a "living" document identifying needs and investment priorities.
Transit providers and partners in Morrow County will use the plan to allocate funding and
develop and enhance transit services. Since the plan must be updated every five years, it has
been written in a way that can incorporate ongoing updates and revisions.

Coordinated Transportation Plan Requirements

ODOT provides the following requirements for Coordinated Transportation Plans:

» (1) An assessment of available services that identifies cumrent transportation providers
(public, private, and non-profit);

»  (2) An assessment of transportation needs for individuals with disabilities, older adults, and
people with low incomes. This assessment can be based on the experiences and
perceptions of the planning partners or on more sophisticated data collection efforts, and
gaps in service (Note: If a community does not intend to seek funding for a particular
program (Section 5310, 5311),then the community is not required to include an assessment
of the targeted population in its coordinated plan);

» (3} Strategies, activities, and/or projects to address the identified gaps between current
services and needs, as well as opportunities to achieve efficiencies in service delivery; and

»  (4) Priorities for implementation based on resources {from multiple program sources), time,
and feasibility forimplementing specific strategies and/or activities identified.

Page 5 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



) Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Assessing Need and ldentifying Proposed Service and Capital Improvements

Reflecting legislative priorities identified in the Keep Oregon Moving act, the CTP addresses the
transportation needs of people residing and traveling within the region, especially those
residents in low-income communities. Key project and program provisions of the CTP include the
following STIF Criteria:

» Increased frequency of bus service to areas with a high percentage of Low-income
Households.

»  Expansion of bus routes and bus services to serve areas with a high percentage of Low-
Income Households.

»  Fund the implementation of programs to reduce fares for public transportation in
communities with a high percentage of Low-Income Households.

) Procurement of low or no emission buses.

»  The improvement in the frequency and reliability of service between communities inside
and outside of the Qualified Entity's service area.

»  Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers to reduce fragmentation in
the provision of tfransportation services.

»  Implementation of programs to provide student transit service for students in grades 9-12.

Page 6 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



DEMOGRAPHICS




_,_/-i b & “.
el Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

DEMOGRAPHICS

Understanding specific demographic distributions and needs is vital to evaluating the quality of
a fransit system. This section discusses the composition of Morrow County and its communities,
and the considerations for needs for different transit dependent populations. It should be noted
that census block groups in Morrow County are large, and dilute the density of populations. As
such, maps provide the total population within each transit dependent population group in
addition to density.

Transit riders are typically generalized into two categories:

»  Choice riders have adequate resources and abilities to own, operate, and maintain a
vehicle but choose to use fransit. Choice riders are more likely to use public
transportation for commuting or when fransit offers an advantage over driving (i.e., roads
are congested, convenience, high parking fees, passenger amenities, etc.)

n  Captive riders, also referred to as transit dependent riders, use public fransportation
because they lack access or resources to own or operate a vehicle. These riders use
public fransportation for most of their trips, including to get to work, medical
appointments, shops, and social activities.

Choice riders can be located anywhere in a community, with the strongest market areas
typically being areas with high population or employment density. Market areas for captive
riders, however, is more complex, as an understanding of population distributions and
considerations for special concerns is needed. For example, older adults tend to travel during
the daytime and require shorter walks to/from a bus stop. The following outlines seven
demographic groups typically associated with higher use of transit:

» People Experiencing Poverty - individuals who live within a set of income thresholds
established by the US Census Bureau, which vary by family size and composition. Low-
income households tend to rely on public transportation as it is less expensive than
owning and operating a vehicle.

»  People with Disabilities — people with a disability often have difficulty operatfing a vehicle
and require access to public transportation.

»  Youth —individuals under 18 years old have limited access or ability to drive a vehicle.

»  Elderly Adults - individuals aged 65 and older may become less comfortable driving as
they age or are no longer physically able to drive.

»  People of a Racial Minority — often live in neighborhoods that have suffered systemic
disinvestment and other barriers to transportation.

»  Lero Vehicle Households - persons residing in households without access to a vehicle
typically rely on walking, biking, public transportation, or carpooling to meet their mobility
needs.

»  Low English Proficiency Households — low English proficiency (LEP} can be a barrier for
interacting with the transportation system, particularly in terms of owning and operating
a vehicle. Typically, households with low English proficiency rely on other modes to meet
their mobility needs.

Page 8 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



B Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

»  Veterans - have devoted years of their lives into their respective field of expertise, with
many impacted by limited mobility and high medical needs.
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination in the provision of federally
supported benefits and services, including public fransportation service. In addition to Title VI
populations, this analysis presents information about the study area population's transit reliant
populations, including poverty status, age, racial/ethnic composition, and English proficiency,
and proportion of people with disabilities.

Table 1 breaks down these metrics for Morrow County and its communities. This analysis provides
information regarding populations who are typically more reliant on transit or have been
historically underrepresented in planning processes. Values higher than the state average are in
bold. As shown, cities throughout Morrow County have high percentages of people below the
poverty line, people with a disability, youth, older adults, zero vehicie households, households
with low English proficiency, and veterans.

Table 1. Title VI and Underrepresented Populﬁns

2020 Census Population -
Total Population (ACS)

Below 100% Poverty

Below 200% Poverty
Racial/Ethnic Minority

Zero Vehicle Households 2
Households with LEP

Youth (Under 18)

=
o
i
3
-

Total Households (ACS)
Older Aduits (45 and older)

People with Disability

Oregon 4246155 4096744 1642579 124% 29.3% 14.3%  20.7% 17 7% 25.0% 2% 24%  8.3%

County

Boardman NA 3,527 1,086 Sz 12.5% ‘m 2.5% [203% 4.2%
Heppner NA 1,264 556 10. 9% 279% 20% 00%
lona NA 410 178 293% 327% 19. 5% 24.6% 0.0% ﬂﬂ%’

Source: 2020 Census and American Community Survey 201 6-2020 5-Year Esnmotes Tables $1602, Sl 701,
S1810, B25044. NA = Not Available.

Low-income populations are individuals that live within a set of income thresholds established by
the US Census Bureau, which vary by family size and composition. Historically, people
experiencing poverty may rely on active and public fransportation more than the general
population; therefore, recognition of this group's concentration centers is needed to determine
transportation needs. Figure 1 and Figure 2 illustrate areas with high percentages of people living
below the poverty level. Densities of individuals residing below 100% poverty exist in the following
areqs:

Page 9 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



2 I Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

»  Northern part of imigon and the surrounding areas The federal poverty level is

»  Most parts of Boardman with a higher concentration defined by household size. The
south of I-84 and north of Wilson Lane 2022 federal poverly level for a

family of 4 is $27,750 of income.

Densities of individuals residing below 200% poverty exist in the 200% of federal poverty level

following areas:

for a family of 4 would be
»  Throughout Iigon $55,500. The state of Oregon
uses 200% poverly level for
Statewide Transportation
Improvement Fund criteria.

»  Parts of Boardman south of -84 and north of Wilson Lane

People with Disabilities

People with a disability often have difficulty operating a vehicle
and require access to public fransportation. Figure 3 illustrates areas with high percentages of
households with disabilities. Densities of people with disabilities exist in the following areas:

»  All of Irrigon, but mostly concentrated in the northern part and surrounding areas
»  Most parts of Boardman, with a higher concentration south of -84

»  Western half of lone

»  Western portion of Heppner

Youth & Seniors

Analyzing an area's age composition helps decision-makers understand the potential need for
increased fransit options. As people age, they typically begin to drive less and require
alternative modes of fransportation for medical appointments, shopping, and visiting family and
friends. Children are unable to operate a vehicle and must rely on family, friends, walking, biking,
or public fransportation fo travel. Figure 4 and Figure 5 illustrate areas with concentrations of
youth and older adults, respectively. As illustrated in both the figures, densities of youth and older
adults existing in the following areas:

»  All of Irrigon, but mostly concentrated in the northemn part and surrounding areas

»  Most parts of Boardman, with a higher concentration south of I-84 and north of Wilson
Lane

People of a Racial Minority

People of a racial minority, defined by the US Census Bureau as non-white and/or Hispanic
populations, typically live in neighborhoods that have suffered systemic disinvestment and other
barriers to transportation. Understanding where people of color live is a step towards equitably
implementing transit service that serves their needs. Figure 6 illustrates areas with high
percentages of people of a racial minority. Densities of racial minorities existing in the following
areqgs:

» Al of Irrigon, but mostly concentrated in the northern part and surrounding areas

»  All of Boardman, with a higher concentration south of -84 and north of Wilson Lane
»  Most of lone

»  Western portion of Heppner

Page 10 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



e ), Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Zero Vehicle Househoids

Vehicle availability may limit a person'’s ability to commute to work or get to an activity center.
Depending on the number of people living in each household, a certain number of vehicles
may not be able to provide everyone with a means of transportation. Figure 7 illustrates areas
with concentrations of households with no vehicles available. Densities of zero car households
existing in the following areas:

»  Northern part of Irigon and the surrounding areas

»n  Most parts of Boardman with a higher concentration north of 1-84
»  Eastern part of lone

»  Southeastern portion of Heppner

Low English Proficiency Households

Low English proficiency can be a barrier for interacting with the transportation system,
particularly in ferms of owning and operating a vehicle. Typically, households with low English
proficiency rely on other modes to meet their mobility needs. Figure 8 illustrates areas with high
percentages of households with low English proficiency. Densities of households with low English
proficiency exist in the following areas:

n  Northern part Irrigon and the surrounding areas

»  All of Boardman, with a higher concentration south of I-84 and north of Wilson Lane
»  Most of lone

»  Portion of the northern Heppner

Veterans

Veterans typically have an increased need for transit options given mobility impairments and
higher medical fravel needs. Figure 9 illustrates areas with high percentages of veterans.
Densities of households with veterans exist in the following areas:

»  All of lrrigon, but mostly concentrated in the northern part and surrounding areas
»  All of Boardman, with a higher concentration south of -84 and north of Wilson Lane
»  Western portion of Heppner

Page 11 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Figure 1. People Below 100% Poverty

v o
[+
)
Q
o
] ‘g( DESPAIN GULCH RD
= =
E Ed
z
4 z
@\Q\LN 353 | HOMESTEAD v
.._\\ MTr RO
N
g
{
BAKER ld
h SUrriER CREEK Ly
) 2
<
H‘n'C NAB LN lone (["l":
& BASELINE LN c‘d- §
e, Y @
% £ %,
% 75 3 %
% g y
kS o /
2 & 4{" /
AVl $ o B
0"\’0\‘ f':} ) P \}\ o
= woLT Ry =t
-‘? rs
3 2
5 (=] = K3
3 %
o £
£ %
& 10
5 T Lo,
b ‘Rd"(‘.o ’VC;SO“ Useg
2 ‘"’4—( L't% 8y
% z
3 8 (o 3 020 /D
o
& a
o i)
H JHA LN E
( N 2
3 < c\’?ps I
518 o
- L3
USFS 25 3n “rp
People below 100% Poverty D) 45.000F2ei
per Acre by Block Group —_t
-
c1 0.00 £ ueB
7 001-0.25 £ County Boundary
&7 0.25-0.50

Source: American Community Survey 5yr 2020 Table C21007

Page 12 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Figure 2. People Below 200% Poverty

9 o
x
Ll
[=]
-4
Loy < DESPAIN GULCH RD
e _— z
E g 2
s
3'(?‘ Sj\ w
(=] o
= "_":‘ HOVIES"EADVZ
L 383 Z =
i
g
-\'\ igth RO
™
g
BAKER ._i{ 3% S —
\ 7
UTTLE JUN‘p@ e "f
< StrrE CREEX
—j ’JT,\ 5 (]
BASELINE LN ot ¢ s
Y T z a
- a Zz
“%ﬁ_p & = 75 '(‘9@
<, 2 & le_xlngfo % Y
*, 75 3 «f i 5 2
% g g 2
%r% o G
< ol m
ot i 2 Cd A~
v P Heppner A ~
& wors 2 N el
g »
5 < e
= = 22 # ’
c (2] 2 o %
z a / %
2 J "‘_;ER %
] o @
£ —t W R 5
: 9 B
o
é
E . Lo 1o
= ’w,“?_, Y L USe,
= ey = \S‘SJ
f "3;( +“?3 )
o & egS02t
& §
3
m
=
z
%
3
USES 25 op B
People below 200% Poverty n 45,000Feet
per Acre by Block Group Pt
-1
] 0.00 &4 UGB
&7 0.01-0.26 & County Boundary

a 1-15

Source: American Community Survey Syr 2020 Table C21007

Page 13 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Figure 3. People with Disabilities

o a
[+
&«
g
< DESPAIN GULCH RD
=] z
=] &) [=]
A W =
¥ g i
B g =
@“@LN ity z‘ HOMESTEAD v
3
D
b AT RO
J
BAKER /;.r 2e —
.‘I\ LITTLE JUN""’Q 8 ./'_ 4
@ %
| SUTTER CREEK (5
a L/)»)
lone ™
ME NAB LN 7 m
o DASELINELN EN--- S @ S
) & %z B,
% § g 1 o
B 5 Lexingle 5 Q;\
e * 53 a7 = % |
& o 159 g ;’, # 2 =l
E s &
% L & s i %
(] %» = 3 & %'ILA/T S
° e Z. $)' Heppner s v
2 Wov % ﬁ_;:-:l-__‘ SR
i b Vils
g 2 & / 4,
) 2 / %,
8 3 o %
A~
z ISR
% %
Fre
5 224 @
s TRa Loy
i b”c‘. ye,: L - US:G,
,:'_ 0.9 f.‘<-1_ § 3
5 *, 2 < o
i <, > =]
* 3
i O  eF3024
S
- a
E z
»
< AN =
S R g 3
D) 3
X USFS25 o ‘."'Co
People with Disabilities 0 45.000Feel
0 00
per Acre by Block Group |
v 0.00 7 ucB
7 0.01-0.00 € County Boundary
a7 0.01
a7 0.02-0.08
a7 0.09-0.20

Source: American Communlty Survey 5yr 2020 Table C21007

Page 14 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Figure 4. Youth Population

. IErIQDIa?;Tzl

al

5 EQWARDS RD

[ : DESPAIN GULCH RD
&
o w
R g
o <
= - P-4
2| HomesTEAD ™
LN 474 z
ad E
g
b
AT RO
{mi
a8 /__.
LITTLE JOMPg o
%s
UTTER CREEX [
Ly
E NAB LN
. BASELINE LN
®
%:'3.'
[
B
Y
% =
ot B
W ,
out N
<
3
.
2 o
: e E i
= o %
a
s 1 %
3] [¢]
: P %
g = =
3 119 &
] - Le
. R, e . Use,
. o [ = & 5
o Q,%_ 4 z \?'?O
5 C ) |
: &
o s
B Ne:
3 S egzon R0
5 gV
A a
] z
L
- =
S ALK Z=
5 & 2
D 3
i )

Peaple Under Age 18
per Acre by Block Group

'3 0.00
&7 0.01-0.02

&P 0.03-0.07
&P 0.08-0.14

& 0.15-1.00

473 UGB
ﬂ:p County Boundary

Source: American Community Survey 5yr 2020 Table 801001

o

v 45.000Fee! 0
—t

Page 15 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



d

S EOWARDS RD

DESPAIN GULCH RO

. E
®\9\LN 558 gJ HOMESTEAD -
=
=l
-]
At RO
D)
sAKER fu 72 /—'
LT Ju““"@p <
=
(4]
Strren cREER 1
«/.‘),
AR N "5
_ BASELINE LN o 5
‘Z‘g k3 a
%, 3
>N § .
- 2
(3 £
2 2
LN 151 5
Y w
b g
A, >
b = S
O E La';. ¥
POV [N
wWor' %o
O
Ze 2
2 4 %
5 T,
" C&,
£ Ty
-
2 1 Lo,
> R/v(,c. 4(5.9{.?\ Usey
2 o, - 53
; ‘?,.i_( ‘f?} )
U SUp,
H ATt
9 5 e
$
s 3
3 3
- STUA LN 2
R < =
] USFS 25 g O:.%
People Age 65 and Over 45,000 Fee
per Acre by Block Group —t—t
-1
7 0.00 £5i UGB

g7 0.01

&P 0.02-0.03
@¥ 0.04-0.06
@® 007-0.10

r_':? County Boundary

Source: American Community Survey Syr 2020 Table B01001

Page 16 | Kiitelson & Associates, Inc.



Figure 6. People of a Racial Minority

Qtm

F‘\zu;x Ly

@214!‘7 PADFIY TOURTE Tl DNN*od Plon gl -Domo Non'iia med 2070 &8 207
=

"

&7 0.00

&7 0.01-0.00

a2 0.01

@ 0.02-0.30

A 031-1.79

=

Y
v g
v
&
g OESPAIN GULCH RO
[=]
w
o
et RO
ke
UTTLE IOMPg, | w
Oty rER GRERK |,
r
»
™
US,
s
%3
° D)

$
1
2
B

: USFS 25 rp =

Non-White Population
per Acre by Block Group

o 45.000Fee|o
— |

275 ueB

r!;? County Boundary

Source: Census 2020 Table P1

Page 17 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Figure 7. Zero Vehicle Households

=

a

o
4
2]
g
I ES DESPAIN GULCH RD
= 2
v »
zp
<
g
[ 1
@\0 N 5 |
=
2
=H
AETH RO
k)
L7 TER CREEY I
Lir
MC NAB LN
% BASELINE LN g
B i,
% §
kY ok
" % 5
£ 2 = &
B LR &
% wor r%*
ol wovt %
3 £
-~ -
O] o
g <
S o 3
: ) ; '
3 i3 |
: 3
2 ¥ T ‘ |
z N e i
5 1 ' 0 - -
2 L, \
a ““‘(,b o'.(%% —— : X i - Us:&‘,
E’ % T ‘?‘90
t - ; D)
tél .-.'4,&
g £
g b
X IALA R s ,
= 3 N D S et | o o
B & Best 2 Lt iy =11
=18 -
¥ USFS 25 or, q’%
Households without Vehicles 9 45.000Fee!
per Acre by Block Group ey
el ]
2 0.00 £55 UGB
&3 0.01-0.00 €7 County Boundary

&7 0.01-0.00
&® 0.01

' 0.02-0.01 Source: American Community Survey Syr 2020 Table B25044

Page 18 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

D
©)

DESPAIN GULCH RD

S EDWARDS RO

ey
'?’E\:\f RO
':'?Iﬂ;u_u- {REEn %
DASELINE LN
b%,a
%
%
%
A ®
R
& wort
"
O
a
5 P v
= o] < &
& O‘Ei-g ",
;; B
3
S
2
%
o ALN:
& Deas
518 P
E] USFS 25 pp %%
Households with Limited English Spoken I 45.000 Feel
per Acre by Block Group E ——|
7 0.00 ¢ UGB
@ 0.01-0.00 ﬂ? County Boundary

&P 0.01-0.00

af o.01

' 0.02-0.24 Source: American Community Survey Syr 2020 Table C146002

Page 19 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



&

Boordman ﬁ a
[
uy
Q
-4
< DESPAIN GULCHRD
; 2 z
& i 2
# G £
Z
v x >
| HOMESTEAD v
g\\(’)‘LN 74 ;5
3
I~ Azt RD
e 1
|
(===F1 | 3
BaKer = e
/
UTTLE JUNIPQ? e o~
g ¥ 2
< s,
3 GTER CREEN
o Ly, ,%
oy
e 1908 :
. BASELINE LN o S = 5
g £ % S
£, < &
i ‘§ 3 (- N
o) 9 Lexingto, [<} %
& 4 < bt = 2
1’0 62 - i, ~ o) %
2 a é;‘ =
\\;-% IS
o ] ® y.
> & iy
® SNy lﬁ% \0“ 2 ,’h‘.-i". =
7 W B Heppner P ~
wov Ao W™ —
i 2 J p
N © 2 K
3 4 5
ol 2
; S o ue % E
z [ %
3 ?(“5
s o
B . 132
“'&.—{ 4, I{GPO..\ Usey -
E ﬂ, \"'»% J%
2 D)
E 6"”\6% )
‘; 1 8 02}
1 g
o 3
2
= C
: ALY Z
= € Spg 2
E’I_ul <
' USES 25 op C;\,%
Veterans per Acre 0 45,000 Faer
by Block Group et
-
7 0.00 &’ UGB

&7 0.01-0.00

&7 0.01-0.00

&7 0.01-0.02
@ 003-0.06

L'j:l County Boundary

Source: American Community Survey Syr 2020 Table C21001

Page 20 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



(70
Ll
O
> O
5 <
20
O wn
Z o
=
-




| . ' Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

EXISTING SERVICES AND RESOURCES

Taking inventory of the existing fransportation services and resources within the county helps
identify any unmet transit needs and gaps in transportations service. Available services include
one fixed-route (buses running on a set schedule with set pick-up and drop-off points) operated
by Kayak Public Transit serving Irrigon. The second main public transportation operator is Morrow
County, which operates a dial-a-ride service (called The Loop) in which passengers can get
picked up at their home and taken to their destination. Other privately provided transportation
services in the region are also described.

Public Transportation Service within Morrow County

Transportation services provided in Morrow County by public entities are summarized below.

THE OO0

Morrow County Public Transit operates The Loop, a demand-response service (also known
as dial-a-ride service) for residents of Morrow County. Service is provided on weekdays
between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. Trip times can be adjusted to meet earlier or later appointments
or activities. Weekend trips can also be requested. Request for service is made through the
dispatch office, those hours are weekdays 8-12 am and 1-5 pm.

KAy AR PUBLID DS

Kayak Public Transit provides public tfransportation serving southeastern Washington and
northeastern Oregon via fixed-route, ADA Paratransité, and a voucher-based taxi system. The
service is operated by the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR), which
is headquartered in Mission in Umatilla County. The goal of service lies in connecting towns and
transporting people to employment and school. Kayak Public Transit's Hermiston Hopper route
services Irrigon Monday-Saturday, providing two stop times daily. Morrow County funds the
service to lrrigon.

DA RIRYT A
% 151

e
it ES

Morrow County Public Transit has three bus storage locations in the cities of Heppner, Boardman
and Irrigon. These facilities are at capacity. Morrow County is planning to expand its fransit
facility infrastructure to meet its current and future operating demands. This could include but is
not limited to, storage and maintenance facilities, transit centers, and park and ride areas.

Neighboring Public Transportation Services

Neighboring fransportation services are provided by local city, county, and private providers.

GREEYHOUNMD

Regional transportation services available near Morrow County are provided by Greyhound.
Greyhound operates private fransit bus lines throughout the United States. Greyhound has a
daily route that travels through Morrow County but does not have a scheduled stop within the
County. The nearest scheduled Greyhound stop is in Sfanfield, 25 miles east of Boardman on [-84,

Page 22 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



i N Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

in Umatilla County at the Pilot Travel Center. The stop is served by a Greyhound route
connecting Portland and Denver via Boise and Salt Lake City. The stop is also the end point of a
connecting route to Pasco, Yakima, and Seattle. Morrow County residents feel strongly that
Greyhound should schedule stops in the northern portion of Morrow County.

Y F. SV, = Sy, ==
GRANMT COUNMTY

Grant County People Mover also provides service near Morrow County, with a Prairie City to

Walla Walla route providing stops in John Day, Mt. Vernon, Long Creek, Dale, Ukiah, Pilot Rock,
Pendleton, and Milton-Freewater on Tuesdays.

POITY T LIS T AR IR M A
CITY OOF HzBMISTONM

The City of Hermiston provides workforce and senior fransportation services seven days a week,
typically between 6 AM and 6 PM. The workforce program (WORC) serves approximately 30
riders per month and senior transportation serves 100 riders per month.

SILLIAM COUNTY

Gilliam County provides dial-a-ride services Monday through Thursday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., and
Fridays, 8 a.m. to 4 p.m., providing roughly 75 to 100 trips per month. Riders are typically
accessing services such as grocery stores, medical, social services, elder/senior services,
banking, and community events.

WHEELER COUNTY
Wheeler County provides dial-a-ride services, primarily for seniors and people with disabilities but
open to the general public when space allows. The service is operated by both volunteer and

paid drivers. Trips are typically for non-emergency medical, and passengers access facilities as
far as The Dalles and Portland.

Client-Based Transportation Service

Several fransportation services in Morrow County are privately provided to specific clients.

CAREYAN (GOOD SHEPHARD HEALTH CARE S1STEM)
In addition to The Loop's demand-response service for all populations, CareVan Medical
Transportation provides services for residents living in Boardman and Irrigon that have
appointments at Good Shepherd Medical facilities in Hermiston. Service operates from 7:30 a.m.
to 5:30 p.m. on weekdays. Rides are dispatched by a volunteer at Good Shepherd and are only
available for clients of Good Shepherd. Transportation is currently provided for approximately
400 to 700 clients per month.

COLUMBIA RIVER COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES

Columbia River Community Health Services is a clinic located in Boardman providing medical
services to the greater Boardman area population, migrant/seasonal farm workers, refugees,
and low-income populations. Clients without access to other fransportation are provided
nonemergent rides to/from appointments. Rides must be scheduled with the clinic on a case-by-
case basis. Transportation is currently provided for approximately 50 clients per month.

Page 23 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



(W = Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

CAPECO is a non-profit who provides service to a mix of clients including Medicaid recipients,
older adults, and the general public. The agency provides Dial-a-Ride transportation in Umatilla
County and community services in Morrow County. CAPECQ services include eight drivers, four
of whom are paid.

TRAMIPORTATION SOLUTIONS

Transportation Solutions provides non-emergency medical transport in Walla Walla, The Dalles,
La Grande, Pendleton, Hermiston, Baker City, Clarkston/Lewiston, Boise, and the Coeur d'Alene
areas for Medicaid patients. They typically serve into Irfigen about once per day and

occasionally other communities in Morrow County. Vehicles include ambulatory and
wheelchair-accessible vans.

i £ FYLTON
Workforce Tronspon‘o’rlon is provided by some employers, such as Independent Transpert,
Atkinson Staffing, MJ's Labor, and others.

Other Transportation Service

TAXIZ
Limited taxi service exists in the northern region of Morrow County provided by taxi companies

based in Umatilla County (e.g., Umatilla Cab Company, Elite Taxi). There is no consistent taxi
service in eastern or southern Morrow County.

UMATILLA-RADRRDW CTOUNTY HEADSTART
Umatilla-Morrow County Headstart provides bus services for children enrolled at the Boardman

Center and Irrigon Headstart. The Oregon Child Development Coalition provides bus services for
children enrolled in the Migrant Education Program.

li\-!.gz TCE :‘/J\l i‘ 3 LR
Mid Columbia Bus Compony prov1des school transportation services, though buses can be
contfracted as charter bus fransportation if fleet and drivers are available. Should Mid Columbia

Bus Company not provide charter services, public entities in the region can contract to serve
these trips.

Rail Facilities

Rail services within Morrow County includes only freight service. Rail transportation has historically
been, and continues to be, an important avenue for moving goods within the region. Passenger
service had previously been provided via a stop at the Hinkle Railyard in Hermiston and is
desired by Morrow County residents to return. Future transit services should connect to
passenger rail service,

Page 24 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



- Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

RAIL FREIGHT FACILITIES

Rail freight services are provided to businesses in Morrow County by the Union Pacific Railroad:
from their main line, which parallels 1-84. Multiple spurs extend from this line: one serving the
coal-fired gas plant and another serving the Umatilla Ordinance Depot.

In fact, The Union Pacific main line running east-west through the Columbia River Gorge runs

through the Boardman Industrial Park, owned by the Port of Morrow. Through this connection,
the Port is able to transport its goods either to the Port of Portland or east into the continentall
United States.

The Hinkle Classification Yard, located 20 miles east of the Port of Morrow (near Hermiston,
Oregon), is the largest hump yard west of St. Louis. Through use of this facility, the Port is able to
access rail lines leading north info Canada and south into California. The Port is effectively able
to use rail service because of the Hinkle hump yard to send its products in many different
directions.

Historically, there were freight rail lines in place at the former Umatilla Chemical Depot
(previously known as the Umatilla Army Depot). There are no spurs currently active on the depot
land. The Union Pacific Mainline runs east and west adjocent to the southern border of the
depot property. Future development plans are to reconnect a spur off the UP mainland to the
depot property with connectivity fo serve future industrial sites that will be located at the depot.

PASSENGER RAIL FACILITIES

There has been no passenger rail service in Morrow County since the mid-1990s, when the
Amftrak Pioneer line between Salt Lake City, Utah and Portland, Oregon stopped operating. Loss
of this line not only removed service from Momrow County, but also from a regional perspective,
deleted service east to Salt Lake City. Amtrak does provide service between Portlond and
Spokane on its Empire Builder line. Morrow County residents must go to the Tri- Cities, the closest
stop, to use this service.

Airport Facilities

Two public airports exist in Morrow County currently limited to private aircraft. They include the
Lexington-Morrow County airport and the Port of Morrow airport west of Boardman. The closest
public air service is located in Pendleton, Oregon. Depending on the growth of Morrow County,
opportunities exist fo expand the Port of Morrow's airport facility to provide public air
transportation service. In addition to airport facilities, medical flight service is available in the
County.

LEXINGTON-MORROW COUNTY AIRPORT
Morrow County Airport in Lexington is owned and operated by Morrow County. There is an

Automated Weather Observation System and a 4,300-foot main runway that will accommodate
most intermediate size aircraft.

Lexington is located one-half mile north of the Town of Lexington city center, just west of
Highway 207. The airport access road is located approximately one-half mile north of the

Page 25 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



e Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

intersection of Highway 207 and Highway 74. The paved airport access road travels
approximately 4 mile from Highway 207 to the vehicle parking area.

The airport has been a base for agricultural spraying operators for many years, in addition to
accommodating general aviation, business, medical and charter activities. The airport currently
accommodates locally based single engine aircraft, including two turbine powered agricultural
aircraft. In addition to local aircraft, the airport accommodates intermediate general aviation,
business aviation, including turboprop, business jet and helicopter operations. Morrow County
has been the owner of the airport since 1960.

Location Identifier 959, FAA site Number 19500.5*A, Latitude 45-27-14.9000N, Longitude 119-41-
25.0000, Elevation 1634

The Airport Layout Plan for the Lexington-Morrow County Airport, acknowledged by DLCD in
2002, defines how the airport is planned to be used over the next two decades. The Air Industrial
Zone identified in the Airport Layout Plan has been applied as an overlay zone in the Morrow
County Zoning Ordinance. Copies of the Airport Layout Plan are available at the County Public
Works Department.

PORT OF MORROW AIRPORT FACILITY

The Port of Morrow purchased what was previously known as the Boardman airport. This facility
offers a 4,200-foot-long paved runway. This runway was designed to offer takeoff and landing
capability for heavy bombers and commercial passenger/cargo jets, but current use is
corporate jets and light general aviation aircraft.

After acquiring the airport, the Port of Morrow developed an Airport Industrial Park centering on
the 100-foot wide, 4,200-foot-long landing strip. Industrial sites are available for facilities that
would benefit from the capabilities of the airport as well as the general services provided by the
Port of Morrow. Sufficient land exists at the Port's Airport Industrial Park to extend the runway and
to offer a full range of aviation services depending on the need of future industrial, commercial,
or public clientele.

Future Port of Morrow improvements to the Airport Industrial Park focus on improved access for
ground transportation services. Also to be considered are the actions approving a major motor
speedway and related uses at the Boardman Airport.

LIFE FLIGHT SERVICES
Air Ambulance World provides life flight services to Pioneer Memorial Hospital in Heppner. These

services provide Intensive Care Unit (ICU)-equipped aircraft to transport patients between
medical facilities.

Page 26 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



SUMMARY OF
RELEVANT PLANS




‘ e sl | Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

SUMMARY OF RELEVANT PLANS

The Morrow County Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan (Morrow County CTP)
Update will identify public transportation needs for people with disabilities, seniors, individuals
with lower incomes, individuals with limited English proficiency, and others who depend on
public transportation services. The Morrow County CTP will seek fo minimize duplication of
services, identify gaps in services, identify unmet needs, and prioritize strategies for better public
transportation services. This section lists the relevant plans conducted since the 2016 Morrow
County CTP and identifies elements critical to this Morrow County CTP update. Reviewed
documents include:

Morrow County Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan (2016)

Port of Morrow Interchange Area Master Plan (IAMP, 2012 with ongoing update)

City of Heppner Transportation System Plan (2018)

Morrow County/Umatilla County Transit Development Strategies (2018)

Hermiston — Boardman Connector / Boardman — Port of Morrow Circular Report (2021)

In addition to these plans, the project team notes that the following documents were
completed prior to and incorporated in the 2016 Morrow County CTP:

»
»
»n
»n

Morrow County Heritage Trail Concept Plan (2000)

Boardman Main Street IAMP {2009)

City of lone Transportation System Plan (1999)

City of Lexington Transportafion System Plan (2003)

Irrigon Downtown Development Plan and Highway 730 Streetscape Plan {2009)
irrigon to Umatilla Highway 730 Corridor Plan (2008)

Morrow County Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan {(2014)

The 2016 Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan developed and documented
transportation needs, opportunities, and challenges for Mormrow County for key target
populations, including older adults, people with disabllities, and people with low incomes. In
addition to intra-city, commuters, the plan aims for better coordination with health and human
services providers. This document will be further evaluated in Task 3: Evaluation of Former Plan
Recommendations for relevancy and updates. Table 2 summarizes the documented transit-
related needs and opportunities from the 2016 Morrow County CTP.

Page 28 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



I ‘-. a "'-\-\I |
o ' Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Table 2: 2016 Morrow County CTP Needs/Opportunities

Information and Marketing

Market The Loop to
the general public

Bilingual information
and marketing

Geographic

Service to medical
facilities

Connections to Port
of Morrow

Inter-county service

Kayak service to
Boardman

Long-distance trips

Regional
transportation
network

Temporal

Late night/very
early morning
service

Organization

Employer
coordination

Funding silos
dictate service
eligibility
requirements

Focus marketing so that all individuals know they can use The
Loop., and it is not only for "“special transportation.”

Morrow County’s large Spanish-speaking population may not
be aware of transit service availability.

Central/southern Momrow County residents need access to
Pioneer Memorial Hospital in Heppner while those in horthern
Morrow County generally need to get to Tri-Cities or Umatilla
County hospitals.

Dense employment clusters at Port of Momow could support
transit, carpools, or vanpools.

Morrow County residents must often travel to Tri-Cities,
Umatilla County, or farther destinations for services.

Kayak currently links Pendleton through Hermiston to Irrigon.
The agency has thought about extending service to
Boardman. The county and Boardman can work with Kayak

to assess service viability and support expansion, if warranted.

Current volunteer and veteran's programs transport
passengers 100 miles or more 1o services on a regular basis,
including destinations such as Portland or Walla Walla.

Many providers serve the greater region, but service lacks
coordination. A system with a mix of regional intercity routes
supported with demand-response services and
vanpools/carpools would provide all-day mobility options
serving multiple markets.

Employees working 2nd and 3rd shifts (late night and early
morning) do not have transit options available.

So far one employer has shown interest in providing
fransportation options to employees at the Port of Morrow.
The Loop can reach out o this employer and others to
educate employers about existing service and find out
transportation needs.

Special Transportation Funds, Highly Rural Transportation
Grants, Title llIB, and Medicaid are some of the funding
sources being used to provide transportation in Morrow
County and ifs neighbors. Comingling clients funded by
separate sources on one vehicle is often either disallowed
outright or is not encouraged, resulting in low passenger
productivity per vehicle or hour.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Modify —
Implement
service o
Boardman

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Page 29 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



N ) Motrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan
]

Technology
. . . Modify -
A The county plans to purchase scheduling software, which will .
Scheduling ; 3 - - Monitor
enable The Loop to potentially increase service productivity
software s : . purchased
and also coordinate with other providers.
software
Operations
Lack of volunteers The Loop relies upon volunteers, which are often in short No
supply.
Residents do not have access to regularly scheduled service Yes

Lack of regular

) offerings that do not require a reservation, making transit
service

inconvenient.

Some passengers are not able to board vehicles at the curb Yes
without assistance, meaning the volunteer must be able to
provide assistance.

Door-through-door
assistance

Underserved Markets

e L There is no public transportation Medicaid authorized Yes
Medicaid recipients . :
provider in the county.
Hispanic Hispanic populations in Morrow County (Boardman, Iirigon) Yes
P . do notf have access to or know of how to use available public
community .
transit
The VA clinic in Boardman can provide some services and Yes
has capacity to serve more people, but funding is limited and
Veterans its continued operation is in question. Continued outreach

needed to alert veterans about Veteran's Choice program
providers in Momrow County.

Port of Morrow Interchange Area Master Plan (IAMP, 2012 with ongoing update)

The Port of Morrow IAMP was prepared for the I-84/Laurel Lane interchange to preserve the
capacity of the interchange while providing safe and efficient operations between connecting
roadways. The IAMP establishes near-term and long-term recommendations for the inferchange
and surrounding roadway network. The ongoing update cumrently proposes refined interchange
area designs with walking and biking facilities, but does not include mention of transit needs.

Morrow County/Umatilla County Transit Development Strategies (2018)

The 2018 Morrow County/Umatilla County Transit Development Strategy evaluates needs and
identifies sfrategies and solutions that address these needs. The transit-related needs identified in
this plan are summarized below.

TRANSIT SERVICE

»  Add transit service not just to major population centers, but to the various rural
employment clusters that exist throughout Morrow and Umatilla County. Major
employment clusters that should be a focus of this study include:

e Port of Mormrow

Page 30 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

e [|-84/I-82/Westland Road interchange area
US 395 (south of Hermiston) industrial area
e McNary/Port of Umdatfilla area

»  Increase the geographic scope of fixed route fransit service. Areas for consideration
include:
e City of Boardman/Port of Morrow

City of Arlington

City of Heppner/City of Lexington

Tri-Cities in Washington State

OR 11 corridor between Pendleton and Milton-Freewater/Walla Wailla, WA.

»n  Consider the special needs of providing transit service to industrial areas and rural
employment clusters.
e Take into account employee shift patterns when considering transit service to
industrial areas and employment clusters.
o Broad service spans that accommodate the variety of work shifts that exist at many
large-scale employment centers.

»  Some employment clusters such as the Port of Morrow and Port of Umatilla/McNary area
have a large geographic footprint. Transit service to these areas may necessitate smaller
shuttle service to more efficiently serve the various businesses that are located too far
from transit stops or lack adequate pedestrian facilities.

IMFRASTRIN S
»  Construct and integrate Park-and-Ride facilities along the 1-84 corridor. Planning for Park-
and-Ride facilities has already been included in the recent City of Pendieton
Transportation System Plan and Mission Area Community Plan.

n  Construct new pedestrian improvements to accommodate fransit service in employment
clusters.

iy e o N T A AT A T - -
[BEFES ELE FORG AN ey Ds

RN

»  Coordinate services that cross jurisdictional and transit provider service area boundaries.

»  Coordinate services among social service agencies, senior centers, medical facilities,
employers, and other organizations to share information about local fransportation
options, fraining opportunities, and other information.

»  Apply technological solutions to facilitate coordination efforts.

SOVR T A NIER TN I g ] e
LA r:\*\“ Losu M 1\]1_,3, 03

»  Sustainable funding fo maintain and provide for service additions and route
enhancements.

»  Fare subsidies for several population groups (fixed incomes, those with medical plans that

don't cover transportation, for medical trips, for accompanying caregivers).

Page 31 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



‘ :': , Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

City of Heppner Transportation System Pian (2018)

The City of Heppner TSP highlighted issues and opportunities related to transit, including those
related to information and marketing, technology, operations, and the market for transit service.
With regards to physical improvements, the City of Heppner TSP highlights the need for a larger
long-term facility for fleet storage, maintenance and operations, vehicle upgrades,
shuttles/vanpools, fixed-route feasibility in Heppner, and continued demand-response service.
Table 3 summarizes the identfified transit-related issues and opportunities in the City of Heppner
TSP.

Page 32 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



" } Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

_Toble_ 3: City of Heppner TSP Transit Plan - Issues and Opportunities

Information
and
Markefing

Technology

Operations

Market for
Transit
Service

General pu_b_lic may not be aware of The
Loop Service

Potential to appeal to younger generation
who is interest in transit

Dispatching and schedule done manually

Limited vehicle amenities; long trip
distances

Fleet has outgrown existing Heppner bus
barn

Not all The Loop vehicles are equipped with

wheelchair lifts or ramps.

Long-term staffing for The Loop uncertain

Lack of volunteers/unmet demand - 17
denials in the month of September

Limited funding for system expansion

Difficult to serve agricultural sector workers
and Port of Morrow; destfinations not on
main roads and demand for employees
ebbs and flows.

Trip distances on The Loop are very long.
People must travel far from Heppner to
major destinations, which is difficult to
address with regular transit service.

Desire to expand public transportation both

within Heppner as well as connecting to
regional destinations.

Although Heppner is compact, topography

and consideration of those with limited
mobility may indicate demand for infra-
Heppner transit

TD0

Continue marketing service to all Morrow

County residents

Increase marketing and social media
presence

Staff currently receiving training on new
scheduling software. Pursue a contract
with software provider to automatically
handle scheduling and dispatch.

Study the possibility of offering wi-fi on
vehicles fo increase appeal to broader
range of riders.

Explore options for building or renting
larger long-term facility in Heppner,
Lexington, or the surrounding area.

Upgrade vehicles when funding
becomes available,

Form a succession plan fo account for
current staff retirement, and hire new
staff with specific fransit planning
experience.

Identify additfional volunteer drivers to
expand the volunteer pool beyond the
existing nine. Explore ways to incentivize
additional volunteers, such as by
increasing the daily reimbursement rate.

Oregon HB 2017 will allocate additional
funding for Morrow County
transportation — possibly $100,000 -
$200,000 annually beginning in FY 2020.

Shuttles or vanpools may best serve
employment market

Consider connecting people via Momrow
County transit to locations served by
other providers, like Kayak. Transit to
Hermiston, for example, would allow a
person to fravel via Kayak to Pendieton,
Tri-Cities, or La Grande, for example.

Study feasibility of establishing fixed
route service in the near future. Look to
Grant County People Mover as a
potential example.

Continue providing demand-response
service within Heppner

Page 33 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



=N Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Hermiston — Boardman Connector / Boardman — Port of Morrow Circular Report
(2021)

The Hermiston — Boardman Connector / Boardman — Port of Morrow Circular Report identified
the preferred operations of two new services:

»  The Hermiston- Boardman Connector, a clockwise and counterclockwise fixed-route
loop between Hermiston, Umatilla, Irrigon, and Boardman utilizing the 1-84, Westland
Road, US 395, and US 730 corridors. Service would be provided by Kayak Public Transit.
»  Boardman - Port of Morrow Circular, a deviated fixed-route service covering the Port of
Morrow with a flexible deviation zone and the City of Boardman along Columbia
Avenue, Main Street, Wilson Lane, Boardman Avenue, and other local roadways. Morrow
County's the Loop would operate the Circular.
In addition to the services, key outcomes for Morrow County include bus stop improvements in
the County, bicycle and pedestrian connections fo those stops, and the need for a Morrow
County fransit center, storage and maintenance, and/or park-and-ride facilities, likely in
Boardman and/or Irrigon.

Near-term implementation needs (verbatim from the Final Report) include:

»  Pursue funding through the identified funding sources or others that arise to support
operating and capital costs.

»n  Coordinate with local jurisdictions, businesses, and property owners to establish stops and
seek bus stop and access improvements.

» Develop marketing and advertising materials in conjunction with partners.

»  Improve local coordination, potentially through dedicated staff at transit agencies
and/or designated liaisons at the local agencies.

»  Plan for property acquisitions and/or capital improvement of existing properties for
regional facilities such as fransit centers, park-and-rides, and vehicle maintenance and
storage facilities as described in this Report.

»  Refine the fransit schedules through ground-truthing prior to implementation.

»  Monitor system performance and demand over time and consider adjustments to
service.

Morrow County Transporation System Pian

The Morrow County Transportation System Plan (TSP) was recently updated to incorporate
recent transit planning efforts. The TSP reiterates many of the needs discussed above, and also
describes the desire for improved long-distance rail and bus transportation in the County. The
TSP identifies other roadway, biking, and walking facility improvements that can support and
promote transit use.

Page 34 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



STAKEHOLDER
INVOLVEMENT




. ' Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT

Stakeholder involvement is essential for a successful Coordinated Transportation Plan. Engaging
the appropriate organizations and individuals in this planning efforts is critical to identifying the
needs of the target populations, the public tfransportation resources available, local context,
and prioritization of strategies.

This section summarizes responses to a provider survey to inventory transportation services in
Morrow County, provider interview summary, stakeholder workshop feedback, and Morrow
County Public Transportation Advisory Committee (PTAC) feedback.

Inventory Survey

The inventory survey asked questions regarding existing services provided, rider use of the
system, COVID-19 pandemic impacts, funding, and needs identified by each agency and/or its
clients. Responses from the inventory survey were received from the following providers:

»n  City of Hermiston's Hermiston WORC program

»  Columbia River Health

»  Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR)'s Kayak Public Transit
»  Gilliam County Transportafion

»  Good Shepherd Health Care System's CareVan

»  Greyhound (via Isaacs & Associates)

»  Morrow County

Responses from these providers helped to revise and supplement the pre-populated inventory of
existing services. In addition, responses were used to understand needs and potential strategies.
Key findings related to goals and needs from the responses are as follows:

»  Allrespondents serve the general public, and most noted that they serve tribal members,
low-income households, people with disabilities, older adults, homeless populations,
veterans, people with limited English proficiency, people with chronic medical needs,
and people in recovery from substance abuse.

»  The most common trip purpose includes medical/dental appointments, social service
appointments, grocery shopping, and recreation.

n  Key transportation challenges faced by clients include:

e Localroutine trips such as appointments, work, and grocery shopping aren't
accessible by fransit

e Lack of understanding on how to use the transit system

e Transit frips take longer than a client's capacity for travel

Lack of resources to pay for transportation services

Public transit service does not operate late enough in the evening

An accessible vehicle isn't always available

Bus stops are not close enough to residences and/or destinations like work

Eligible trip purposes are limited (e.g., for medical, senior nutrition, day program, or

work trips only)

¢ Difficulty making reservations for demand response services

e @ o o

Page 36 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



ﬁ Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

»  Severdl providers don't have ADA accessible vehicles

»  Most respondents require reservations to be made in-advance (typically 24 hours), rather
than within an hour or two

»  Average ridership is at about 40-50% of pre-COVID levels for Greyhound, Columbia River
Health, senior services, and Kayak Public Transit. Gilliam County and the WORC program
are near their pre-COVID levels.

»  Providers responded to COVID by reducing service when-needed (either frequency,
service type, or stopping service altogether), using vehicles for food transportation,
limiting trip purposes, reducing the number of passengers per vehicle, and implementing
disinfecting procedures

»  Key funding includes federal, state, county, and city-level funding, as well as grants,
private donations, and fares.

e Morrow County has secured the DLCD Rural Transportation Equity Fund grant and is
looking to incorporate it into the CTP.

»  Columbia River Health added that a stop near their clinic on future services would be
helpful for clients,

Other feedback, that doesn't necessarily impact goals and needs, include:

»  Most respondents directly provide transportation services and own their own fleet (rather
than lease), except for the City of Hermiston

Full details are included in Appendix A.

Interview Summary

Interviews were conducted to further expand on survey responses and explore other topics
stemming from initial questions. Interviews were conducted with the following providers:

»  Gilliam County

»  Grant County

»  Greyhound

»  Kayak Public Transit
»  Morrow County

»  Wheeler County

Detailed notes are provided in Appendix B. Key themes from these discussions include:

»  Obtaining drivers is challenging for all agencies.

»  Dial-o-ride services are generally back to their pre-COVID demand, with several
agencies not seeing changes to demand during COVID.

»  Greyhound services are down in ridership, and the provider will need to see ridership
return more before returning to 2 roundtrips per day for service, which is currently at 1
roundftrip per day.

»  Most public providers primarily serve elderly, people with disabilities, and low-income
populations, and typically for medical and grocery shopping trips.

Page 37 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

) Marketing and education is challenging, many members of the public don't know that
the services exist. Leveraging local organizations and agencies to market services could
be helpful.

Stakeholder Workshop

The summary of relevant plans, demographics, inventory of existing services and resources, and
draft goals and objectives were presented to stakeholders during a workshop. Key comments
and needs from the discussion are as follows:

»  In addition to the STF/highly rural funds, note that STIF and other funding sources should be
used efficiently and allow for passengers sharing vehicles and rides, regardless of funding
source.

» It's important to have parking availability for the workforce, and also consider how working
parents get to and from childcare. Can buses provide car seats? Bike parking?

» Look at wheelchair charging stations at more stop locations.

»  ODOT has a micromobility pilot program, looking at this for electric scooters, golf carts, etc.
for first/last-mile connections in the Port would be helpful.

»  Explicitly state that providers with both paid and unpaid drivers were surveyed and are
present in the area.

»  Improve services goal should discuss workforce, connecting people with disabilities, low-
income populations, and access like parking, scooters and other micromobility

»  Think more regionally, provide linkages between other areas and plans. How do these
plans work together? '

» For funding, include partnerships with employers

»  For staff, seek other training opportunities, increases to driver pay to be competitive,
bilingual staff

»  Focus the plan on "Human™ — what are all the needs? Making sure fo integrate into other
plans.

Morrow County Public Transportaticn Advisory Commitiee (PTAC) Presentation

This draft CTP was presented to the Morrow County Public Transportation Advisory Committee on
July 191, 2022, for review and feedback. The PTAC was in agreement with the CTP's identified
needs, strategies, and pricrities. The PTAC noted that obtaining resources, such as funding and
vehicles, can be challenging in Morrow County. A statement was added to the Implementation
and Monitoring Program section to highlight that the identified timeframes are outlined by need,
and that resources must be obtained to be able to implement the strategies.

Page 38 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



()]
> i
< 2
20
AE
O
OO




e Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Goals and objectives were developed based on statewide and regional plans, local needs, and
survey and stakeholder feedback. These were refined based on input from the Project
Management Team {PMT), Morrow County PTAC, and further stakeholder input.

»  Goal 1. Provide improved service to meet the needs of all community members, with a
focus on those reliant on public transportation.

¢ Objective TA. Prioritize improvements, with the help of the DLCD transit equity grant
and similar efforts, for transit-dependent people, including low-income populations,
people with disabilities, zero-vehicle households, racial and ethnic minorities, older
adults, youth, people with limited English proficiency, and veterans.

¢ Objective 1B. Improve access to education and work opportunities, in particular at
the Port of Morrow, via new and improved fransportation services and coordination
with private transportation providers.

o Objective 1C. Determine customer needs through direct outreach, consultation with
service providers, and findings from other planning efforts.

e Objective 1D. Improve convenience through mobile tools and apps that integrate
regional and neighboring transportation services.

o Objective 1E. As services are implemented and improved, promote safe and
comfortable transit facilities and low-stress walking and biking connections, especially
at transit centers and major transit stops.

e Objective 1F. Collaborate with local governments and connecting transit providers to
ensure transit service meets the needs of riders.

»  Goal 2. Provide reliable transportation options for health-supporting destinations.

e Objective 2A. Enhance service to connect to grocery stores, pharmacies,
recreational centers, social service agencies, and other community resources.

¢ Objective 2B. Collaborate with all fransportation service providers, pairing traditional
fixed-route and demand-response services with first-/last-mile connection options
such as shuttles, transportation network companies (TNCs}, sharing of bikes and other
mobility devices, and cooperative programs such as those within assisted living
communities.

e Objective 2C. Support enhancements to long-distance services, such as passenger .
rail, Greyhound service within Morrow County, and transportation by private
providers, for access to medical, employment training, and other opportunities not
available in Morrow County.

» Goal 3. Provide reliable transportation options for economic opportunities.

¢ Objective 3A. Enhance service to connect to educational centers, government
centers, job centers, and other community resources.

o Objective 3B. Collaborate with large employers to help meet the transportation
needs of employees, especially for those who are working non-traditional business
hours (early morning/late night shifts).

e Objective 3C. Coordinate with other public agencies and divisions, such as those
responsible for land use planning, housing, and development review, to strengthen
transit effectiveness and include transit considerations in growth and development.

Page 40 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

»  Goal 4. Improve marketing of services and education across fransportation service areas.

e Objective 4A. Improve fransit education and marketing, particularly through
outreach to fransportation-disadvantaged and underserved groups that focuses on
bilingual marketing and outreach and fravel fraining.

e Objective 4B. Collaborate with transit agencies to share public transit information in a
variety of formats and media to inform and attract new transit users, such as
improving availability of route and schedule information as well as access to real-
time arrivals and other data.

e Objective 4C. Promote fransit-supportive measures that make bus stop availability
clear, including frip planning services, wayfinding signage, stop amenities (e.g., bike
racks), and more.

»  Goal 5. Pursue stable funding sources fo maintain and lower fransportation costs to the
public.

o Objective 5A. Foster new and innovative partnerships to share and leverage
resources, improve services, and further create awareness of transportation services
in and nearby Morrow County.

o Objective 5B. Pursue clean fuel for transit vehicles, such as electrification of the future
vehicle fleet and infrastructure, to reduce gas and maintenance costs.

e Objective 5C. Identify a range of needs, opportunities, and strategies that can be
ready to take advantage of grant funding opportunities, such as those focused on
employment, capital improvements, service reliability, and/or geographic coverage.

» Objective 5D. Identify vehicle storage and maintenance and public-friendly transit
center sites to reduce "deadhead"” mileage and costs.

»  Goal 6. Recruit and retain staff to be able to provide reliable services.

e Objective 6A. Partner with Oregon Employment Department and neighboring transit
providers to promote and access Commercial Driver's License (CDL) training centers
and reduce costs to agencies and/or potential drivers.

* Objective éB. Consider ways to provide transportation for driver or staff training
opportunities or market existing services for job access opportunities.

e Objective 6C. Conduct regular feedback with staff to ensure workplace satisfaction
and identify opportunities to improve working conditions.

e Objective éD. Monitor salaries, incentives, and benefits of peer agencies to promote
fair living wages to transportation provider staff.

Page 41 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



NEED AND
STRATEGIES




Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Pian

NEEDS AND STRATEGIES

Based on the above analysis, the needs and corresponding strategies are summarized below.
Many strategies meet multiple needs. While displayed as tied to each individual need here, the
strategies are expanded and prioritized individually in the next section.

»

n

Need: Provide local and regional connectivity for fransit-dependent groups, especially in

Heppner, Boardman, and Lexington, which have high percentages of people with

disabilities, people experiencing poverty, racially diverse populations, and zero vehicle

households

¢ |Implement and continue to monitor the Boardman — Port of Morrow Circular and
Hermiston — Boardman Connector

e Begin on-demand shuttles fo communities such as Heppner, Lexington, lone, and
other communities not connected to the fixed-route system.

e Enhance service hours and/or number of vehicles operating at a fime dial-a-ride
services

e Promote and/or subsidize vanpools

e Expand bilingual information and marketing program

Need: Enhance services for populations in unincorporated areas and communities not

connected to the existing system, in particular for elderly populations

s Begin on-demand shuttles fo communities such as Heppner, Lexington, lone, and
other communities not connected to the fixed-route systfem.

e Enhance service hours and/or number of vehicles operating at a time dial-a-ride
services

o Coordinate with public and private providers to ensure access and eligibility

e Promote rideshares

Need: Ensure reliable fransportation for employment-based trips, especially for low-

income populations

e Implement and continue to monitor the Boardman — Port of Morrow Circular and
Hermiston — Boardman Connector

e Refine, implement, and continue to monitor the Heppner — Boardman Connector

e Refine, implement, and continue to monitor the Arington — Boardman Connector

e Promote and/or subsidize vanpools

e Expand marketing and partnerships via employers

Need: Maintain and enhance connections with other transportation providers

e Establish regular coordination meetings with connecting providers

e Enhance bus amenities throughout Boardman, Hermiston, and other locations that
currently exist or are planned to connect with The Loop and Kayak Public Transit.

Need: Better serve ridership on existing services

¢ Enhance weekend dial-a-ride and/cr future fixed-route service and later night/earlier
morning service

¢ Improve fare payment options for fransportation services that aren't free, including
affordable options for low-income populations and students

¢ Provide real-fime vehicle arrival information

Page 43 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



| i .' Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

»  Need: Enhance transit facilities

e Enhance bus amenities throughout Boardman, Hermiston, and other locations that
currently exist or are planned to connect with The Loop and Kayak Public Transit.

o Implement transit centers and major bus stops with higher levels of amenities

e Build bus storage and maintenance facilities to accommodate existing and future
buses

e Provide bilingual marketing materials at stops

e Consider the installation of wheelchair charging stations at transit stops

e Provide parking near stops

»  Need: Maintain and grow vehicle fleet to meet service needs
s Obtain new vehicles
o Establish capital replacement plan
e Investigate and pursue transition to alternative fuels
L]

Ensure adequate storage and maintenance capabilities, such as the planning effort
in Boardman

»  Need: Stabilize costs and grow funding streams
e Confinue to leverage local funds to obfain state and federal funds, such as the Rural
Transportation Equity Program
e Seek ways to share trips across funding pools (5310, 5311, RVHT, HRTG, etc.) while
maintaining separate ride records
e Investigate and pursue transition to alternative fuels

»  Need: Aftract and retain staff, including drivers, maintenance, supervisors, and
administration
e Partner with [ocal colleges fo communicate availability of job openings
e Seek peer review to ensure competitive wages and benefits
o Conduct regular feedback sessions with staff
e Provide professional development/continuing education opportunities
e Provide an employee recruitment/retainment incentive program

The following section brings forward the strategies discussed above, establishes evaluation
criteria, and presents the prioritized strategies.

Evaluation Criteria

The evaluation criteria for the strategies focus on the costs and benefits, ease of

implementation, and group(s) served or needs met. These criteria are established at the
following scales:

»  Costs — Roughly estimated costs considering the scale of implementation.
e $:Less than $25,000 Annually
o $$:$25,000 to $75,000 Annually
e $3%: Greater than $75,000 Annually

»  Benefits — Qualitative measure identifying expected outcome of the recommendation.
e +: Allows for services to continue operating as-is, such as retaining a fleet and staff
e ++:Enhances services slightly o moderately, such as adding slight geographic area
or service hours

Page 44 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



) Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

e +++:Enhances services substantially, such as adding new connections regionally

»  Difficulty of Implementation — Considers whether the strategy can be implemented
quickly and with little complication, beyond costs to implement.
o Low: Infrastructure, staff, and other resources are already in-place
e Medium: Some infrastructure, staff, and other resources are in-place, but more will
need to be obtained
o High: No infrastructure, staff, or other resources are in-place

n  Group(s) Served/Needs Met — Considers how many of the following groups benefit from
this strategy: Low-income populations, people with disabilities, youth, older adults,
racial/ethnic minority, zero vehicle households, households with Limited English
Proficiency, veterans, and employees.

o @:Fewer groups served/needs met
o ®:Many groups served/needs met

Results and Prioritization

Using the above evaluation criteria, the strategies were evaluated and prioritized in Table 4. High
priority strategies are generally lower cost, provide greater benefits, have lower difficulty to
implement, and serve the needs of more groups.

Page 45 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



*DU| 'SI0ID0SSY 3 UOSIONIY | 9F aBnd

ybIH @ Mo + S 1JDIS YHM SUOISSSS 300 a9} IninBal 1onpuo)d
ybiH ® MOT + N siaplacid BuILoOauUU0D yiim sBulleawl Uolbuipiood Jpinbal ysigolsy

uolPUIPI00D ADuaBy-Iaju] puD |DUISjU|

MO L)) wnipaw + NN sdoys 1osu Bupjind aplAcld
wnipaw D) wnIpaw + $ sdoJs [ISUDJ) 1o sUolBLS BUIBIDYD JIDYD|S9UM JO UOID|IDSUI 8Y} JBPISU0D
SaIUSWD

winipaw & winjpaw ++ NN J0 sjoA2] 18ybBIy ypm sdojs snq 1ofpw pup s1ajuad jisunyy juswajduw)

“JISUDIL 2l|gNd YOADY pup
doo7 8yL Y}IM [D8UUOD O] Pauupn|d 910 IO ISIXS A[JUS.LND JOY} SUOIDDO|
yBiH ') MO1 ++ $ JOU[0 PUD ‘UOJSILLISH ‘UDWPIDOg INOYBNOIY} SalUSWD SNg 82uUpyug

SSHI|IoD4 9Py PuD sdoys Hsub.]
921AJSS BUlUIOW JBII0S/1UBIU JB1D)

MO17 @ ybiH ++ &l PUD 9DIAIBS ©IN0I-PAXI) 8ININJ JIO/PUD SPU-D-|OIP PUS3a8M 8oUDYU]
ybIH D) wnipaw ++ S sjlo0dupA 9ZIPISaNS J0/PUL 8joUIoId
S©DIAIDS OPU-D-DIP
wnipaw ) Wwnipaw ++ auill o Jo Bulpoiedo $821YDA JO 1ISQUINU JO/PUD SINOY 9D1AISS 8DUDyul
‘WIBISAS ©JNOI-PBXI) Y} O} POLIOBUUOD JOU SSIHUNLULIOD JB8YLO PUD 'SuQ|
wnipaw 5] wnpaw +++ RES 'uolBuxe “Jeudda SO YoNS SOIIUNWWOD O} $314NYS pupWSP-uUo uibag
10}DBUU0D
wnipaw ® ybiH +++ NS UPWIPJIDOY — UOIBUIY SYl JOLUOW O} 8NULUOD PUD ‘Juswis|dudl ‘aulsy
lojoauuo)
ybiH @ ybIH +++ SSS ubwp.nog - 1suddagy ay} Jojluow O] SNUIUOD PUD ‘fuswsidwl ‘auysy
JOJ2BUUOD) UDWIPRINOg — UOISILLISH PUD JO|NDIID
ybIH @ Mo +++ INNY MOLIOW JO [I0d — UDWIPIDOg By} JOHUOW Of 9NUILUOD PUD Jusws|dw
S9DJAISS PUD SaN0Y
- Ajond  JOW sp@aN | uoybjuawajdu) r T O At e A R SRR R R )
Buyinsay /pamas (s)dnoio j0 Ainougia Emmmu 1500 JATT N [ . - fAeypys

saljliold pup saibaybys " 2|gp]

up|d uoippIodsupi] PajPUIPIo0) AJUNOD MOLIOW




"DU| '$81DID0SSY *g Uos|al | /i abbd

uDWIPIoOg Ul JJoJje Buluupid 8y} SO YyoNns ‘sasng ainin} pup

ybiH © wnipaw + $6S  BUISIXS S{DPOWIIODID O} $81H[IDD) 8dUDUBjUIDW PUL 86PI0|S NG PliNg

wnipsw ()} ybiH ++ SSS s|an} aAljouUIS)|D Of UolsUDl} ansind PUL a4PBISOAU|

ybIH C)) MO + S up|d juswoopidai |PdD Yslidris3

ybiH @ wnipaw ++ $$ $9|2]Y8A M3BU UIDIAO

SSI|I>D4 puD }33|4

spuopNs

pup suoip|ndod aWwodUl-MO| 10} sUoldo s|gppIoL Bulpn|oul ‘eal)

wnipa2w (), wnipaw ++ XN },UlD 1oy} sedlales uolbuodsundy o) suolido JuswApd aip) sAaoidw|

spJo2al apl @jpipdas Bujupiuibw afiym (048

Y61 © wnipaw + $ 'OLYH ‘IHAY ‘L LES ‘01€S) slood Buipuny ssoion sdii} 810ys Of SADMm %89S

ybBiH ® Mo ++ NS UOILOULIOLUI [OALUD DJDIYSA SWI-|Dal 9PIACI

ABojouys9s}]

wnjpsw @ winipaw ++ S selpysapl ajowold

uybIH () Mo + S sBuiuedo gol 10 AlIgD|IDAD 31D2IUNWIWIOD O} $869|0D [0D0| UIIM JaUlIDd

ybIiH © MO + SS wnJBoid Buyaiow puo uoPULIOUI [PNBUNIg puDdxdg

ybiH ")) Mo + NS sdols 1o s|puaiow Bullaxow [onbuljig SPIAOId

ybIH ) MO + S sisAojdwa pIA sdiysisupnd pup Buaxiow pupdx3

uoybuwliou| [puIdix3 pup Buyapw

ybiH @ MO + NS winJBoId 8AIJUSDUI JUBWIUIDISI/IUSWILINIDA) 88A0IAWS UD 8pPIACId

y5biH & MO1 + S solunuoddo uolp2NPS BUuINUIJUOD/1UBWAO|SASP [PUOCISSS,0.Id BPIACId

wnjpaw ® MO17 + NN sjjeuUaq pup sebom SAILISAUWOD BINSUS Of MBIASI 18ad Yoog

winiBoid Ajinb3 uoypuodsuply [LINY 8y} SO Yons

ybiH & Mo17 + $ ‘SpUNJ |0JSP3) PUD 81D4S UIDIQO O} SpUNy |DD0] BDISAS| O 8NUUOD

Aiaibie

y61H MO PUD 58220 8INsud 0} siapircid aipAud pup 2lgnd YHm sjoulploo)d

%10._—“_& S = “_comﬂ.mtﬂﬁﬂ_ﬂ—t_ | 5 = . £ o WL 1 T i SR

mEm:nWM Yo vﬂ?_%m a&ﬂ:ﬁ._mv g - 7 =TT i it e MR ML e e T s S0 e




IMPLEMENTATION AND
MONITORING PLAN




IMPLEMENTATION AND MOMITORING PLAN

Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

This section identfifies funding opportunities and timeline for the high-priority strategies and
describes the considerations and partners to get recommendations on-the-ground.

Table 5 shows the funding sources that were assessed for each strategy and their primary area
of eligibility for operating, capital, city/county facilities (primarily walking and biking
connections), and marketing and outreach.

Table 5. Funding Sources

Funding
Source

Federal Transit
Administration
(FTA) Grants

Description

Section 5304: Non-Metropolitan Transportation Planning Grant. Funds are
allocated to states, which then distribute them to regional and local
agencies for fransit planning. Planning needs to be cooperative,
continuous, and comprehensive, resulting in long-range plans and short-
range programs reflecting transportation investment priorities.

Section 5310: Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities .
Formula funding fo states and metropolitan regions for the purpose of
meeting the fransportation needs of seniors and people with disabilities.
ODOT dllocates state 5310 funds fo rural areas via local STF agency and
may reserve for discretionary programs.

Section 5311: Rural Area. Formula funding to small cities and rural areas
with populations of less than 50,000 for transit capital, planning, and
eperations, including job access and reverse commute projects. Funds are
apportioned to states based on a formula that includes land areq,
population, revenue vehicle miles, and low-income individuals in rural areas
and funds are distributed to providers through ODOT. Additionally, no less
than 15 percent of funds must be spent on the development and support of
intercity bus fransportation, unless the intercity bus needs of the state are
being adequately met.

Section 5339: funding through an allocation process to states for small urban
and rural areas, and transit agencies in large urban areas, to replace,
rehabilitate, and purchase buses and related equipment and to construct
bus-related facilities.

Other: The FTA periodically releases additional funding opportunities. In 2019,

the FTA released the Integrated Mobility Innovation opportunity, providing
$15 million for demonstration projects focused on Mobility on Demand,
Strategic Transit Automation Research, and Mobility Payment Integration.
For FY20, the FTA also announced the Mobility for All Pilot Program to invest
in mobility options for older adults, individuals with disabilities, and people
with low incomes, aimed to enable connections to jobs, education, and
health services. The FTA also provides Section 5314 - Technical Assistance
and Workforce Development grants, which support technical assistance
and educational activities that enable more effective and efficient delivery
of fransportation services, foster compliance with federal laws (including the
ADA). These types of funding opportunities can help ODOT and providers
invest in innovative and effective practices and partnerships.

Operating

Eligibility
(7]
2
23
=5 O
E [ 1S
a £
O 3
O
S~
2
(@)
X
X
X

> Marketing/Outreach

Page 49 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



State Special
Transportation
Funds (STF)

Statewide
Transportation
Improvement

Fund (STIF)

Highly Rural
Transportation
Grant (HRTG)

Rural Veteran
Healthcare
Transportation
Grant (RVHT)

Private/Public
Sponsorships

STIP Enhance

Multimodal
Impact Fees

ODOT Safe
Routes to
School Grant
Program

Transportation
Options
Program

Rural
Transportation

Allocated by the Oregon Legislature every two years. Funds may be used X
for any purpose directly related to public transportation services for seniors
and people with disabilities.

Formula funds for expanding access to jobs, improving mobility, relieving X X

congestion, and reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while providing a

special focus on low-income populations. STIF funds may be used for public

transportation purposes that support the operations, planning, and -

administration of public fransportation programs and may also be used as

the local match for state and federal grants for public fransportation

service.

® 90% of STIF funds are distributed to Qualified Entities (Morrow County).

® 5% of STIF funds are available via discretionary grants for flexible funding.

e 4% of funds are available via discrefionary grants for projects enhancing
intercommunity service and the statewide transit network.

e 1% of the funds are allocated for program administration and a technical
resource center.

This grant-based federal program, under Veteran Affairs, provides demand- X
response services. It fransports Veterans in highly rural areas to VA-

authorized health care facilities. There is no cost fee, as long as the program

is available in the area the Veteran lives in.

This program, under ODOT, provides demand-response services, providing X
Veterans access fo physical, mental, and/or behavioral healthcare. Access

is not limited to VA-authorized health care facilities; access to services that
contribute to a veteran's well-being may be accommodated as well. This
program aims to focus its services to veterans but is open to shared rides

with civilians.

Private/public sponsorships involve a private entity, such as a local business X X X
owner, working with the public agency to fund a project (e.g., bus stop

shelter and sidewalk connection maintenance). In retum for their investment

in the community, these business owners often have recognition for their

role, providing a marketing venue for the business.

Funds allocated to projects 'fhro'ugh a cdmpeﬁﬁve grdhf opplicdﬁoﬁ X X
process. Eligible projects include public transit capital improvements.
Similar fo fransportation system development charges (SDC), but focused on X

improvements to multimodal fransportation options. In the event a TIF is

established, the fixed-route service could work to allocate a portion of funds

towards transit-enhancing improvements. ]

Eligible projects include safety improvements that positively affect the ability X X
of children to walk and bicycle to school. Projects must be within a public

road right-of-way, consistent with jurisdictional plans, supported by the

school or school district, within a one-mile radius of a school, and able to be

constructed within five years of the application. Project examples include

sidewalks, median refuge islands, rapid flashing beacons, etc. The minimum

funding request is $60,000, and the maximum is $2 million.

Discretionary grant program including initiatives such as Innovative Mobility

Grants, which ODOT is currently determining a framewaork for, and

Immediate Opportunity Grants of $5,000 or less for qualified activities.

Examples of eligible activities include:

e Transportation focused community events such as Open Streets, Bike
Rodeos, etc.

e Activities fo engage historically underserved communities in active or
multimodal transportation outreach or education

e Purchase of bike racks, helmets, locks, efc. associated with bike and
pedestrian safety outreach

This one-off ODOT funding opportunity seeks to support rural communities in:

Page 50 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



i " Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Equity e |dentifying and engaging underserved communities in rural areas to
Program provide transportation options like biking, walking, and public
transportation in order to access to critfical services and destinations;

e Building capacity within local governments to maintain relationships and
connections to underserved communities, with a focus on including
underserved groups in future planning efforts; and/or

e Matching communities' needs with outside funding opportunities |i.e.
Federal, State programs and resources) through strategic investment
planning.

Morrow County received this grant and will conduct outreach in the coming
year. Should this grant become a regularly provided fund, Morrow County
could continue to pursue this in the future.

In addition to these, roadway facility owners (cities, Morrow County, ODOT) can pursue walking
and biking facility improvements through the following funds:

»  Surface Transportation Block Grants »  All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS)
»  State Highway Fund »  General Fund

»  Road Fund Serial Levy »  Transportation Development Tax

»  Road Utility Fee »  System Development Charges (SDC)
»  Vehicle Registration Fee » Local Improvement District (LID)

»  Local-Option Fuel Tax »  Tax Increment Financing

»  Immediate Opportunity Funds »  Urban Renewal Districts

Table 6 aligns the high-priority strategies to the relevant funding sources and identifies a timeline.
The timeline is based on considerations such as securing staff, vehicles, or other resources to
implement the recommendation, whether an activity is ongoing or a discrete task, and what
other strategies need o be in-place before the strategy itself should be implemented. These
timeframes represent the ideal implementation timeline and are subject to the availability of
resources such as funding, staff availability, vehicles and facilities, and other factors.

Page 51 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



‘DU '$OIDID0OSSY B UOSIBIY | 26 8Bod

pung Alinb3 Jsupil 8y s Yyons
‘SpUNY [DJBPS) PUD 810JS UIDJQO 0} SpUNy |020] 8B0I8AS| O} 8NULUOD

SIA G-0 - E - - - - - - - - - - -

AjiqiBie

SIA 60 X X X X X PUD $58200 2INSUD O] SIaPIA0Id a1pAlLd PUD iGN YHMm S4pulplooD

SIA G-0 X X X X JIDIS YlIM SUOISSSS Y2pqpaa) Ininbal (onpuo)d

SIA 7> X X X X X SI3pPIA0Id BUI}D2UUOD Ylim sBUILESW UOIIDUIRI00D InjnBal ysjaolsy
uolbuiploo)d Aouaby-iaju] pup |pPUIdju| .

“1ISURIL Dl|gnd JYPADY pup

doo7 2yl YliM [D8UU0D Of pauupn|d ai0 O ISIX8 AlJUainDd [y} SUCIHDDO0]

SIA G-Q X X X X X X X JBYL0 PUD ‘UOISILLIBH ‘UpWIRIDOg JnoyBNoly} saljiiuswid sng sounyul

sal|IoDd 19p1Y pup sdojs jisubi]

SIAZ> X X X X X X sloodupA 87IpISgNs JO/PUD 9}0WI0Id

10JoBUU0D

SIA G-¢ X X X X X X X ubwipIoog — Jouddsey 8y} JOJUOW G} SNUILUOD PUD ‘jusws|dull ‘sulay

JO]22UUOCD) UDWIRIDOg — UOJSIUIBH pUD JIDINDIID

SIA 2> X X X X X X X MOUIOW O 1104 — UDWIPIDOY 8Y} JOJUOWI O} 9NUUOD PUD jusua|du)

S9DIAISS pUD S3INOY

ABajpys

sjood Bujpung 3|qp|IDAY puDp salbajpys Ajuoud YBIH *9 a|qpl

uD|d uolpjiodsupl] PaJPUIPIoOD AJUNOD MOLIOW




*DU| ‘SBIDIDOSSY "R UOS|aHY | €6 obbd

SIA G-¢
SIA 7>
SIA G0

SIA G-0
SIAZ>

SIA 60
SIA 7>
SIA G0
SIA G-0

SIA G0
SIA G0

X X X X

<X X X X

>

>

UDWIPIDOg Ul Loye Buiuub|d 8y} SO YoNns ‘sasng aInin puo

X X X BUIISIXS S10POWIIODDD O} SSIHID0} SoUBUdUIDW PUL 8BIOIS SN PliNg
X X X upid Juaweonidal [PIdDD Ys|apls3
X X X $8|DIYSA MBU UID}qO

SSYIIoD4 PuD }33]4

spJoDal spl ajpIndas BuluIDiUIDW SjIym (04e

X X ‘OLAH ‘IHAY ‘L LES ‘01€S) slood Buipuny ssoi00 sdif 2IpYs Of SAOM %985
X X UOIDWLIOJUI [DALID B|DIUSA SWI}-|Da) 9PIACI
ABojouysal]
X X sBuluSdo ol JO ALIGRJIDAD 3{PDUNUWILIOD O} $808[j0D |DDO0| YliMm Jaulod
X X wipJBold Bulpexiow pupL uolpuLoul [pNBUlg puodxg
X sdols 1o sjpuapwW Buaouw [PNBUlIg 8PIACI]
X X sioAojdwie pIA sdiysisupnd pub Busiiouw puodxl
uolpwLIoU| |PUIBIXT pub Buladpw
X X winiBo.id aAlUSD Ul JUBUIUIDISI/IUBUILINIDS] 88A0|dWS UD 8PIAOId
X X sallunoddo uolpoNPe BUINUIIUOD/IUBWAO|SASP |PUOISSS10Id BPIAOI

up|d uoypjiodsupi] PaDUIPI00D) AJUNOD MOLIOW

ABa}p ¢

1




Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Considerations and Partners

The following section describes additional considerations and partners to implement the high-
priority strategies.

ROUTES AND SERVICES

n

Implement and continue to monitor the Boardman - Port of Morrow Circular and Hermiston
- Boardman Connector: Morrow County has procured a vehicle and identified a preferred
operating plan for the Circular alongside Umatilla County, Kayak Public Transit, cities, and
stakeholder such as employers and healthcare representatives. As this strategy moves
forward, continuing to refine its stop locations and amenities, route schedule, and
marketing will be crucial o its success.

Refine, implement, and continve to monitor the Heppner - Boardman Connector: Morrow
County will need to procure a vehicle, hire a driver, and refine a preferred operating plan
for the Heppner — Boardman Connector. While entirely within Morrow County and
intended to be operated by MCPT, this service would still need coordination with partners
such as city staff, employers, health and social service agencies, and other organizations.
Promote and/or subsidize vanpools: Morrow County could implement this
recommendation by promoting programs such as Commute with Enterprise! or further
supporting vanpools by subsidizing this service, similar to Cascades East Transit's program
which subsidizes $500 per van per month2,

TRANSIT STOPS AND RIDER FACILITIES

»

Enhance bus amenities throughout Boardman, Hermiston, and other locations that
currently exist or are planned to connect with The Loop and Kayak Public Transit: While
establishing new bus stops in Morrow County, MCPT could start with basic amenities such
as signage at stops as ridership patierns become apparent. Higher-level stops may
warrant the need for benches, shelters, trash cans, bike racks, and more. Partners for this
strategy include land owners, primarily private property owners, cities, ODOT, and Morrow
County itself.

INTERNAL AND INTER-AGENCY COORDINATION

N

Establish regular coordination meetings with connecting providers: Partners for this strategy
include staff from connecting agencies such as Kayak Public Transit and the Hermiston
WORC program. These regular coordination meetings can help to identify further
opportunities 1o enhance services and reduce duplication of efforts.

Conduct regular feedback sessions with staff: Gathering feedback from MCPT staff can
help to not only improve staff morale and retention, but can also help to highlight rider
concerns and institutional challenges that may otherwise not be passed along to MCPT
administration staff.

Coordinate with public and private providers to ensure access and eligibility: Working with
both the public agencies previously identified and private providers, such as employers

' www.commutewithenterprise.com
2 https://www.commuteoptions.org/vanpool/

Page 54 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



78 06\
=N Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

and non-emergency medical transportation brokerages, can improve public access to
affordable fransportation services. This coordination can also support updating the
inventory of existing services and marketing services to the public.

» Continue to leverage local funds to obtain state and federal funds, such as the Transit
Equity Fund: MCPT can leverage local funds, such as those provided by city improvements
and private property owner development, to access state and federal funds. In addition
to property owners and infrastructure improvements as local match, services such as
vanpool programs offered by employers may be able to be used as local match.

» Provide professional development/continuing education opportunities: Professional
development and education helps to keep staff up-to-date on industry trends in addition
to basic training requirements, bringing fresh ideas to improve service back to Morrow
County. Beyond MCPT staff, MCPT could look to provide training and education to other
agency staff (ODOT, cities, efc.) through partnerships.

» Provide an employee recruitment/retainment incentive program: Attracting and retaining
staff is a challenge in providing reliable services. Establishing an incentive program can
help to expand the staffing pool and promote staff morale and retention.

MARKETING AND EXTERNAL INFORMATION

» Expand marketing and partnerships via employers: MCPT has strong connections to many
employers throughout the County, and continuing these partnerships can help to market
services to existing and potential employees. In addition to employers, MCPT can work
with neighboring transportation providers to educate the public on all available services.

» Provide bilingual marketing materials at stops: As bus stops are implemented, providing
information in both English and Spanish will be crucial to serving Limited English Proficiency
populations. MCPT can work with local organizations and community members to refine
the messaging and communication.

» Expand bilingual information and marketing program: Similar to the previous strategy,
expanding the bilingual information and marketing program can promote transportation
use for populations who often lack reliable options. This strategy could be implemented
imminently through the Rural Transportation Equity Program in partnership with community
groups. This program should be reviewed and revised as-needed following
implementation.

» Partner with local colleges to communicate availability of job openings: Promoting job
openings through local colleges not only attracts staff to MCPT, but also provides job
opportunities to younger populations who tend to be lower-income. In addition to the
colleges, Oregon Employment Department and workforce organizations such as New
Horizons would be helpful partners in implementing this strategy.

TECHNOLOGY

»  Provide real-time vehicle arrival information: MCPT is participating in iTransitNW, a trip
planning and bus tracking tool which several providers in the northeast Oregon and
southeast Washington markets use to present transit information in one place. Real-time
vehicle fracking is an aspect of iTransitNW, and allows for MCPT vehicles to be tracked
both in this application and in other tools such as Google Maps. While typically
implemented for fixed-route systems, real-time vehicle arrival information could also be

Page 55 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

helpful for dial-a-ride services and giving better estimated arrival times to these
passengers.

»  Seek ways to share trips across funding pools (5310, 5311, RVHT, HRTG, etc.) while
maintaining separate ride records: Institutional barriers can prohibit or limit the sharing of
trips when different funding pools are involved. Resolving these barriers can help to
efficiently use transportation services and meet the needs of the community. MCPT can
work with other public and private transportation providers to share trips and identify
technologies for tracking these dafa. They can also work with ODOT to identify where
barriers remain and work to resolve these at the state and federal levels.

FLEET AND FACILITIES

» Obtain new vehicles: To continue providing services and ultimately expand their system,
MCPT needs to regularly obtain new vehicles to replace aging fleets. An up-to-date fleet is
also less likely to breakdown, increasing reliability of the system and reducing
maintenance costs.

» Establish capital replacement plan: In addition to the activity of obtaining new vehicles, a
capital replacement plan can help MCPT to plan ahead for vehicle replacement and
additions. A capital replacement plan should also consider alternative fuel technologies,
specifically which service(s) could feasibly operate using alternative fuels based on
existing mileage limitations. Partners for this strategy may include utility companies and
other agencies and neighboring providers who may wish or need to charge their fleet
within Morrow County.

» Build bus storage and maintenance facilities to accommodate existing and future buses,
such as the planning effort in Boardman: MCPT's bus storage facilities are cumrently at
capacity. In addition fo currently planning efforts for a storage and maintenance/public-
facing transit center near Boardman, MCPT will continue to monitor the need for
additional facilities. Partners include property owners, and where the facility is public-
facing. the riders and any connecting transit providers.

Page 56 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



' 4 | Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

MONITORING PROGRAM

The following section provides a program to track fransit service performance and the success
of the plan's recommendations. The program is data-driven and is founded on performance
measures that can be tracked on a regular basis through set benchmarks. In most cases, these
performance measures are already fracked as part of Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
reporting requirements. This program enables a dynamic system where service adjustments can
be implemented and justified following performance evaluations.

Performance measures are divided into monitoring on an annual and a less-frequent (e.g.,
biennial) basis. Most of the recommended performance measures should be reviewed each
year; the performance measures identified for less-frequent review are less likely to fluctuate
meaningfully on an annual basis. As these performance measures are applied in the future,
Morrow County may adjust how often specific performance measures are examined.
Benchmarks also consider existing and future data availability.

Annual Review of Performance Measures

The following performance measures are recommended to be evaluated at least annually to
understand how the new services are being used. All but one of these measures are typically
already monitored for National Transit Database (NTD) reporting purposes.

» Capital costs: Examine annual capital costs directly to the service operator (Morrow
County} and improvements by facility owners (Morrow County, local cities, employers,
other property owners). This information is useful for budgeting for vehicle replacements
and additional transit-supportive infrastructure such as shelters, based on actual agency
cost experience.

» Operating costs: Tracks annual operating costs for the services. This information is useful for
evaluating cost frends for future budgeting purposes, and for calculating other
performance measures, such as cost per hour, that can be compared with peer agencies.

»  Annual rides: Tracks tfotal number of rides per year. This information is useful for evaluating
ridership trends, and for calculating other performance measures, such as rides per hour or
cost per ride, that can be compared with peer agencies. Transit providers typically also
track ridership more frequently (e.g., by month, by day of week) to help identify ridership
patterns and trends.

% Revenue service hours: Tracks total number of hours of revenue service provided. This
measure is used to calculate rides and cost per hour.

% Rides per hour: Tracks average annual rides per hour (productivity). Staff resources
permitting, tracking annual productivity by scheduled trip is useful for identifying and
supporting the need for schedule changes (e.g., addressing consistently over- or under-
utilized trips). for identifying the need to purchase higher-capacity vehicles, and for
targeting marketing efforts to increase ridership, among other uses.

»  Cost per hour: Tracks average annual operating cost per revenue hour. Cost per hour is a
useful measure to compare to peer agencies, to check whether one's costs and cost
frends are in line with, greater than, or less than one's peers.

Page 57 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



".".? Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

» Number of Deviation Request Denials (Circular service): Tracks the total number of deviation
requests denied on the Boardman — Port of Momrow Circular, to help identify the need for
schedule and/or route changes to maintain service reliability and attractiveness. In
addition, although more labor-intensive, tracking where and how frequently deviation
requests are made can be useful for making route adjustments to serve high-demand trip
origins and destinations.

Less-Frequent Review of Perfformance Measures

The following performance measures are either (1) less likely to change in a significant way on
an annual basis and do not need to be tracked each year, or (2) are time-intensive to evaluate
on an annual basis.

b System ease of use: Tracks improvements made to travel between communities or transit
providers, such as technology improvements (trip-planning, real-time tracking apps) and
timed fransfers between different fransit providers.

» Walking and bicycling access: Tracks the percentage of stops having a sidewalk/path,
bicycle lane/path, and/or crossings connecting to the stop.

Peer Comparison

While every fransit provider has unique service area and operating characteristics, comparing a
provider's performance to that of similar providers can help managers and decision-makers
gauge whether changes in performance match the experience of similar agencies, or may be
due to actions on the provider's part {either something to correct or something to continue,
depending on how performance changed). Transit agencies that receive federal funding are
required to report information about service miles, service hours, and ridership, among others, to
the NTD. Peer comparisons were conducted for Morrow County to understand existing and
potential performance using the most-recent year of available data, 2018. Peers were primarily
identified using the process described in TCRP Report 141: A Guidebook on Performance
Measurement and Peer Comparison in the Transit Industry, which uses factors such as type of
service provided, amount of service provided, geographic characteristics, and more.

Morrow County does not currently report data to NTD, given that it has not historicaily received
federal funding that requires NTD reporting. Therefore, several providers who provide service
similar to the proposed service were selected. These peers were matched based on an
estimated 5,000 service hours and about 50,000 annual service miles for the Port of Morrow
Circular and accompanying countywide dial-a-ride. This analysis only looked at local bus service
(i.e., not commuter bus or demand-response as reported to NTD). Similar providers include
CTUIR's local services, the City of Woodburn, South Clackamas Transportation District's (SCTD's)
Molalla service, Lane Transit District’s Florence service, and Malheur Council on Aging and
Community Service's [MCOACS's) Ontario service. All of these services connect to regional
fransit service. Table 7 provides the peer comparison evaluation and

Figure 10 shows rides per hour for the peer providers. Table 7 also shows city populations and
employments for each jurisdiction, with the Boardman numbers not including unincorporated

Page 58 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Port of Morrow employment. As shown, similar-sized providers typically generate 4-10 rides per
hour. Ridership is generally higher in communities with high employment such as Boardman.

Table 7. Transit Provider Compqrison (201 8) for Boardman - Port of Morrow Circular

s Dafo '|r* 3 \bocrdmon/Poﬂ ~ CIUR Cliy@f > SCTD (Clty lune Transit MCOACS =
pasny B UE _3 - 2 of Morrow 1(No Comﬁiuier[Bus) tWoodbufn of Mo‘lalla) IDIS“I’ICf (Clty (Cltng_f <
Tt e :-.',R.l_i' D Ao W ,.'.l;-:—-_,__,nr B ey ._ i ‘_'of Florence) d’niano) N

Population 3439 Hermiston- 17,423 25738 9155 8921 _10_98_6
Mission - 850
Employment 6,283+ Hermiston - 7,305 9,517 2,570 3,112 8,542
Mission - 2,101
Annual Service 50,000 92,832 45,023 17,104 27177 65,023
Miles
Annual Service 5,000 5,256 3.048 2,547 2,173 3.012
Hours
Annual Rides — 24,485 20,831 23,968 7.651 24,150
Rides per Hour — 4.66 6.83 9.41 3.52 8.02

Figure 10. Rides per Hour for Boardman - Port of Morrow Circular Comparable Services

10.00 9.41
9.00

8.00

7.00

6.00

5.00 4.66

4.00 3.52
3.00

2.00

1.00

0.00

8.02
6.83

CTUIR City of SCTD (City of Lane Transit MCOACS (City
{(No Commuter Woodburn Molalla) District (City of of Ontario)
Bus) Florence)

Page 59 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



E-‘_’r.éﬁ_l‘.‘r s

=
i

e,/
iy

52
e

CONCLUSION




WG b, I, Morrow County Coordinated Transportation Plan

CONCLUSION

Transportation services play a key role in Morrow County, connecting its residents and visitors to
the places they need to go locally and regionally. Most imminently, this document can serve as
preparation for funding cycles, including STF and STIF plans, to begin implementing
recommendations and enhancing fransportation services. Beyond that, the recommendations
are intended to provide conceptual guidance to be refined by MCPT and its partners as funding
and partnership opportunities become available.

While this document provides prioritized strategies and examples of how these would specifically
be implemented, the recommendations are a snapshot in fime and may adjust to meet the
changing needs of the region.

Page 61 | Kittelson & Associates, Inc,



. SALYIDOSSY B N
NOSTILLIA #7F 2207 ‘wl | 1snBny

$JSUOISSILIWOD JO PIDOY

(41D) Upjd uoyppOdsuUDI] liGnd SIJIAISS UDWNH PSJPUIPIO0D AJUNOD MOLOW



solbolllS 9ZI{olUd

SPoaU [awun AlLUBSP| e

SODIAISS Ul sADDB AJifUBP|
SODIAIBS JO UOIDDIANP SZIWIUIW e

'SODIAISS uolpIodsunll 21lgnd Uuo puadap oym sIsaylo
pup ‘Aousioljoid ysiibug paliwll YIM SJoNPIAIPUIL ‘SOUIODUI
JOMO| YIIM SIoNpPIAIpUl ‘Bjdoad BUNOA ‘SIoluss ‘sallljiqosIp

Yiim a|doad JoJ spasau uoljblodsunll ol|gnd Aliiusp|

M3IAISAQ }o3loid




2022

laquiaydag - A|nr |
$8|QRIBAIIR(Q [PUl] g UOIDIUSSSId [PUl4 ~ 878 /

jsnbny - aunr |
UD|d UolpLIOdsSUDI] SODIAIBS UDWNH palbulplooD paiopdn —9

Ainr - sunr |
up|d Uolblusws|dwl| alndald ‘saibaloils ‘spasN uolbpodsunl] Ajllusp| — ¢

jnoybnouyy | yooaunQO dland — v
udy | SUODPUSWUIODSY UD|d JOUWIOS JO UOIONIDAT — €
judy - yoiow | SUOHIPUOD BUlsIX3 - ¢
jnoybnoiy; | {uswISBoUDW PUD UoDIIU| JO8f0Id — |

SouJJoWII|

OUD SYSO|




logp7 s,fW ‘Bullols
UoSUlY ‘liodsupl] juspuadapul — uolbrodsupi] juswAoldw] e
IWAN - SUolIN|OS uolblIodsupl] e
IWAN - OD3dVO »
IWAN - S&2IAISS YloaH AHUNWWIOD JSAIY DIQUINIOD e
LWAN - (WiaysAS 210D YioaH ploydays PooS) UDASIDD

92JAISS UoIDIOdSUDI| paspg-1usliD

BpPU-D-PIQ — AJUNOD) ISISBYM e

SPU-O-OIJ — AJUNOD WDIID e

UoIDLIOdSUDI) JOIUSS PUD DYOM — UOISILLISH JO AHD e

ALUNOD) D|ILOWIN DIA D|IOM DJIOM — ALD BUIDI4 — AJUNOD JUDIS) o
82IAISS UOlDLIOdSUDI [OUOIBaY — PUNOYASID) »

92IAI8S Uolppodsunl] BuuoquybloN

uoBIL| PUL ‘UDWPIDOG “JBuddaH Ul 8BIOLS SNY - SSIH|IDOS JISUDI] e
ADP © 82IM} UOBIL| OjUl 8DIAISS ‘OIN0I-PSXI - }ISUDI] D1|dNd AOADY e
BPIMALUNOD ‘Bpl-D-pIQ - dOOT 8Y] »

©2IAIBS UolppOdSUDI] DlIdNd |PO0T
- i 3 n L > [r - “”.. = n.._I Y] [ § .....

T

1

SISPIAOI]

BuUISIXT




|0}IdSOH [DDIPSW Joauold — (YDl 9417
UOIIDIAD |[DIBUSB YD||
‘sjol 811010d10D Ajjsow — ALij10o04 odiyY MOUOW JO 1O
UOILDIAD [0JauUsb [|oWws Op UpD (ng ‘BulAnids
[0INLNDLBD ASOUW — OAIY ALUNOD MOLIOW-UOLBUIXST «

salpion4 Hodly

SDIAISS JUBIIND ON — SSILIIO0n [I0Y 1oBUSSSDd e

) . Ve Buolo SIDPIAOIY
I0J5UBB ‘POOIIIDY D100 UOIUN — SIS JYBISLS [I0Y « 5 :
UI]SIXS

solIo04 [IDY

SIS1IOYD |[DUOISDDD0
‘uoljpbliodsupi) [00YDSs — AupdwoD sng PIGUUN|OD PIW e

UoILjo0D luswdo|aAa pIyD uobalp ybnoiy} sadiAIes
SN YINOA — LIDISPOSH AlUNOD MOLOW-D[|IJOWIN

e ".- = = v |
] L..., X [ W=

R E=RINEN ce;_otoamcb Lid

et A
o o .. i .u._p_ _.....|__||_| _|| r|| r .:J._._. b |t el | iy




saILIUNLIOAdO DJLOUODS
10} suol}do uolpLIodsuUD.ly
3|gpI|8] SPIAOId

Olland ay} o}

$1SOD UopLIOdSUDI) JOMO|
PUD UIDJUIDW O} $82IN0S
Buipun} 8|gp}s ansind

SUOILDUISOP
Buljioddns-y4joay

Jo} suoljdo uouplodsupiy
3|gpI8.l 9PIAOId

Gl
pEa)

e

SOOIAIDS B|gDIIed
apiroid o} 3|gp ag
O} JJDJS UIDI81 PUD HINIDSY

SDBID 9DIAISS

uol P HOdSUDI} SSOIDD
UOILDDNPS PUD $8DIAISS
Jo Buljaxiow aAoidw|

uolpOdsUDy

21gnd uo jupbisl

BSOY} UO SN0} B Y}IM
‘sloquisl AjlUuNWIWoD

IO JO Spadu a8y} jesw o}
92DIAI8S PBAOIAUIl 8PIAOId




suolpjndod

BUWODUI-MO|
10} AjIp1oadsa ‘sduy
s1opIACId UO|DHOdSUDIY paspg-juswAoldwa
SOJIAIBS Bulsixs uo 18yJ0O Yiim SUOI}IDSUUOD 1o} uolppodsupn.l)
diysiopu aAles 1a}iag S2UDYUS PUD UIDIUIOW a|gpI[aJ 8INsu3
2%y v
spjoyasnoy
S[DIYBA 019z pub ‘suoip|ndod asIsAIp
suolipoindod Ajo1opl ‘Alleaod Bupusadxs sidoad
Alep|o 10} iojnoind Ul ‘WalsAS ‘sellljigosIp Yim ajdoad jo sabojusoiad
Bulisixe ay} 0} po}osuuoD yBiy aADY YoIym ‘uoibuixa’
LOU SBIHIUNWIWIOD PUD SO3ID puUD ‘Ubwplioog ‘JauddaH ul Ajploadsa
palpbiodiooulun ul suolipjndod ‘sdnoub juspuadap-}Isup.l} IO}
10} $82IAI8S 8DoUDPyYU] ALIAILOBUUOD [pUOIBaI PUD [DD0] 8PIACIY
< i _P«_.u.C_




UOILDJISIUILUPD PUD
‘slosiAJedns ‘@oupusjuIowl
‘sloAllp Bulpn|ou)
‘1I0JS UIDISJ PUD JODINY

(]

SpPodBU 9DIAISS
|92W O} 83|} 8|21YSA
MOIB PUD UIDJUIDWN

-

=€

SWID3.S
Buipuny MoIb
PUD $}SOD BZI|IgIS

SOIJ|IoD] JISUDI} DUPyug

s




Aljouolbal suol}osuuoD
MU BUIpp SO YoNs ‘A||OILUDISONS SODIAISS SOOULYUT 44+ e
SINOY 82IAI8S 1O palp olydoibosb
1UBi|s Bulppo s yons ‘Ajaioispoud Of AlJYBIIS SODIAISS SOOUDYUT 4+ -
1J0JS pUD |88} O
Buluinial SO Yyons ‘si-so BuioIodo aNUILUOD O} SODIAISS IO} SMO||Y 4+ AN\ _. v O_.\_m._._‘_mu
"UOILDPUBWIWIODS
8yl JO BWODIN0 pajoadxa BUIALILIUSPI 8INSOBW SAILRIONYD — sHjauayg «
AllPNUUY 000G L$ Uy} Jajoald (§SS
Allonuuy 000°5/$ ©4 000°ST$
AlloNUUY 000'SZ$ UPY} sso 1§
‘uoljpluswaduwl
10 8]02s 8y} BULIBPISUOD $1SOD PaLoWISe AlYONOY — SIS0 -

UOIIDN|OAT




oW spadu/paAias sdnoib AUDW : @
oW spaau/paAIas sdnolb Jomed : ©

‘sooAo|dwa
PUD ‘SUDISLBA ‘ADUBIDHOId YSIiBUT pajiwl] Yiim spjoyasnoy ‘spjoyasnoy
3|2IYSA 0IBZ ‘ALIOUIW DIUY}D/|DIDDI ‘SHNPD JSPIO ‘YLNOA ‘SOIIOSIO YLIM
a|doad ‘suolip|ndod aWODUI-MOT :ABBLDILS SIY} WO} {ijduaq sdnoub
BUIMO||0] Yl JO AUDW MOY SI9PISUOD) — |9W SpaaN/paAIas (s)dnols . AN\NV O_.\_m._._k_u
200|d-Ul 810 $92IN0SaI JISYLO 10 ‘LDIS ‘©IN}OoNIsoIuUl ON YBIH - CO_._.OD_O\/M
P3UIDIQO 8 O} PaaU |IIM 8low {ng ‘@op|d
-Ul 80 $92IN0SBI JBYL0 PUL ‘}JDIS ‘©IN}DNIISOIIUl SWOS :
200|d-Ul ARPDBIID 810 $82INOSSI JBYLO PUD ‘IS ‘9INJONIISOIU| MOT «

"Jusws|duwl

0] $JSOD PUOASQ ‘UOIDDIAWOD B|i}| UM pub Apoinb pajusuus|dul
8q upD ABajolis By} Joylaym siopisuod — uolipjuswajdw] jo Ajnoiiqg




82lAles Buluiow 1alpa/ybiu
Mo @ ybiH ++ N 18}D| PUD 821AI8S 9JNOJ-PaXIY 8injN}
10/pUD SpPU-D-PIP PUSYSaM 82UDYU]

ybiH © wnipaw -+ $
s|00dUDA 8ZIPISANS JO/PUD S10WOI]
S9DIAISS SPU

wnipaw ® wnipaw ++ $$ -D-joIP dWil} O 0 BurIedo SBIDIYSA JO

Jagquinu 1o/pup SiNoy 821A18S adubyul mm U _ Z @ m

*WIBJSAS
81N0I-PaXI} BY} O} PBIOBUUOD JOU
wnipaw o wnipaw i+ $$ SOILUNWILLIOD J8YJ0 PUD ‘Bu0| ‘Uuoibuixa U C O mm._. D O m
joudday so yons saiuNWIUIOD
0] S8[lINYS pubwisp-uo uibag

:DUBIID
wnipaw = ybiH 4+ S8 UDWPIPOg — UOIBUILY S} JOHUOW C O _._. O D _ O >m

O} 8NUIUOD PuD ‘Jusuwigidw ‘sulyay

Jojosuuod

lojoauuod
ybiH & ybIH +++ NN ubwipInog — Jeudday ay} 1ojluow
0} 8NUIUOD pUD ‘JudswaIdwl ‘Buley

10123UU0D UDWIPINOY — UO)SILUISH
ybiH @ Mo +++ §6S  pUD IDINDIID MOLOW JO HO4 — UbWpPInOg
8y} JoJluow 0} SNUILUOD PUB juswaldw]

Ajiond I9W spaaN uoypjuawa|duwy

Buyinsay | / paaas (s)dnoio jo Alinaia yauag | §s0d AGajplis



MO winipa
1 O IPW N s$ sdoys Ipau Bupund apiaoid

d 1SUD.}
Ea_vo_z O E:_uo_z ... m «_omco_,_ou mc_QOcom__oﬂw_MMc% mm _.._. _ _ _ MU C H_

JO UOID|[DJSUl BY} JOPISUOD

. JapIy pup
sdolS JIsupl]

winjpaw wnipaw ++ 88 10 s|oA9) Jaybiy ypm sdoys snqg Jofow
PUD SI9{USD {ISUD} jusws|dw]

*JISUDI] D1|and JPADY pubD
doo1 I BUUOD 0} pauup|d .
ybH 0 Mol -+ $ ow% 6@ MWM,:\B“M.:MM _Msnmmo_,,mu_o_ J C_ .\_m._._ x-MU
J2U40 pUD ‘UOISILLISH ‘UDWPINOg . .
UOILON|OAT

1NOYBNOIYL SSIIUSWID SN ©2UPYUT

JOW sp22N uoypjuawajdw]

/ panias (s)dno1o jo Ajinoia jpuag ABaolis




i) Mo - winlBoid aAluUSDUI jUBWIUID}S)
ubiH /iusuljinidal 89A0|dwa UD 8PIACId

ybiH ® Mol + $ saiiunpoddo uolponpa Buinuipuod
: /lusawidojaasp jpuolissajold SpIA0Ld
sjyeUag puUD SOBOM SAIedWOD

wnipaw ® MO1 +
2INsuUd 0} MalAsl J1oad Noss

winibold Alnb3

uolpbpodsupl] 01Ny SY4 SO YoNns C O_._. O C _ ULOO U
ADUBbY-I8]U|
PUD |DUIBIU|

YBIH @ Mol i S ‘Spuny ISP} PUL 3}DJS UIDLJO
0} SpuUN} [020] 8BDIBAS| O} BNUIUOD
Aaibile

ybiH () Mol + S PUD $5922D 8INSUS 0} slepiroid
a1baud pup 21gnd yiim a1pulpIooD

SUOISSaS JopqPoad) In|NbBal Wﬂwuw% ” O _‘_ @._._u_ U
| UOILDN|OAT

ybiH 2] Mo + $
siaplacid

UbIH ® mo1 + $ Bul>BUUOD Yjim sBullsaL
UoIPUIPICOD JOINBAI YSIg4ST

Ajuond W spaaN uolpjuawaduy

Buyinsay | / paA1as (s)dnoio jo AjInouiia jyauag ABajpls




wnipaw

UbiH

yb6iH

Yy6iH

ybiH

Ajioud

@ wnipaw
© MOT
[ B Mo
D) MO

© MO

J19W Spa2oN uolpjuawajduw|

Buyinsay | / panas (s)dnoio jo Ajnaiig

++ S
$2JDUsapU sjowold
sBuiuado
+ S ol Jo AlIgD)IPAD 81PIUNUIWOD
0} s869||02 [DDO] YLIM 1ISUHDJ

¢s winJ6oid Buyaxiow
puB uolPWLIoUI [oNBUING PUDAXT

+ ¢ sdoys 1o spusowW
Buiiaxipw jonbBuliq opiacid

% ¢ sioAoidwa DIA
sdiysisupnd pup Buyayiow pundx3

. fsusg E ABajpis

UuoIDULIOLU|
IDUIBIXT pUD
DullaIOW

:OLIBJLD
UOIJON|OAT




wnipaw

Ajiond
Bulnsay

oW spa3N

/ PaAIas (s)dnois

wnipaw

wnipaw

MO

uoypjuswajduil
jo Anoupa

siuspnys

pup suolpindod suWODUI-MO] 10}

++ suoldo s|qppIoyD BuipnDU| ‘831
1,UBID DY} S3DIAIDS UoPHIOdSUDY

10} suoido juswiAnd a1} acidwi)

SPI0D3) BpY ajpIpdas
Buluipuiow alium (248 ‘OLYH

+ $ i ) ;
LHAY ‘L LES ‘0l1€S) slood Buipuny
SSOIDD sdl} BIOYS O} SADM %99S
++ Ny uojbulo}ul
[DALLD S[21YSA SWilj-|0al SPIAOId
jyauag | jsod ABajous

ADOjoUYo9|
:DLBILD

UOIJON|OAT




ubwploog

ul Joye Buluupid ayy s YoNns ‘sasng

ybiy L)) wnipaw + $8$ 2in|n} pup BUliSIXS 81DPOWWOIID
O} SBIIID0} BOUDUBUIDW

pup o6010Js SNQ PIING mm _._. _ _ _ O OH_

s8¢ s|eny SAIOWS}D oy
0} uonisuniy ansind puw ajPBISOAU] U C O ._.® @ _ L

ybBIH () Mot + $ uojd juswieop|dai PJADD YsIaD)sI Ol @._. 1 Mu

y61H ) wnipaw ++ CO_._. O D _ O\/m

wnipaw © Y61 ++

So[DIYaA MBU UIDIAO

uoypjuswajdus)
jo Aynouig

Ajiold
Buiyinsay

J1oW SpaaN

/ paAias (s)dnoisy jyauag | 10D ABajpuis




suoldo uolplodsunyy
[opOoWINW Of sjuswaAcIdwl UO PasSND0} s89) 994 jopdwi| [ppowiljiny -
sso00.d uoipoliddo
unIb aAllledwoo b ybnouyj siosloid o) pal20)o spunj :@oupyug dils -
ssaulsNg JIvy} 1o} anusA Buleyiow
o Buipiaoid 10} uingal Ul Aljua aioaud o woll spunj :sdiysiosuods dljqnd/2§0Ald -
SJUDIB uollbliodsupl) PasSPg-UDIS}aA — ITHAY PUP 9J¥H -
suoljp|indod swoodu|
-MO| UO SND0J [p108ds D YLIM ‘UOISaBU0D aAdlal pub ‘Ajljiqouw eAoidull ‘sgolf o)
$$9200 pundxs 0} pasn spunj :(411S) pund juswaroidw| uoyppodsupi] SPIMIYDIS -
SSlIgSIP Yiim ajdoad pup SIOIUSS 10} SODIAISS
uolpodsupniy apiaoid o) pasn spuny :(415) spung uoypuodsupil] [p1oads ajp}s -
UoIIS8BUO0D 82NPal PUD Alljilgow 8Aoidwll 0} uolppiodsupy 2lgnd
BuIDUDYUS UI JSBAUI O} PasSN spuN} :siubi1 (Y14) UoypAsIuUIWPY jisupi] [DISpa] -

$92IN0S Bulpund




SIOUISI [omaBuay upgln . spund AllunpoddQ sipipatuwl| .

BUIDUDUIY JUBSWUBIDU| XD = X0] [end uodO-|Po07 .

(@an) pousig luswaaoidwl 0207 - 294 UoDIISIBSY SIDIYSA  »
(DAS) sebioyD [uswWdoiBASQ WDISAS  » oo4 AN POOY
X0] juswidopaaq uolbpodsupl] - AAST [OUBS PUN] PDOY
pund |OJBUBY) . pund ADMUBIH a1bis -

(S13V) AleIpS UOKDHOASUDI] SPPOY IV SIURID) 3D0|g UOKDLIOdSUDI] 82DUNS  «

:spunj BuiMmo||o) 8y} yBnouy} sjuswaaoidwl Aoy Bupiq puo Bupjjiom ensind
U2 (1OQO ‘AlUNOD MOLIOW ‘SBIHID) SIBUMO ALlIIOD) ADMPOI ‘98] O] UOIHIPPD U]

SDBUO |DINJ U] SSIIUNWIWOD PBAISSISpUN JO Spasu
uoljoodsupi) syl poddns of spuny pajoo0| P :wpibold Ajinb3 uolpbuodsupi) |PINY
(-ol8 ‘JIsunl} ‘BYIq Y|PM) $8210YyD uoljppodsup.ly

0] a|doad josuuo2 oy} sjosloid o] spuny sa1020)0 :wpibold suoldO uoypuodsupi)
|OOYDS O} $S922D §,UdIP|IYD 108D AlBAljIsOd oy}

sjuswaA0IdWI A}8}0S O} SPUN) $81020||0 :WBIB0oId JUDIS [O0YDS O} SBINOY 3PS 10A0

$92JN0S Bulpund




sujew]

wipiBold suoydo uoyppodsuniy
junis) [00YDS 0 sainoy |ibs 1OdO

wpibold Ajinb3 uoybpodsupi) PINY

sdiysiosuods oljqnd/3j0Ald

“Jisupij 2lqnd

MNDADY PUD doo7 Ayl UM jo3ULOD 0} pauup|d 310
10 §51%3 AjjU1N2 JDY} SUOHDDO| I3U{0 PUD “UOSILISH
‘upwipinog jnoyBnoiy saiuawp sng 3oupyus

Sjo0dUDA 9Z|pIsqns 10/puUp SjoLlold

I0josUU0D UDWPIDOY — IsUuddaly

U} IojluoL 0} SNUIUOD PUD ‘juswa)|duul ‘Suljay
lojosuuod

upwpInog - UojsiWISH pPup 1DjNo11D MOLIOW JO LIOd
—UpWpIbog Sy} Jojitiowl o} anujjuod pun justuajduw)

$92]AISS pUD $3jN0Y

e |
-n

POES UoHOas

ABajpijs

S|00d
BuipuN
S|dL|IPAY
pUD
salball]S
Ajuoud YoiH




aujjaui

wipiboid Ajinb3 uoybuodsuni) [DinY

wpiboi4 suoydo uoyppodsupi)
JUDIS |O0YIS 0f S8IN0Y AIbS 1OdO

sdiysiosuods Jjjqnd/ajDAld

woibo1d sAjuasu|

jusuwiupjal/juswijinioal aaAojdws ub apjAold
sajjunpoddo uolponpa

Buinuijuos /juswidojaAsp |pUoissajoid aplAOLd
pund Ajnb3 jisupi) ayj sp Yyons ‘Spunj [piapsj
puD 3§bJs U)o 0} SPUN} |DDO] aBDIBAS] 0f aNUYUOD
AflllgIBie pup, $s225D aInsus

o} siapjaoid ajpAld pup algnd yjim a{puipiood
JIPIS UM SUO]SSS Y oPpaa) Injnbal jonpuod
siapiaoid Bujoauuod

ypm sbuyeau uojpuiploo Ibjnbai Yysiqoysy

uojjpu|piocod Asuaby-18ju] pup [pUISju|

—
b |

OLES Uol9ss
P0OES Uold9s

ABapiis

s|00d
puipun
S|GP|IPAY
puUD
SoIDalILS
Aloud YoiH




aujjauyL

wpiboig suojdo uolppodsunij
junI9 [o0YdS ©f s3lNoY DS 10d0

x
(~
=
2
5
=
wn
T
S
g
o
=}
m
0
=
<
.
(=]
"
o
3

sdiysiosuods aljqnd/3I0AUd

sBujuado qof jo AjjigD|IDAD

SJDOJUNWILIOS 0} $863]|0 |DIC] UM ISUNDd
wipi6oid

Bulja3IpLu pup uoybuIGiul [PNB UG YS|qDIsT

sdoys b sipuajpw Buyaxipw [pnbujjiq SPIACId

siaAojdius piA sdiysiaupnd pup Bujjeipw 3oubyuz

UOHDULIoJU| [DUISIXT pUD BuliayIow

-

POES uoloas

ABajous

S|00d
puipun4
S|QL[IOAY
PUD
soIbalILS
Ajuoud YoiH




ubuipipog uj gogfs bujuup|d

AU} sD Yons ‘sasng alninj pup BUjisixs S|PPOWILIOIID
0} Sal{1||oD) 2oubUsjuIbLW pub abpiols sng pjing

upjd juswaspjdal [pidpo ysjgolsy

§3[2I4YSA M3U UIDIJO

S|00d
spiodal
apl ajpindas BujubjuIbW SJIUM (‘245 ‘HINHA ‘LLES @ C _ _O C D H_
‘0L£%) sjood Bupuny sso1oD sdjl} 9IDYS 0} SADM MBeS .
UO|DULIOJUY |DAID 3[D]USA SLUI-|D31 SPIACI m _ Q C _ _ O ><
pUD
saIbalU)S

Ajoud YoiH

AB3jpis

SJuDyug Jjis
LLES UoHDaS
OLES ualoas
POES UCHDDS

wpiboid suoldo uolppodsuniy
sdiysiosuods Jjjqnd/20Ald

Jup1S [00YSS 0§ sajnoy Sivs 1040

e
c
-
]
—
-
Q
=
(7]
o
=]
=1
2
(=]
-
m
Q
S
o
-
o
(=}
-
o
3




€T

(821A19S JIO|NDIID) S|DIUSP

1SoNbal UOIIDIASP JO JOQUINN -
oy Jad |soD -

lnoy Jad saply -

SINOY 9DIAIBS SNUBASY -

Yiclelele sopu [oNUUY -

BuljoADIq pUL BUIOM - $1s00 bulpiadQ -
95N JO 8505 WISJISAS - $1SOD [DlIdDD -
:$2INSDAW OUDWIOUDY :$3INSDAW SIOUDWIIONDJ

JO M3IIASY Judnbalg-ssa jO M3IASY [DNUUY

wiibo.d

DULIOJIUOW




g 2sUolsend
/

£




(For BOC Use)
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET ISt

Morrow County Board of Commissioners A f.’
(Page 1 of 2)

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: KCVil’l Il’lCC Date Submitted to reviewers: August 12, 2022
Department: Finance Dept Requested Agenda Date: August 17, 2022
Short Title of Agenda Item:

(No acronyms please) Morrow County Budget Committee Appointment

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1st Reading []2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[ ] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[ ] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

/T

] Contract/Agreement Other
IEI N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: " Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [H Yes D No
Reviewed By:
Kevin C. Ince 8/12/2022 Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Liaison Commissioner Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Kevin C. Ince 8/12/2022 Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE

department of ypprovyl. ten submit the request to the BOC for placement on the acenda,

“Allow | week for review (submit to all simultancously). When each office has notified the submitting

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred) Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once thls form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office. .

€V 3-20-.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

The Morrow County Budget Committee has a vacancy for a member to serve a three-year term. This appointment
is to fill a term effective July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025.

The Morrow County residents interested in serving on the Budget Committee were encouraged to submit their
letter of interest to the Finance Department no later than Friday, July 21 2022.

At the end of Friday, July 21 2022 the County had not received any letters of interest from a qualified candidate
(per ORS 294.414, renumbered from 294.336).
On August 8, 2022, the County received a letter of interest from a qualified candidate.

Please review the attached letter of interest.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

The selected Budget Committee member will be responsible for reviewing, making recommendations, and approving the annual budget
for the County.

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S):

It is recommended, that the Board of Commissioners appoint the candidate to serve on the Morrow
County Budget Committee for a three-year term, effective July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3-25-22



Kim Cutsforth

PO Box 570
Heppner, OR 97836
{541) 980-3465

August 8, 2022

Kevin Ince
Finance Director
Morrow County

This letter is to inform you of my continued interest in serving on the Morrow County Budget
Committee.

| have municipal budget experience. I have just completed a three-year term on the Morrow County
Budget Committee. | have prepared the Willow Creek Park District Budget for over twenty years. | was
the past Heppner City Manager and prepared the budget there for six years. | served as acting interim
Morrow County Administrator in 2017. This time with the County allowed me to work with the
department heads and to have a reasonable understanding of the workings of the County and the needs
of the departments.

| recognize the commitment required for this position and 1 am willing to dedicate my time to this very
important task. | hope that yourself and the Commissioners will consider me for this committee.

Sincerely

Kim Cutsforth



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET S
Morrow County Board of Commissioners é d 7- ‘
(Page 1 of 2) - o

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Presenter at BOC: Mlke Haugen Date Submitted to reviewers: 8/1 5/2022
Department: Pyblic Works-Roads Requested Agenda Date: 8/17/2022
Short Title of Agenda Item:

(No acronyms please) Review of permit application #OTL to work in the county right-of-way

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1st Reading [ | 2nd Reading Consent Agenda Eligible
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 5 minutes
[] Document Recording Required Purchase Pre-Authorization

O =0

[] Contract/Agreement Other
E] N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: ' Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000?7 [ ] Yes [E No
Reviewed By:
Eric L. Imes 8/15/2022 Department Director Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Melissa Lindsay 8/15/2022 Liaison Commissioner Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel *Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office *Required for all contracts; other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources *If appropriate
DATE = Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultancously). When each office has notified the submitting
denartment of apnroval. then submit the reguest to the BOC for nlacement on the asenda.

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals
preferred) Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting. Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.

Rev: 3-25-22



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

Windwave Communications has applied for a permit to work in the county right-of-way. The project is
approximately 4,000ft, with a vault placed every 1,000ft. Bulk package with 40 conduits to be installed on the
west-side of the Bombing Range Rd, 35ft +/- from centerline. A minimum of four(4) feet from the top of surface.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S):

Approve the Assistant Road Master and the Public Works Director to approve permit OTL.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Rev: 3-25-22



Retur to: APPLICATION #: oL
MORROW COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS

365 West Highway 74 q
P.0. Box 428 COUNTY ROAD #: __ 1D
Lexington, Oregon 97839

Phone: (541) 989-9500 - . ?{ ?(l
ROAD NAME: ,M\Da ﬁf) 3 msa

Applicant Mailing Address

Windwave Communications Atin: Wendy APPLICATION FEE:
Name (Business Name, Attn: Name) (CHECK ONE)

P O Box 1330 3 private ($50.00) @ Utility Company (No Fee)

Mailing Address (Street/Post Oriice Box)
Boardman, OR 97818 PAYN[ENT RECEIVED

City, State, Zip Code
541-561-4428 CR-O¢ ~7(
Phane Number (ate i'm‘m:nl Nﬂ ;\m,dum Received - Imitiais )

APPLICATION FOR NECESSITY TO BUILD ON RIGHT OF WAY
(Water, Gas, Communication Service Liaes, Fixtures, Signs, and other Facilities)

Please fill out this form completely in ink (Blue or Black) or type.

We, Windwave Gommunications 73500 Rupe Kennedy Road, Boardman 474
TName - ndividual/Business ) { Physical Address) (Work Order Number)

hereby request permission either to locate within County Road right of way or cross

Morrow County road  Bombing Road at .75 miles from nearest
{ Name of County Road ) “wilesy

interstection with road  Witson Road W (N aNoth  25East
T Name of County Koad ) (Section)  (fownshlp) ( Wange)

E.W.M. with a Communication of 24 ,CenterLine 25feet  distance

= { Waner, Uas, Iclcphone Lings, ceL ) _I,W {Disunco )
from R/W line sse==m \ ¢, .depth of line or pipe, West and East X side of road.
Tl ) GIe N, 5,

L]
As more particularly described by the attached sketch.
PERMITTEE AGREES TO TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON THE ATTACHED TWO PAGES

Page 1 \Aﬁ Page 2 Eh_f\_r
ni 1

Additional Terms and Couditions to be noted bere.

When work is completed call Morrow County Public ks Office for final inspection at (541) 989-9500.

DATE: até(%l
{ Date 5y

PERMITTEE SIGNATURE:

State of ¢

County of RS

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ﬁw{ﬂ‘u}’{ 9 ,20.0 2
by 771 e, C / Z (t-"m 2

_ OFFICIAL STEA{H.EOR
bl M/ (=4 L TNORaRY PUBLIE-OREGD
| “Notary Public - State of ¢ Dpeeq I PN COMMISSION NO.
Jg MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JUNE 25,
permit application mey be appented to the Morrow County Board urEom MIFSIONCTS
RECOMMENDED BY: DATE:
T (AmnonRosd Mmer) (Date Signed )
APPROVED BY: DATE:
{Public Works Director ) T (DaeSigned)
ATTEST:
{Morrow County Clerk)

MORROW COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
Application to Build on Right of Way(UTILITY)-July2017



P

TRAFFIC

A. Applicant must maintain and protect the movement of traffic at all times.

B. In trenching across the County road, no more than one half of the traveled way is to be opened at one time. The
opened half shall be completely backfilled before opening the other half, or provision for a bypass or “shoofly”
road must be made.

C. Closure of intersecting streets, road approaches, or other access points will not be permitted. Upon trenching across
such facilities, steel-running plates, planks or other satisfactory methods shall be used to provide for traffic to enter
or leave the highway or adjacent property.

INSURANCE

A. Permittee must carry all necessary liability to protect the public at all times.

REPAIRS

A. All roadbed surfaces disturbed by utility installations, adjustments or repairs covered by permit, will be repaired or
replaced within one (1) week, except specifically allowed for by special provisions listed in the permit.

B. All roadbed surfaces disturbed by utility installations, adjustments or repairs covered by permit that result in
hazards to the traveling public will be either replaced or repaired immediately or adequately barricaded and signed
to warn the public that a hazard exists.

C. Any replacement or repair no accomplished by the applicant under the above, within the specified time will be
done by the County with no prior notice to the applicant and at the expense of the applicant. The County will also
make any immediate repairs, alterations or additions to any barricading, signing or warning for a hazardous area
when such barricading, signing or warning is found to be inadequate, inappropriate, or ineffective without prior
notice to the applicant.

D. For a period of one (1) year following the patching of any paved surface, the applicant shall be responsible for the
condition of said pavement patches, and during that time shall, upon request from the Director, repair to the
County’s satisfaction any of the said patches which become settled, cracked, broken or otherwise faulty.

E. The repair or maintenance of said installation shall be the responsibility of the applicant at all times. The applicant

will complete any necessary repairs not more than forty-eight (48) hours after notification by Department of Public
Works.

REMOVEAL, RELOCATION AND REPAIR

The permit is issued pursuant to the law of the State of Oregon which authorizes the Board to subsequently require
the applicant to remove, relocate or repair the poleline, buried cable, or pipeline covered by the permit as needed
by the County to replace, repait, or maintain County roads, at that sole cost of the applicant and by applying
applicant consents and agrees to such conditions.

Upon receiving written notice from the Board to remove, relocate or repair the said poleline, buried cable or
pipeline, the applicant shall within the thirty (30) days make arrangements for removal, relocation or repair of
same, at his sole cost, in accordance’s with said written notice.

1f the applicant fails to commence installation of the poleline, buried cable, or pipeline covered by the permit
within sixty (60) days from the date the permit is issued, said permit shall be deemed null and void and all
privileges there under forfeited, unless a written extension of time is obtained from the Director.

5/Em: #gﬂ,

MORROW COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
Application for Necessity to Build Right of Way
Page 2 of 2



.l-!.| | wacor
o i
11 40 Conduit Bulk
{E Package
_______________ I 9x9 Vault (4)
8 i i 35 feet from CL
o t ) i i i
T 4 Depending on existing
15 utilities
4N 25E Sec 13 TL 100 . o Bomblng Range Road
I ——

4N 25E TL 1700

Project is approximately 4,000 ft, with a vault placed every 1,000
feet.

Bulk package with 40 conduits to be installed on the westside of
the Bombing Range County Road, 35 feet +/- from Centerline.
Existing road has a 150' right of way width

Not to Scale



P 75 C/L '
"3 Fiber Installed35' C/L_ k4

D
-

-

—

vi

Fiber
Vaults




Fiber

Vaults i




B e
184




Q. Correspondlne

«IED ST,
0&-“ Are

. 2 "".7 UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
g - 2 REGION 10
2 \\l// ¢ 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155
2@& . N Seattle, WA 98101 ENFORCEMENT &
*x o COMPLIANCE
AL proT®

ASSURANCE DIVISION
Reply To: 20-C04
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Ms. Rachael Banks, MPA

Public Health Director

Oregon Health Authority

500 Summer Street Northeast, E-20
Salem, Oregon 97301

Ms. Leah Feldon
Deputy Director
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality

4026 Fairview Industrial Drive Southeast
Salem, Oregon 97302

Mr. Lauren Henderson

Deputy Director

Oregon Department of Agriculture
635 Capital Street Northeast
Salem, Oregon 97301

Re:  January 16, 2020, Petition to EPA for Emergency Action Pursuant to Safe Drinking
Water Act Section 1431 to Address Nitrate in the Lower Umatilla Basin in North Central
Oregon

Dear Ms. Banks, Ms. Feldon and Mr. Henderson:

This letter continues communications between the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

(EPA or “Agency”) and Oregon Health Authority (OHA), Department of Environmental Quality,
and the Oregon Department of Agriculture regarding nitrate contamination in drinking water in
the Lower Umatilla Basin (LUB), Oregon and specifically Oregon’s strategy to protect residents
from associated health impacts. We appreciate your continued willingness to coordinate with
EPA, including your July 7, 2022 letter, which provided additional information about nitrate
sources and, most pertinent to this letter, outlined your plan to ensure safe drinking water for
LUB residents as soon as possible.

As EPA previously conveyed, the Agency supports the general framework of Oregon’s plan to
mitigate health risks from nitrate-contaminated drinking water, as set forth in the State of Oregon
Workplan: Protecting Public Health from Nitrate Exposure in the Lower Umatilla Basin Ground
Water Management Area (“Workplan”), dated December 22, 2021 and in your July 7% letter.
The Workplan states that Oregon will conduct outreach and education regarding nitrate
contamination in the LUB Groundwater Management Area (GWMA); perform a detailed hazard



assessment; offer free drinking water testing; and provide alternative water, where necessary.
EPA is encouraged that Oregon has expedited its implementation of the Workplan. Specifically,
OHA secured interim funding so that implementation will begin this summer; obtained
authorization to request funding from the Oregon Legislative Emergency Board in September
2022; and is developing a comprehensive funding request for the 2023 Oregon Legislative
Assembly. However, the Workplan and subsequent correspondence lack sufficient detail for
EPA to evaluate whether your proposed actions will timely and adequately ensure safe drinking
water for all LUB residents. To help confirm that Oregon’s response action will address the
immediate public health risks and to ensure it is adequately funded, below EPA has identified
criteria we believe critical for an effective drinking water response action in the LUB. Hopefully
this information will be helpful as you prepare for your upcoming presentations to the state
Legislature.

EPA considers that an adequate response plan to address the immediate health risks in the LUB
must include the following minimum components:

1. Coordination — An effective response plan includes a communication plan that identifies
how information and responsibilities will be shared among the Oregon Governor’s
Office, state agencies, Umatilla and Morrow Counties and any private businesses or local
utilities that have volunteered or been required to act, so that each entity’s efforts serve a
singular and coordinated response.

2. Identification of Impacted Residences — The hazard assessment, in part, should identify
each residence that obtains drinking water from a private well in the LUB GWMA..

3. Education and Qutreach — Public education and outreach should be conducted in a
form and manner reasonably calculated to reach all impacted LUB residents and
consistent with analogous requirements and suggestions for Tier 1 public notice set forth
in EPA’s Revised Public Notification Handbook, EPA 816-09-013, March 2010
(“Handbook™). For example, EPA recommends that the state’s efforts include, as
components of a comprehensive public outreach plan, (a) increased visibility and
accessibility of information (e.g., in all appropriate languages) regarding nitrate
contamination on state and local government websites and (b) a program by which the
state coordinates with local health care providers to distribute information regarding
nitrate contamination to LUB residents that are particularly vulnerable to the associated
health risks (e.g., homes with formula fed infants). Additional public outreach methods
set forth in the Handbook, such as broadcast media, should also be utilized as
appropriate. Each component of the broad public outreach plan should include, among
other analogous public notice elements listed in the Handbook, clear instruction for
private drinking water well users to request free drinking water testing. By documenting
responses to the public notices and requests for drinking water testing, Oregon should
measure its progress in contacting all private well users that were identified in the hazard
assessment. For those private well users identified in the hazard assessment that do not
respond to public notices, Oregon should attempt personal communications, such as visits
to individual residences.




4. Drinking Water Testing — An effective response plan provides laboratory analysis of a
drinking water sample from the residence of any private well user in the LUB that
requests testing, unless a nitrate test strip demonstrates that the nitrate concentration of
the well is below 5 mg/L. Testing should be provided at no cost to LUB residents.

5. Provision of Alternate Water — Alternate drinking water should be offered to each
residence where the drinking water sample exceeds the federal maximum contaminant
level (MCL) of 10 mg/L nitrate based on laboratory analysis. Alternative water should
be provided as needed for drinking, cooking, maintaining oral hygiene and dish washing
at no cost to the resident and in a manner that minimizes the burden on the impacted
resident to obtain safe drinking water, such as reverse osmosis (RO) treatment units,
water delivery services or connection to a public water system. To the extent certain
LUB residences will be connected to a public water system, they should receive alternate
water until construction is completed. Residences provided RO treatment units should be
offered regular maintenance at no cost to the resident. The alternate water supply and
any necessary maintenance shall be made available to the impacted resident until

sampling shows that nitrate concentrations in their private well no longer exceed the
MCL.

6. Public Records — An effective response plan maintains and regularly publishes records
such that LUB residents and the general public can better understand the scope and
severity of nitrate contamination in the LUB and measure Oregon’s progress in
implementing its response plan. Information important for public review includes (a) the
number and general location of private drinking water wells in the LUB GWMA,; (b)
quantitative data regarding Oregon’s public outreach efforts and the responses received,
including the number of residences that responded to public notices and the number of
residences that received and responded to personal communications; (c) the number of
residences that requested and were provided drinking water testing and the results; (d) the
number of residences that were offered and accepted alternate drinking water, specifying
the method of water delivery; (e) quantitative data regarding efforts to regularly maintain
RO treatment units; and (f) groundwater monitoring results from the LUB GWMA Well
Network and synoptic sampling events, as they occur. In making this information
available, Oregon should implement precautions to ensure that LUB residents’ personally
identifiable information is kept confidential.

7. Communication with EPA — EPA requests that Oregon provide progress reports to EPA
that (a) describe actions taken during the previous quarter to address the immediate health
impacts of nitrate contamination; (b) identify major accomplishments and issues that
arose; (c) describe actions planned for the next quarter; and (d) describe any problems or
delays encountered and the solutions implemented to address them. As Oregon requests
funding and initiates implementation of the Workplan in 2022 and 2023, EPA will benefit
from quarterly progress reports. Less frequent progress reports may be appropriate as
implementation continues. Additionally, EPA requests that Oregon designate a point of
contact for ongoing coordination between EPA and the state regarding Workplan
implementation and that the point of contact schedule recurring meetings coinciding with
the progress reports.




Certain LUB residents may continue to consume water that exceeds the MCL for nitrate if, for
example, the resident does not respond to outreach attempts; nitrate concentrations fluctuate and
an individual well does not demonstrate an exceedance when testing is performed; or a resident
moves to the LUB after initial public outreach efforts but before nitrate concentrations in
groundwater fall below the MCL. Accordingly, the success of Oregon’s response plan depends
on the state’s willingness and ability to sustain public outreach, testing, and alternative water
supply for so long as nitrate concentrations in LUB groundwater remain elevated. The need to
inform and protect LUB residents from nitrate contamination and its potential health risks will
remain even after completion of initial outreach efforts in 2022 and 2023.

EPA recognizes that the burden to ensure safe water for LUB residents is placed more
appropriately on the sources in the LUB that contribute excess nitrate to groundwater. EPA
expects the state to hold nitrate sources accountable by requiring them to assume some of the
responsibilities set forth above and, more importantly, to change their practices to reduce the
amount of nitrate they discharge to groundwater in order to protect the health of their employees
and neighbors. The state possesses various tools to effect reductions in nitrate concentrations,
such as the authority to implement the Clean Water Act’s National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) program, including the development and enforcement of
individual NPDES permits for industrial discharges and the Oregon Concentrated Animal
Feeding Operation NPDES General Permit. Use of such tools will be required, since reliance on
voluntary best management practices has resulted in increasing nitrate trends since the
Groundwater Management Area’s first Action Plan in 1997. Recurring meetings between EPA
and the state, as requested above, will include discussion of the state’s efforts and progress in
implementing the changes necessary to mitigate nitrate sources. If EPA observes a reluctance to
require that sources implement necessary changes, EPA will consider increased federal
intervention, including use of its emergency authorities in Section 1431 of the Safe Drinking
Water Act, to lessen sources’ contributions of nitrate to groundwater.

As we have previously expressed, EPA appreciates your continued engagement and your efforts
to address the complex groundwater contamination problems in the LUB. The Agency will
continue to closely monitor the situation and continues to assess options for additional Agency
intervention if necessary. Please inform us of the results of your upcoming funding requests. In
the interim, if you wish to discuss any portion of this letter, including the minimum components
of an adequate response plan set forth above, please do not hesitate to contact me at
Kowalski.edwardepa.gov or (206) 553-6695 or your staff may contact Jeff KenKnight, at
kenknight jeff(wepa.gov or (206) 553-6641. I look forward to additional coordination with you
as you begin to implement your plans to protect LUB residents.

Sincerely,

EDWARD  e8ikoiouasc
KOWALSK]|  Dae:202207.23
Edward J. Kowalski
Director



PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Irrigon, Oregon 97844
{541) 922-4624

PUBLIC NOTICE
August 10%, 2022

Dear Adjoining Landowners, Public Agencies and interested Parties:

Under provisions of the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance you are an “adjoining fandowner,” public

agency or interested party who may have interest in the land use hearings listed on the attached Public
Notice.

The Morrow County Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, August 30™, at 7:00
p.m. at the Bartholomew Building located at 110 North Court Street in Heppner, OR 97836, in the Upper
Floor Conference Room. For information on remote meeting participation via Zoom please visit the
Planning Department website https://www.co.morrow.or.us/pc/page/morrow-county-planning

A copy of the Preliminary Findings of Fact for each application will be available on Friday, August 19th,
2022 The Planning Commission meeting materials will be available on our website at
https://www.co.morrow.or.us .

If you would like a paper or email copy of the application materials or if you have information or
concerns that you would like to share, please contact our office. You are invited to participate in the
Planning Commission hearing on August 30, 2022 or submit written comments prior to or during the
hearing.

If you wish to be advised of the results of the hearings please call the office at (541) 922-4624 or email
Tamra Mabbott at tmabbott@co.morrow.or.us; Stephen Wrecsics swrecsics@co.morrow.or.us; or
Stephanie Case scase@co.morrow.or.us .

Cordlally, W

Tamra Mabbott

Planning Director
Enclosures: Public Notice

Map

WWW.CO.mortow.or.us/planning



PUBLIC NOTICE
MORROW COUNTY LAND USE HEARING

THE MORROW COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION will hold the following hearings of public interest
on Tuesday, August 30, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. at the Bartholomew Building focated at 110 N. Court Street,
Heppner, 97836. For information on meeting participation via Zoom please visit the Planning

Department website. https://www.co.morrow.or.us/oc and click on Agenda and the Zoom link will be
located within the agenda dated for this hearing.

Conditional Use Permit CUP-N-356-22: Vance Dairy Construction, Applicant and Threemile
Canyon Farms, Owner. The property is described as tax lot 100 of Assessor's Map 3N 23E and tax lot
110 of 4N 23E. The property is zoned Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) and is located approximately 10 miles
southwest of Boardman on Sim-Tag Road. Request is to approve a concrete batch plant. Criteria for

approval includes Morrow County Zoning Ordinance (MCZO) Article 3 Section 3.010(C)(14) and Article 6
Sections 6.020 — 6.040 and 6.050(1)

Conditional Use Permit CUP-N-355-22 and Comprehensive Plan Amendment

AC-140-22: OneEnergy Development, LLC., applicant, and Madison Ranches Land 4, LLC., owner.
The properties are described as Tax Lots 1701, 1101, 1400, and 1401 of Assessor's Map 3N 27E. The
properties are zoned EFU and located between the Boardman Bombing Range and Highway 207,
approximately 6-miles southwest of the intersection of 1-84 and 1-82. Request is to allow the construction
and operation of a 74-Megawatt Photovoltaic Solar Array with optional battery storage. Approval criteria
for the Comprehensive Plan Amendment (AC-140-22) includes Morrow County Zoning Ordinance
(MCZO) Article 8 Amendments, ORS 197.732 and OAR 660-033-0130(38) for the exception to Statewide
Planning Goal 3 Agricultural Lands to allow a solar development on up to 600-acres in the EFU zone.

Criteria for approval for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP-N-355-22) includes the MCZO Article 3 Section
3.010 EFU and Article 6 Conditional Uses.

This is the first of at least one hearing with the final decision being issued by the Planning Commission
for CUP-N-355-22. This is the first of at least two public hearings with the final hearing before the Board
of Commissioners for AC-140-22. Opportunity to voice support or opposition to the above applications or
to ask questions will be provided. Failure to raise an issue in person or by letter or failure to provide

sufficient specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal
to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on those issues.

Copies of the staff report and all relevant documents will be available on or before August 23, 2022. For
more information, please contact Tamra Mabbott, Stephen Wrecsics or Stephanie Case at 922-4624 or
by email at swrecsics@co.morrow.or.us : scase@co.Morrow.or us and tmabbott@co.morrow.or.us

DATED this 4™ day of August 2022
MORROW COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Publish Date: EQ ~ August 9, 2022: GT - August 10, 2022



= OTT1L IEC NE

2110 [ewOjuUC) LBgUIEe] g3l WY BL0T 7702/L// panes 2eq
swueq

e L uond3|as Jopxel [ ] Jo)xeL
uoAue) sjiwsaly

Y 1.2que” J9 uo8a0 €8QYN :WalsAS a1eulpino)
1uawiiedaqg Suiuue|d AJuno) MoLIoI
$31523up0 uaydals (:Ag AydeiGoiie) NNummm ZIQDU

U1 e ami L e ifle poLS e (SRS (e iR S

JOUBIDN
Oljt i

L-n--‘

uopoaunp
Jauddap

B

1uddapn

auo)

21p3IDIN

3|epJap|y,

R | —-L
'. SIS S I, o e G —

1R
{=n)

£
nueEs £
by

P e e e S e e e

W HIB)INg Mo e
| de




8/15/22, 1:58 PM

Nop CNERGY

link.energy.oregon.gov/m/1/79294359/02-b22227-82004b902f4b43d48d27fe67ed2b15fb/2/262/5bdf02ac-77d0-4a31-b786-ec040...

Click here if you are having trouble viewing this message.

Energy Facility Siting Council Meeting August 29-31, 2022

The agenda for EFSC's next regularly-scheduled meeting is now available
online.

Meeting Details:

. Monday, August 29 at 4 p.m.
» Tuesday, August 30 at 8 a.m.
« Wednesday, August 31 at 8 a.m.

The public meeting will be held virtually via Webex and in person at Eastern
Oregon University's Gilbert Event Center in La Grande, OR. More details,
including information on how to join the meeting and other meeting
materials can be found on the Oregon Department of Energy's website:
Energy Facility Siting Council Meetings

ODOE strongly recommends joining the Webex meeting online, if possible.
When you join, please use your full name so it is easier to identify attendees
and manage public comments. Public participants will be in listen-only mode,
but can use the Webex tool to “raise your hand” to share public comments.

Or join Webex meeting by phone. Phone participants will be in listen-only
mode. To notify the host you if wish to make comment, press *3 to raise your
hand. Council will also offer an opportunity for phone patticipants to provide
comments.

WebEx Resources:
WebEx Meeting Instructions
WebEx How to Raise Your Hand

Questions About the EFSC Meeting:
Nancy Hatch

Oregon Department of Energy

550 Capitol St. NE

Salem, OR 97301

503-428-7905
Nancy.Hatch@energy.oregon.gov

link.energy.oregon.gov/m/1/79294359/02-b22227-82004b302f4b43d48d27fe67ed2b15Mb/2/262/5bdf02ac-77d0-4a31-b786-ec0409f219cf

ENERGY FACILITY SITING COUNCIL

172



8/15/22, 1:58 PM link.energy.oregon.gov/m/1/78294359/02-b22227-82004b902f4b43d48d27fe67ed2b15fb/2/262/5bdf02ac-77d0-4a31-b786-ec040. ..

Oregon Department of Energy

Leading Oregon to a safe, equitable, clean, and sustainable energy
future.

The Oregon Department of Energy helps Oregonians improve the energy efficiency of their
homes, provides policy expertise to prepare for Oregon’s future energy needs, staffs the
Energy Facility Siting Council, provides technical and financial assistance to encourage
investments in energy efficiency and renewable energy resources, promotes the cleanup of
the Hanford nuclear site, and ensures state preparedness to respond to emergencies at
energy facilities.

00006

AskEnergy@oregon.gov | 503-378-4040 | 550 Capitol St. NE in Salem
Click here to unsubscribe or to change your Subscription Preferences.

link.energy.oregan.gov/m/1/79294359/02-b22227-82004b902f4b4 3d48d27fe67ed2b15fb/2/262/5bdf02ac-77d0-4a31-b786-ec0409f21 9cf 2/2



e L ] b =1 =
AE . = iy | .
e R et e T PR R . e S50
T i R ol e N

i A Rt e T g i

T T T S T T R e T

g Ry i A




,mwtgq%:: AQ O ou) acgm
folt oMY oy oy v
SH WLl S Aumo
TN QMMN,Q ; 000 o gﬁ%r J /
Ll o WLt 0oL 390
proy \w%b\éo@ﬁ mc_\f o)
Voo o
g Pennans e
Pung) MOV ,vo\ch_u_/ M\/Srg -
._gp\MC,OC(V\ oﬁ jQ.}\T \o/il A
TSVILA- oF  Juewelu s
DT o paquom oy f

wé%_wwér%u qo J@BR@




